[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

CITY oF I
ROLVEL ELA \PTON Pensions Board
COUNCIL 4JU|y2023
Time 2.00 pm Public Meeting? NO Type of meeting Pensions

Venue West Midlands Pension Fund, i9 Offices, Wolverhampton Interchange, Railway
Drive, Wolverhampton, WV1 1LD

Membership

Employer Representatives Member Representatives

Paul Johnson (Chair) Julian Allam (Vice-Chair) (Unite)
Joe McCormick Stan Ruddock (Unite)

lan Martin Adrian Turner (Unison)

Mark Smith Terry Dingley (GMB)

Jacqueline Carman

Observer Member
Steve Smith

The Quorum requires, at least one member from each category of member and employer

representatives. If the Chair and Vice Chair are not present a Chair will be nominated by
majority from those in attendance.

Information for the Public

If you have any queries about this meeting, please contact the Democratic Services team:

Contact Fabrica Hastings
Tel/Email Fabrica.Hastings2@wolverhampton.gov.uk 01902 552873
Address Democratic Services, Civic Centre, 1st floor, St Peter’'s Square,

Wolverhampton WV1 1RL

Copies of other agendas and reports are available from:

Website https://wolverhamptonintranet.moderngov.co.uk
Email democratic.services@wolverhampton.gov.uk
Tel 01902 550320

Please take note of the protocol for filming, recording and use of social media in meetings, copies of
which are displayed in the meeting room.

Some items are discussed in private because of their confidential or commercial nature. These reports
are not available to the public.

If you are reading these papers on an electronic device you have saved the Council £11.33 and
helped reduce the Council’s carbon footprint.


mailto:democratic.services@wolverhampton.gov.uk

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda

Part 1 — items open to the press and public

Item No.

1

10

11

12

13

Title

Election of Local Pensions Board Chair
Election of Local Pensions Board Vice Chair
Apologies for Absence

Declaration of Interests

Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 10)
[For approval.]

Matters Arising

LPB Annual Governance Paper (Pages 11 - 22)
[To seek approval for the Annual Governance matters of the Local Pensions Board
(the Board).]

Risk and Assurance (Pages 23 - 38)
[To provide the Board with an update on the work of the Fund to deliver a well
governed scheme.]

Internal Audit Report 2022/23 (Pages 39 - 50)
[To provide the Board with the outcome of the work programme for Internal Audit
for 2021-22.]

Statement of Accounts (Pages 51 - 94)

[To update the Board on the preparation, approval and audit of the Statement of
Accounts and the Annual Report for the year ending 31 March 2022 and the latter’s
publication on the Fund’s website.]

Investment Governance (Pages 95 - 100)

[To update the Board on investment related matters, an update on responsible
investment activities, together with the ongoing development of Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS) Central Investment Pool.]

Pensions Administration Report to 31 March 2023 (Pages 101 - 136)
[To inform the Board of the routine operational work undertaken by the Pensions
administration service areas during the period 1 January — 30 March 2023.]

Customer Engagement Update (Pages 137 - 146)

[To receive an update on the Fund’s customer engagement activity from 1 January
— 31 March 2022 and to cover future planned customer engagement activity in the
context of the Fund’s Customer Engagement Strategy.]



14

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Exclusion of press and public
[To pass the following resolution:

That, in accordance with section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business
as they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information falling within paragraph 3
of Schedule 12A to the Act.]

PART 2 - EXEMPT ITEMS, CLOSED TO PRESS AND PUBLIC

15

CEM Benchmarking (Pages 147 - 162)

[To inform the Board of the outcome of the Information relating to the
independent benchmarking exercise undertaken n financial or business affairs of

relation to the 2021/22 scheme year.] hy :&Egﬁt';rhzf;ﬁ%ntﬂ;tc luding

information) Para (3)



This page is intentionally left blank



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

woveayx o~ | Pensions Board
CouNciL Minutes - 25 April 2023  Agenda ftem No: 5

Attendance
Members of the Pensions Board

Employer Representatives

Paul Johnson (Chair)

Joe McCormick

lan Martin

Jacqueline Carman — Virtual Attendee

Member Representatives
Julian Allam (Vice-Chair)
Sharon Campion

Stan Ruddock

Adrian Turner

Terry Dingley — Virtual Attendee

Observer Member

Steve Smith

Employees

Rachel Brothwood Executive Director of Pensions - West Midlands Pension
Fund

Amanda MacDonald Audit Business Partner

Chris Manning Head of Finance

Laura Parker-Marsden Governance Support Officer

Paul Nevin Assistant Director - Investment Strategy

Amy Regler Head of Operations

Hayley Reid Senior Auditor

Holly Slater - Virtual Attendee  Governance Officer

Simon Taylor Assistant Director - Pensions

Karina Thomas Head of People

Part 1 — items open to the press and public
Item No. Title

1 Apologies for absence
Apologies were received from Mark Smith, Employer Representative.

2 Declarations of interests

A disclosable non-pecuniary interest was declared by Paul Johnson, Local Pension
Board Chair in relation to Item 10, the Compliance and Assurance Report,

Page 5




[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

specifically the approval of his re-appointment to the Local Authority Employer
Representative seat on the Local Pensions Board.

Minutes of the previous meeting
That the minutes of the previous meeting be approved as a correct record.

Matters arising
There were no matters arising.

Funding Strategy Statement

Simon Taylor, Assistant Director — Pensions, presented the report providing an
update on the finalisation of the 2022 actuarial valuation including the approval of the
Funding Strategy Statement (FSS), Asset Share Policy and the updated Employer
Risk Management Framework which had been approved by the Pensions Committee
in March 2023 following consultation with employers.

In response to a question raised around affordability, the Assistant Director of
Pensions, confirmed that the process had acknowledged employer affordability and
budgets.

Resolved:

1. The Funding Strategy Statement (FSS),Asset Share Policy (ASP) which were
approved by the Pensions Committee in March 2023 be noted.

2. The consultation undertaken in relation to the 2022 actuarial valuation and the
associated Funding Strategy Statement be noted.

3. The delivery of the Fund actuary’s valuation report and rate and adjustments
certificate in accordance with the statutory deadline of 31 March 2023 be noted.

4. The updated Employer Risk Management Framework be noted.

Investment Strategy Statement

Paul Nevin, Assistant Director - Investment Strategy, presented the report on the
Investment Strategy Statement which had been reviewed and updated in conjunction
with the Fund’s triennial actuarial valuation.

The Assistant Director of Investment Strategy confirmed that the Strategy had been
written in consideration of the need to be flexible to the current market environment.
It was noted that the Fund is a long-term investor therefore will examine long-term
forecasts before making short-term changes.

Resolved:
1. The revised and updated Investment Strategy Statement (ISS) that was approved
by the Pensions Committee at their meeting in March 2023 be noted.

Corporate Plan

Rachel Brothwood, Executive Director of Pensions, presented the report providing
the Board with an update on the work of the Fund in achieving its deliverables and
targets as set out in the Corporate Plan 2022-2027. The executive director of
pensions further discussed the refreshed Corporate Plan for 2023-28, which was
approved by Pensions Committee in March 2023.

Page 6



10

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

In response to a question posed around the new 2023-28 Corporate Plan, the
Executive Director of Pensions explained that the plan has retained stability around
its original themes whilst also recognising change, additionally noting how this plan is
a particularly useful communication document to provide information about the Fund
to its stakeholders.

Resolved:
1. The Fund’s Corporate Plan for 2023-2028 be noted.

External Audit Plan

Christopher Manning, Head of Finance, presented the report on the External Audit
Plan and explained that the Fund remains optimistic to deliver the audited Statement
of Accounts to the Pensions Committee for formal approval by the statutory deadline
of 30 September 2023.

The Head of Finance also clarified that updated guidance is also expected
imminently from the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA),
to which the Fund will adapt and support.

Resolved:

1. The management responses to questions from the external auditors, Grant
Thornton

2. LLP, as part of their audit planning [Appendix B] be noted.

3. The external Audit Plan for the 2022/2023 Audit Progress and Indicative Risks
Report as prepared by Grant Thornton [Appendix A] be noted.

Internal Audit Plan

Amanda MacDonald, Audit Business Partner for the City of Wolverhampton Council,
presented the Internal Audit Plan report, containing the outline work programme for
internal audit during 2023-24. It was noted that the Internal Audit plan had been
approved by the Pensions Committee in March 2023.

In response to a question raised regarding how timings are agreed for internal audits,
the Audit Business Partner confirmed there is a good relationship between the
internal audit team and managers at the Fund. Confirming that Audit Services will
accommodate existing workloads and Fund capacity when agreeing timing for audit
work.

Resolved:
1. The Internal Audit Plan for 2023 — 2024 which was approved by the Pensions
Committee at their meeting in March 2023 be noted.

Compliance and Assurance

Due to the conflict of interest declared in this item, Paul Johnson, Local Pension
Board Chair left the meeting at this point. Vice Chair, Julian Allam chaired the
meeting in his absence.

Page 7



11

12

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Hayley Reid, Regulatory Governance Manager, presented the report on the work of
the Fund to deliver a well governed scheme.

The regulatory governance manager provided an overview of the Fund’s quarterly
assurance monitoring, noting the Fund’'s Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) and
compliance monitoring updates. It was highlighted that, in relation to KPlIs, from a
Governance and Assurance perspective, there are no concerns with overall
performance and delivery of Fund service areas.

The Regulatory Governance Manager also highlighted that Governing Body Training
hours continue to be recorded and reported in the Fund’s Annual Report and KPIs.

An overview of the appointments process for the Employer Representative seat was
provided and the Board were asked to approve the appointments panel unanimous
recommendation of the re-appointment of Paul Johnson.

Resolved:

1. The re-appointment of Paul Johnson to the WMPF Local Pension Board, Local
Authority Employer Representative seat be approved.

2. The latest Strategic Risk Register and areas being closely monitored in the
current environment be noted.

3. The Fund’s Key Performance Indicators (KPI) and action taken to support service
delivery be noted.

4. The compliance monitoring activity undertaken during the quarter be noted.

Paul Johnson, returned to the meeting.

Pensions Administration

Amy Regler, Head of Operations, presented the quarterly Pensions Administration
Report providing an overview of the operational works undertaken by the Pension
Administration service.

It was also noted that the KPIs are cumulatively achieving the 90% target for the year
to date and the number of complaints was lower than average this quarter.

Resolved:

1. The 8 applications approved for employer admission into the Fund as detailed in
Appendix E be noted.

2. Performance and workloads of the key pension administration functions be noted.

3. Development of the Fund’s membership and participating employers be noted.

Customer Engagement
Simon Taylor, Assistant Director — Pensions, presented the report on customer
engagement, encompassing member engagement and communications.

Resolved:
1. The engagement activity and informed service development be noted.

Page 8



13

14

15

16

17

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Investment Governance

Rachel Brothwood, Executive Director of Pensions, presented the report on
investment governance, drawing out key developments and items of interest based
on Fund stewardship themes.

It was noted that the Fund has reviewed and updated its Voting Principles.

Resolved:
1. The update on investment governance matters including those in relation to
responsible investment and investment pooling.

Exclusion of press and public

Resolved:

That in accordance with Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business as
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information falling within the paragraph 3
of Schedule 12A of the Act.

Development of Fund Resource
Rachel Brothwood, Executive Director of Pensions, presented the report on the
development of Fund resources.

Resolved:

1. Progress with the Fund’s recruitment and retention plans be noted.

2. Action being taken to assess and support employee and service resilience be
noted.

3. Outcomes of the Fund’s recent all-employee survey be noted.

4. A further Development of Fund Resource update would be provided to the Board
in 6 months.

Cyber Security
Amy Regler, Head of Operations, presented the Cyber Security report.

Resolved:

1. The Fund’s reviewed and approved Cyber Security Strategy for 2023/24 be
noted.

2. The work undertaken in 2022/23 by the Fund to deliver its cyber security
programme be noted.

3. Annual assurance reporting from the City of Wolverhampton Council (CWC) IT
Cyber programme be noted.

Areas for Discussion

Fund Officers provided an update to the Board around both the regulatory changes
and the investment guidance that are expected to be introduced over the next
municipal year.

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



This report is PUBLIC

Agenda Iltem No: 7

CITY or

WOLVERHAMPTON
COUNCIL

Pensions Board
4 July 2022

Report title

Originating service

Accountable employee

Report to be/has been
considered by

Annual Governance Report

Pension Services

Rachel Howe Head of Governance and Corporate Services
Email Rachel.Howe@wolverhampton.gov.uk

Rachel Brothwood Director of Pensions
Email Rachel.Brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk

Recommendation for decision:

The Pensions Board is recommended to approve:

1. The revised Terms of Reference for the Local Pensions Board.

Recommendations for action:

The Pensions Board is asked to note.

1. The following dates and time of the meetings of the Local Pension Board (14.00):
i. 4 July 2023
ii. 17 October 2023
iii. 23 January 2024
iv. 23 April 2024

2. The Annual Cycle of Nominations and change to Board membership.

Page 11



mailto:Rachel.Howe@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:Rachel.Brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk

1.0

1.1

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

3.1

3.2

4.0

4.1

This report is PUBLIC

Purpose

To seek approval for the Annual Governance matters of Local Pensions Board in line
with the good governance requirements of statutory regulation and guidance.

Background

The Local Pensions Board is a statutory Board created by the Public Services Pensions
Act 2013 and governed in line with guidance from the Scheme Advisory Board with
oversight from the Pensions Regulator.

The Local Pensions Board is required by statute to publish information about its
membership, responsibilities and work within its Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) Fund.

The Local Pensions Board meets four times a year to review and consider the actions of
the Fund in line with governance requirements, their role is to aid the Pensions
Committee and ensure the Fund is managed taking into account, in equal measure the
interest and representation of the Fund’s customers (members and employers). The two
bodies are collectively referred to as the Fund’s Governing Bodies who aim to work
collaboratively to ensure the Fund delivers its long-term obligations to pay benefits
promised by employers to its members. Joint training sessions are held with the
Pensions Committee throughout the year, providing the opportunity for engagement on
topical issues between Pensions Board and Committee members.

Local Pension Board Terms of Reference

Attached at Appendix A is the Local Pension Board Terms of Reference. The Terms of
Reference for 2023/24 have been amended and updated to reflect statutory
requirements, noting the various regulatory changes which have arisen over the 2022/23
year, anticipated areas of guidance forthcoming from the Scheme Advisory Board’s Good
Governance Review (knowledge and skills), and the Pension Regulator (Equality,
Diversity and Inclusion). The Board are asked to approve the revised terms of reference,
at appendix A.

Following approval, the Fund’s Representation and Appointments policies will be updated
to include details of the revised membership, a copy of both policies are available on the
Fund’s website and included as background papers to this report.

Board Membership

In line with statutory requirements, the West Midlands Local Pension Board consists of
an equal number of employer and member representatives. The Board has a cyclical
membership with one member and one employer representative rotating on a biennial
basis. This is to ensure the continuation of knowledge across the membership, while
providing opportunity for new members to join and represent their relevant group
(member or employer).

Page 12



4.2

4.3

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

6.0

6.1

This report is PUBLIC

In accordance with the Fund’s agreed nomination process, details of employer seats due
for nomination are advertised through the Fund’s Employer Peer group, within the
employer newsletter and on its website. Nominations for member representatives are
sought from the three main trade unions of the administering authority, who undertake a
formal nomination process on behalf of the Fund. Board membership has been stable
throughout 2022/23 with no unexpected vacancies occurring during the year.

The Board undertook its biennial nomination process during July 2022 where Paul
Johnson, the Board’s Local Authority Representative, was re-appointed for a second
term. The nomination process for one recently vacated member representative seat is
ongoing, the Fund are liaising with Unison with regards to the nomination process they
are undertaking on behalf of the Fund.

Training

The Fund offered a number of both face-to-face and virtual training opportunities for
Board members over 2022/23, to aid ongoing development of knowledge and skills,
supporting Board members’ consideration of the broad range of topics and information
reported to and discussed at Board meetings. A wide range of reading material has also
been signposted to include relevant briefings and updates prepared by the Local
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) and the Pensions
Regulator.

The Fund endeavour to deliver joint training opportunities and events alongside the
Pensions Committee to continue to build and strengthen relationships across the two
governing bodies. During the 2022/23 year, in addition to the Fund’s Annual General
Meetings and Mid-Year Review, the Board were invited to attend a Responsible
Investment Summit held by the Fund’s Investment Pooling Company, LGPS Central, and
joint induction and training events hosted by the Fund in June 2022, October 2022 and
March 2023. The Fund will look to continue this collaborative engagement over the
2023/24 year, as well as responding to individual requirements and requests received
through Governing Body member feedback.

Board members have continued to have access to a wide variety of reference and
training materials including briefing notes and media updates, through continued use and
update of a dedicated online learning platform available to both Pensions Committee and
Local Pensions Board members, which also hosts relevant governance documents,
handbooks, and training materials.

All members are encouraged to meet their training target to ensure that they obtain the
relevant knowledge and skills required to undertake their role on the Board. Attached in
Appendix B is a copy of the 2022/23 individual training hours recorded for members of

the Board as at 30 April 2023.

Scheme Advisory Board Developments
At the time of reporting the Scheme Advisory Board’s (SAB) Annual Report was pending

publication. The report seeks to draw information from across the LGPS Scheme as a
whole highlighting year on year comparators of membership, funding and investment

Page 13



6.2

6.3

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

This report is PUBLIC

performance, an update will be provided to Governing Bodies following the reports
publication.

During 2022 the SAB established a new Compliance and Reporting Committee, the remit
of which is to support Administering Authorities in delivering compliance and reporting
requirements and to engage with regulators with the aim of clarifying compliance
requirements, encouraging integration and where appropriate the simplification of
regulations the LGPS is subject to. The SAB Committee has a developing programme
to review and update guidance for the LGPS which in turn will inform the review of Fund
policy’s including the Governing Body training policy and the good governance
knowledge and skills requirements. Updates on the work of the SAB Compliance and
Reporting Committee will be provided to Governing Bodies in due course.

Throughout the year, the SAB has issued a number of communications reporting on the
outcomes of their meetings and delivery of their own workplan, all of which have been
presented to the Local Pension Board and Committee in update reports at formal
meetings, through training events or communication roundups.

Forward Plan for 2023/24

At this time, the Fund is awaiting a number of regulatory and statutory guidance on
matters relevant to the governance and administration of the Pension Fund. As noted
above, general themes deriving from regulatory bodies includes governance, knowledge
and skills of governing bodies, conflict management, data management and reporting,
together with ensuring the ongoing support to members in managing their pensions
through the pensions dashboard. The work of the Local Pensions Board will continue to
evolve in line with forthcoming guidance and regulation, which seeks to ensure the good
governance and administration of the Fund. At this time, we are also awaiting the
publication of the Scheme Advisory Board annual workplan.

Dates and Times of Meetings for 2022-23

The Board are asked to note the following dates and times of meetings for the
remainder of the current Municipal Year:

Pensions Board — 2pm
i. 19 July 2022

ii. 18 October 2022

iii. 24 January 2023
iv. 25 April 2023

9. Financial Implications

9.1

9.2

The cost of the Local Pensions Board is contained within the Fund’s Governance budget
approved by the Committee at its March meeting.

A failure to comply with statutory requirements and/or guidance could result in a fine
imposed by the Pensions Regulator.

Page 14



10.0

10.1

11.0

12.0

12.1

13.0

13.1

13.2

13.3

13.4

13.5

14.0

14.1

14.2

This report is PUBLIC

Legal Implications

The requirement for a Local Pensions Board is set out in the Public Service Pensions Act
2013. It is a statutory body with statutory responsibilities. Failure by an LGPS Fund to
comply with the statutory requirements could result in a fine or legal notice being
imposed.

Equalities Implications

There are no implications.

All Other Implications

There are no other implications.

Schedule of Background Papers

Public Service Pensions Act 2013
http://www.leqgislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2013/25/contents

Scheme Advisory Board Guidance for Local Pensions Board
https://Igpsboard.org/images/Guidance/LGPS Board Guidance FINAL PUBLISHEDv1
%201 clean.pdf

Governing Body’s Training Policy
https://wolverhamptonintranet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s177477/Appendix%20B%20
-%20Governing%20Bodies%20Training%20Policy.pdf

Governing Body Representation Policy
Representation Policy 2022 (wmpfonline.com)

Local Pensions Board Appointments Policy
Local Pensions Board Appointments Policy 2022.pdf (wmpfonline.com)

Schedule of Appendices
Appendix A Local Pensions Board Terms of Reference

Appendix B Local Pension Board Member Training hours

Page 15


http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2013/25/contents
https://lgpsboard.org/images/Guidance/LGPS_Board_Guidance_FINAL_PUBLISHEDv1%201clean.pdf
https://lgpsboard.org/images/Guidance/LGPS_Board_Guidance_FINAL_PUBLISHEDv1%201clean.pdf
https://www.wmpfonline.com/article/14028/Governing-Bodies
https://www.wmpfonline.com/article/14028/Governing-Bodies
https://www.wmpfonline.com/article/14028/Governing-Bodies
https://www.wmpfonline.com/sites/default/files/2022-11/representation_policy.pdf
https://www.wmpfonline.com/sites/default/files/2022-11/Local_Pensions_Board_Appointments_Policy_2022.pdf

This page is intentionally left blank



4

1

o2 West Midlands Pension Fund
-

»

o9

Pensions Board - Terms of Reference

1.

This document sets out the terms of reference of the Local Pension Board of the
City of Wolverhampton Council (the 'Administering Authority'), a Scheme
Manager as defined under Section 4 of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013.
The Local Pension Board (hereafter referred to as 'the Board') is established in
accordance with Section 5 of that Act and under regulation 106 of the Local
Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (as amended).

The Board is established by the Administering Authority and operates
independently of the Pensions Committee. Relevant information about its
creation and operation are contained in these Terms of Reference.

The purpose of the Board is to assist the Administering Authority (Scheme
Manager), as follows:

e secure compliance with the Regulations, any other legislation relating to
the governance and administration of the Scheme, and requirements
imposed by the Pensions Regulator in relation to the Scheme; and

e to ensure the effective and efficient governance and administration of the
Scheme.

All persons appointed to the Board will adhere to the Local Pensions Board Code
of Conduct and the seven principals of public life (known as the Nolan Principles),
including the duty to report conflicts and undertake training as required to ensure
they meet the legislative requirement to have the knowledge and understanding
required of them to undertake their role.

While not a formal committee of the Council, meetings of the Pensions Board will
be formal occasions to be minuted adhering to the due process and rules of
procedure so far as such do not make the business of the board unviable. Business
to be conducted by the Pensions Board shall be noted on a formal Agenda at least
five working days in advance of the meeting. Additional business may be added to
the Agenda at a later date with the consent of the Chair. Business not noted on the
Agenda may only be considered at the meeting if agreed by majority vote. This is
to ensure all information is available and has been read and understood by
Pensions Board members.

The Pensions Board shall meet a minimum of four times a year on a
quarterly basis. The ability to call additional meetings rests with the Board such
additional meetings to meet the minimum quorum requirement.

Persons appointed to the Pensions Board have the same right of access to
information and documents to be considered as elected members as outlined in
The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to
Information) (England) Regulations 2012 and The Openness of Local Government
Bodies Regulations 2014. Save as all other provisions of these regulations do not
apply to the Pensions Board.

Page 17



4

1

o2 West Midlands Pension Fund
-

»

o9

8. The Pensions Board shall adhere to the operational policies of the Fund.

Membership

9. The Pensions Board consists of 42-10 persons made up of 6 5 employer and 6 5
member representatives in equal proportion. 2-ef-which-will-be-Elected-Members
of-the-Administering-Authority. Substitutes shall not be appointed. Further details
with regards the membership can be found in the Fund’s Representation Policy
which is available on its website.

10. Representatives (both employer and member) should be able to demonstrate their
capacity to attend and complete the necessary preparation for meetings and
participate in training as required.

11.Recruitment to the Board will follow the Fund's 'Pensions Board Appointments
Policy'.

12.The Quorum requires at least one member from each category of member and
employer representatives. If the Chair and the Vice Chair are not present, a Chair
will be nominated by majority from those in attendance.

13.The term of office for a person appointed to the Pensions Board shall be for a
period no shorter than one year and no longer than two rotations of nominations or
their term of office. {where-the-person-is-an-elected-councillor,—whichever-is-the
shortest). Nomination for employer and member representatives to the Pensions
Board shall take biennial rotation. This is to ensure a consistency of knowledge
within the Pensions Board and to assist with the development of knowledge
and experience. Where vacancies occur in year the nomination process will follow
and there will not be an annual nomination for that seat in the same year.

14.Nominations to the Pensions Board will be sought from the nominating body group
on each occasion as the rotation for appointment arises. Trade Union member
representatives will be nominated by the relevant Trade Union. Where more than
one nomination is received for employer representatives from the Fund employer
base, interviews for the vacant position will be held by the Chair or Vice Chair
(where they are not on rotation) ene-employerand-one-memberrepresentative,
together with the Executive Director of Pensions (or their nominated officer) and
the Head-ef Governance Head of Governance, Risk and Assurance.

15.Persons appointed to the Pensions Board are expected to make themselves
available to attend meetings and to complete relevant training. Persons appointed
who fail to meet the 22 hour training target and/or attend less than two meetings
and one structured training event each year will be asked to leave the Board and
a replacement sought from their nominating body unless there are exceptional
reasons for their failure to attend. Such reasons to be considered by the Pensions
Board.

16. Other than by ceasing to be eligible to sit on the Pensions Board (to include failure
to attend meetings), a person appointed to the Pensions Board may only be

Page 18



.:. L]
eseccosss . .
SN + West Midlands Pension Fund
141+ 1

b e e (111}

1] (111}

[ ]

removed from the position during their term of office by majority vote of the
Pensions Board.

17.A person appointed to the Pensions Board may retire their position at any time. In
such cases, a nomination will be sought from their nominating group.

18.In line with guidance from the Pensions Regulatory, the Board will lead an inclusive
governing body culture which seeks to ensure diversity and inclusion across the
Fund's policies and working practice.

Chairing the Board

19.1t shall be the first business of the Board’s annual meeting to nominate the
position of Chair and Vice-Chair with both the employer and member
representatives considered with one position being allocated to each represented
group.

20.In the event of a tie of votes of any business to be conducted, the Chair will have
the casting vote. In circumstances where the vote is to appoint a new Chair, the
outgoing Chair will have the casting vote in the event of a tie.

Conflicts of interest

21.All members of the Board must declare to the Administering Authority on
appointment and at any such time as their circumstances change, any real,
potential or perceived conflict of interest which may impact their position on the
Board.

22.A conflict of interest and the policy for their identification and management is
defined in the Fund’s Local Pensions Board Conflicts of Interest Policy.

23.0n appointment to the Board and following any subsequent declaration of a
potential conflict by a Board member, the Fund shall ensure that any potential
conflict is effectively managed in line with both the internal procedures of the
Board's conflicts policy and the requirements of the Code of Conduct.

Voting Rights

24 .Each member representative and employer representative will have one vote.
Where there is the same number of votes the Chair shall have the casting vote.

Knowledge and understanding (including Training)

25. Individual Pension Board members must ensure that they have the appropriate
degree of knowledge and understanding to enable them to properly exercise their
functions as a member of the Pension Board.

26.To ensure that knowledge and understanding requirements are met the Fund
have established a Governing Body Member Training policy that will be reviewed

Page 19



4

1

o2 West Midlands Pension Fund
-

»

o9

and approved on an annual basis. Board members should attend and participate
in training arranged in order to meet and maintain the minimum requirements set
out in the policy.

Information

27.Information relating to the work of the Pension Board (including any relevant
minutes) is available to the public (with the exception of exempt matters) and will
be published on the Administering Authority’s website with the exception of when
such information is confidential or exempt under Schedule 12A.

28.Information detailing the Pensions Board's terms of reference shall be published
on the Fund's website together with the any vacancies as they arise.

29.An agenda will be agreed prior to each meeting. The agenda and supporting
papers will be issued at least five working days in advance of the meeting (except
in matters of urgency).

30. Draft minutes of each meeting (including actions and agreements) will be circulated
to all Board members following the meeting and be subject to formal agreement by
the Board at their next meeting.

31.In accordance with regulations the Fund will publish information about the Board,
this information will include:

e The names of Board members and their contact details.

e The representation of employers and members on the Board.
e The role of the Board.

e These Terms of Reference.

All or some of this information is available on the Fund’s website, within the Fund'’s
Representation Policy and where appropriate as part of the Fund’s Annual report
and Governance Compliance Statement

Review of terms of reference

32.These Terms of Reference shall be reviewed on each material change to those
part of the Regulations covering local pension boards and at least annually.

Page 20



Appendix B

Local Pension Board Training Hours — 2022/23

Hours spent

training
Board
Adrian Turner 26.5
lan Martin 24
Jacquie Carman 7
Joe McCormick 42
Julian Allam 25.5
Mark Smith 60.83
Paul Johnson 24
Cllr Rupinderijit Kaur 0
Cllr Sandra Samuels 0
Sharon Campion 22
Stan Ruddock 27
Terry Dingley 18
Grand Total 276.83

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



This report is PUBLIC

Agenda Item No: 8

wovikiavrron | Pensions Board

counNctt 04 July 2023

Report title Risk and Assurance

Originating service Pension Services

Accountable employee Rachel Howe Head of Governance, Risk and Assurance
Email Rachel.Howe@wolverhampton.gov.uk

Report to be/has been Rachel Brothwood Executive Director of Pensions

considered by Email Rachel.Brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk

Recommendations for action:

The Pensions Board is asked to note:

1.

B w

The latest Strategic Risk Register and areas being closely monitored in the current
environment.

The Fund’s Key Performance Indicators (KPI) and action taken to support service
delivery.

The compliance monitoring activity undertaken during the quarter.

The Fund’s reaccreditation of Investors In People Gold Standard.

Page 23



mailto:Rachel.Howe@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:Rachel.Brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk

1.0

1.1

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

2.5

2.6

This report is PUBLIC

Purpose

To provide the Pensions Board with an update on the work of the Fund to deliver a well
governed scheme.

Risk Register
Attached at Appendix A is the Strategic Risk Register for this quarter.

The Risk Register captures the potential for impact in the Fund’s service delivery as a
forward-looking review, together with horizon scanning for changes which may impact or
require change to the Fund’s processes and delivery model. As such, the risks are
refreshed each quarter and the directional arrows therefore reflect the trend on the risk
assessment pre and post actions and mitigations (as opposed to quarter-by-quarter
comparison).

The Fund continues to await regulatory guidance and legislation on several key issues,
including the Scheme Advisory Board’s Good Governance Review, implementation of
McCloud, Investment Pooling, Funding and Climate Risk. All of which have the potential
to increase requirements on reporting and oversight of LGPS Funds and which, will
require enhancements to data reporting tools by both the Fund and its service delivery
partners.

Further developments in regulatory oversight also have the potential to increase
knowledge and capacity requirements of those charged with the governance and
administration of Local Government Pension Funds. Thereby increasing commitments on
training and development of both the Fund’s Governing Bodies and its officers. The Fund
continues to develop and enhance its Governing Body training programme, together with
developing its people strategy and career offering to its employees, noting the wider risk
of industry wide resource constraints across the pensions sector. Further information
about the Fund’s resource and development over 2022/23 is outlined in the Fund
structure report presented to this meeting.

In conjunction with the Fund’s ability to keep pace of change with regulation, the Fund
recognises and is cognisant of the potential impact those changes also have on the
Fund’s members and employers. The Fund is aware that many employers are facing
resource and cost pressures impacting their ability to manage day-to-day activities in
relation to the pension fund, as well as the impact of change, including increasing
member queries.

The Fund is alive to the current economic and market volatility with consideration being
given to the timely implementation of its investment strategy together with ongoing
engagement with employers reporting and managing commitments relating to long term
liabilities of pension benefits.

Page 24



2.7

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

4.0

41

411

This report is PUBLIC

The Fund continues to engage with industry partners to understand all potential areas of
change and impacts, together with developing its customer offering to support
understanding and change in the current environment.

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

Attached at Appendix B are the Fund’s KPIs, noting the Fund'’s year on year performance
from April 22 — March 23.

As reported previously, engagement with the Fund from our customer base continues to
be high, this is demonstrated by the high volume of communications (calls and emails)
received into the Fund’s contact centre, which alongside capacity constraints, continue to
impact the Fund’s ability to meet KPIs in responding to those customer contacts. This is
an area where recruitment and training continues and also an area we expect to see
increased capacity following development and roll out of the pension administration
system.

Updates have been provided throughout the year on the Fund’s delivery of services with
various issues driving Fund performance, from more complex information requests to
regulatory change requiring re-prioritisation of work with the flexing of resource across
several service areas. The Fund’s web portal has shown high interest and use by
members over the year, the Fund will now look to promote the new member web portal
as part of the administration system transition with planned engagement and active reach
out over the coming quarter.

Other areas of note reflect the work undertaken by the Fund over the last 12 months with
the impact of McCloud on data quality and the active rectification work being undertaken
to affect the remedy in line with regulations. The contribution monitoring for the Fund
continues to evolve with some delays to information received creating a delay in
reconciling monies received. However, this has been resolved throughout the year and is
a timing issue on the reporting of the KPI.

Our Governing bodies continue to meet their requirements for knowledge and skills, with
the final reported training hours to be published in the Fund’s Report and Accounts. The
attendance rate at Governing Body meetings reduced during the year, partly attributable
to the move away from virtual meetings, and shortfalls in attendance have been raised
with relevant bodies, including district Councils.

Compliance Monitoring

Data Protection

This quarter the Fund are reporting eight data breaches, an increase on the previous
quarter. The Governance Team continue to monitor breaches and identify actions to
improve controls. The Fund hasn'’t identified any systemic issues in the management of

its data and the Governance Team continues to work with service areas to implement
ongoing enhancements in systems and individual knowledge.

Page 25



41.2

413

41.4

5.2

5.2.1

5.2.2

This report is PUBLIC

In accordance with procedure, data breaches are reported to CWC (City of
Wolverhampton Council), who will analyse the breach and determine if further action is
required. In total for 2022/23, the Fund reported 20 Data Breaches, this compares to 18
during the 2021/22. It is noted that CWC did not require any further action in relation to
the breaches reported during 2022/23. The Governance Team continue to analyse
breaches and identify actions to improve procedures and make recommendations to
enhance controls. The root cause of breaches during 2022/23 has been data input error,
and where errors have occurred, feedback and if necessary additional training, is
provided to Managers and Fund employees by the Governance Team.

The Fund continue to ensure that all staff undertake relevant data protection training in
addition to the Council’s mandatory training, it is noted that the number of breaches in
comparison to the amount of member data held is comparably low and is not out of line
with other areas of reporting across the Council.

In addition to the monitoring and management of data protection, the Fund has adopted
a Cyber Resilience Strategy which outlines its management of potential cyber threat
through regular penetration testing and monitoring of security measures. The Fund is
alive to industry concerns and incidents of cyber threat/breach and continues to monitor
the assurance of its third-party suppliers, and in particular, work with CWC IT in the
protection of its data and systems. There have been no incidents of cyber breaches this
quarter.

Freedom of Information (FOI) Requests

The Fund received six FOI requests during the quarter, five were responded to in
accordance with the internal deadlines set by CWC, with one being granted an extension
to the internal deadline to allow information to be validated. As previously reported,
requests are administered by CWC as the administering authority. CWC are ultimately
responsible for responding to requests and set internal deadlines for the Fund to submit
information to them prior to the statutory deadline. This allows sufficient time for CWC to
check and validate responses before information is sent to the requester. Whilst this
extension to internal deadlines was granted, all requests received by the Fund have been
responded to within the statutory deadline. The Fund continue to liaise with CWC to
ensure that requests are responded to correctly and within required timescales.

During 2022/23 the Fund has received 16 FOI requests, compared to 21 received during
2021/22. As previously reported, the Fund continues to see an increase in the complexity
of FOI requests received with the majority of requests continuing to relate to investment
holdings data and responsible investment. These types of requests are not unique to the
Fund and are regularly submitted to several LGPS Funds and partner organisations. The
Scheme Advisory Board have recently provided advice to LGPS Funds to support their
responses to FOI requests, details of which have been included as a background paper
to this report.

Page 26



5.3

5.3.1

5.3.2

5.3.3

6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

7.0

7.1

This report is PUBLIC

Subject Access Requests (SARs)

The number of SAR requests received continued to increase, with nine requests received
in total. All requests were responded to in accordance with the set deadlines.

Under the Data Protection Act, members are entitled to request copies of all the
information held on their pension record. Most recently, the fund has seen these requests
come from third parties acting on behalf of members who have previously transferred out
of the LGPS and have later discovered that they were subject to a potential pension
scam. The Fund has previously reported on the work we are doing in line with the
Pension Regulator’s Pension Scam Awareness campaign and ensures all members are
kept informed of any personal information requests regarding their data. Authority from
the member is always sought prior to providing information to third parties.

This year the Fund has received 25 SAR’s in total, 21 of the requests received were from
third parties.

Investors In People

This quarter, the Fund undertook its 3-year reaccreditation of Investors In People,
retaining for the 9t year running (and 3" cycle of accreditation) the Gold Standard
accreditation.

Investors In People is an accreditation that is known globally across both the public and
private sector, with less than 1 in 5 of those accredited achieving the Gold Standard. The
accreditation provides assurance to the Fund and its Governing Bodies on how we invest
in our people, both in terms of training and development, but also the environment and
culture we create which ensures a highly motivated and committed workforce.

The Investors in People assessment framework provides a clear benchmark against the
very best performing companies, with in-depth employee interviews supported by fund-
wide surveys, and key indicators of performance combining to not only ‘score’ our
performance, but also inform ideas and focus areas to drive further improvement into the
future.

Assessing the Fund’s development over the last 3 years, the Fund'’s assessor noted that
our people believe the Fund to be a great employer, with high levels of employee
satisfaction, supported by a strong and engaging culture which empowers individuals and
supports inclusive development. The Fund will continue to build on these achievements
ensuring its performance against the standard grows year on year, with each annual
review pending the 3-year reaccreditation in 2027.

Governing Body Training

Governing Body training events undertaken during the reporting period included the
following topics, with analysis undertaken to ensure the programme complies with

Page 27



7.2

7.3

8.0

8.1

8.2

8.3

9.0

9.1

This report is PUBLIC

knowledge areas identified in the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Governing Body Knowledge and Skills Framework;

e An update on emerging risks and the 2022 Actuarial Valuation, including an update
on the Fund’s Funding Strategy Statement (FSS) review.

¢ An update on the review of the Fund’s Investment Strategy Statement (ISS).

¢ An update on Responsible Investment, including information regarding the LGPS
Climate Change and Risk Consultation.

¢ An investment Markets Update.

e Updates and media roundups issued by the Governance team.

Training hours continue to be recorded by the Governance Team and reported in the
Fund’s KPls, and the online learning library for Governing Body members continues to be
updated regularly and provides a variety of training material (including from recent
events).

The Fund has a comprehensive Governing Body training programme which provides
induction for new members together with more detailed information on complex LGPS
issues, it is designed to grow the knowledge of members as their term of office develops.

Regulatory Updates - McCloud Remedy Consultation

On 30 May 2023 the Department for Levelling Up Housing and Communities (DLUHC)
published a second consultation concerning the McCloud remedy. As previously
reported to the Board, the McCloud remedy relates to a successful legal challenge in
2018, (in “the McCloud ruling”) that argued that the protections granted as part of
changes to LGPS regulations in 2014 were unlawful under the grounds of age
discrimination.

In 2019, Government stated it would make amendments to all Public Sector Pension
Scheme regulations (including the LGPS) to remove the discrimination and following
consideration during 2019/20, a consultation on the proposed changes to remedy the
LGPS was issued in July 2020.

DLUHC is now consulting on new approaches to certain areas of the remedy which
reflect the responses received as part of the 2020 consultation and are more closely
aligned to the LGPS. The consultation also includes topics which were not covered by
the 2020 consultation. The Fund is currently reviewing the consultation and is
considering its response.

Financial Implications
Effective monitoring of the management arrangements, facilitated by timely disclosure of

information, is required to ensure the Fund is well placed to ensure the delivery of its
administration, funding and investment strategy. Poor management of the Fund’s data,

Page 28



9.2

10.0

10.1

11.0

12.0

12.1

13.0

13.1

14.0

14.2

14.3

This report is PUBLIC

financial information and assets can result in additional costs and detract from
investment returns.

Failure by the Fund to meet statutory requirements of effective governance and
administration could result in fines imposed by the Pensions Regulator (tPR).

Legal Implications

Failure by the Fund to comply with legislation and/or statutory guidance can result in
enforcement action and fines from both tPR and the Courts via judicial review.

Equalities Implications

There are no direct equalities implications.
Other Potential Implications

There are no other potential implications.
Schedule of Background Papers

DLUHC McCloud Consultation: ‘McCloud’ remedy in the LGPS — supplementary issues
and scheme reqgulations - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)

Schedule of Appendices
Appendix A: Risk Register

Appendix B: Key Performance Indicators

Page 29


https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/mccloud-remedy-in-the-lgps-supplementary-issues-and-scheme-regulations
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/mccloud-remedy-in-the-lgps-supplementary-issues-and-scheme-regulations

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A: West Midlands Pension Fund — Strategic Risk Register

May/June 2023

Risk Risk Theme
Ref

Governance /
Regulatory

T¢ obed

Risk Title

Increasing focus on
Governing Body
Knowledge and Skills
requirement

Current Drivers

Pending statutory guidance from
Scheme Advisory Board (SAB)
and the Pensions Regulator on
level of knowledge and
understanding linked to review of
requirements set out in CIPFA
Knowledge and Skills

The potential for change in our
Governing Body memberships
following Annual Cycle may
impact established knowledge
and understanding.

Post Control
Risk
Assessment

Pre-control
Risk
Assessment

Corporate Priority

People and Customers
Compliance and Risk

Stewardship

Audit and provision of
external assurance

Increased challenge on
independent assurance from
employers’ auditors together with
a lack of consistency in approach
from audit firms on requirements

2021/2022 accounts yet to be
signed off (national not local
issue) which may require
additional assurance (resource)
from the Fund’s accounts.

Compliance and Risk

Potential for increased
regulatory change from
a number of LGPS
regulatory bodies which
may see a divergence in

The LGPS is awaiting a number
of national body consultations
(some delayed from previous
years, e.g., tPR code of practice),
and some new consultations

Compliance and Risk

Risk
Outcome
post

control

Actions/Mitigations

The Fund has an established
training policy and
programme which seeks to
address the requirements the
regulatory knowledge and
skills requirements.

The programme seeks to
develop understanding over
the period of a Governing
body member’s appointment
enhancing knowledge during
term of membership with in-
house support provided by
the Governance Team.

Officer
responsible
for Action

HGRA

The Fund engages with
employers’ auditors to
understand the requirements
needed to provide assurance
and works collaboratively
with its employer groups to
develop efficiency in the
process while delivering
value add services.

The Fund continues to
engage with City of
Wolverhampton Council and
Grant Thornton on the
completion of year end
accounts.

HoF

ADP

The Fund’s Senior Managers
are members of and
participate on several
national working groups and
policy committees which feed

ALL




2€ abed

Risk Risk Theme

Ref

Risk Title

Current Drivers

Corporate Priority

Risk
Outcome
post
control

Post Control
Risk
Assessment

Pre-control
Risk
Assessment

Actions/Mitigations

Officer
responsible
for Action

Operational
Resilience

interpretation and relating to current issues (noting into the discussion and help

practice across the a further consultation was shape focus and outcomes.

LGPS. released on McCloud in May) These roles further enable

the Fund to understand
potential change and
supports future planning to
aid in meeting evolving
requirements.

Increasing focus on Increased reporting from Compliance and risk The Fund continues to ALL

reporting and oversight | regulatory/national bodies in enhance its reporting on data

with evolving standards | areas of Investment, climate, information with ongoing

for governance and funding, customer servicing ﬁ focussed resource to achieve

reporting. together with the need for more key data targets, and support
common industry standards of with data focussed projects
reporting will require the Fund such as McCloud, Climate
and its suppliers to enhance data Reporting and Stewardship.
reporting and management tools.

Industry wide resourcing | Leading to delays or lack of Compliance and Risk The Fund continues to ALL

constraints across the knowledge/experience in wider engage with national bodies

LGPS and wider LGPS, resulting in “short focus” ‘ﬁ and groups to support

pensions industry change. understanding of local issues

including regulatory and within the LGPS.

governing bodies.

Stewardship Increasing responsibilities of the | People and Customers The Fund is a signhatory to ALL
Fund as a steward of members the Stewardship code and
benefits as well as assets (e.g. Compliance and Risk continues to build on the
transfer out, scam and fraud reporting and learning.
management, ESG factors) Stewardship

The Fund is a signatory to
the Pension Regulator’'s
Pension Scam Pledge.
The Fund has a
comprehensive employee
training programme that
supports safeguarding of
members.

The resilience in our With a number of changes on the | Operational resilience The Fund is actively working | HOPCs

human capital and our horizon, from business change to across all departments on

ability to adequately, regulatory change, the ability of People and customers employee lifecycle from
resource, train, and the Fund to ensure its people Recruitment and OD.

retain. resource is able to adapt and Training is both bespoke per
keep pace will be key to ensuring department, role profile and
successful transitions. individually for employee




e¢ abed

Risk Risk Theme
Ref

Risk Title

Current Drivers

Corporate Priority

The resilience of our
third-party suppliers

Ensuring our partners are able to
meet our ongoing business
change needs.

Operational resilience

People and customers

Cyber and Disaster
Recovery

Ensuring our systems and those
of our suppliers can withstand
disaster and recover to provide
continuity in our service delivery.

Operational resilience

People and customers

3 Value Added

Servicing

Keeping up with pace of
change while limiting
impacts on customers

Several business and regulatory
change have the potential to
change the way the Fund’s
customers will be required to
interact and service their statutory
duties.

People and Customers

Compliance and Risk

Ability of Fund to
maintain and evolve to
meet growing customer
expectations.

Potential reputational damage
should the Fund be unable to
meet customer servicing
requirements.

People and Customers

Operational Resilience

Pre-control
Risk
Assessment

Post Control
Risk
Assessment

Risk
Outcome
post
control

Actions/Mitigations

growth and future
development at the Fund.

These are complemented
with our employee
development plans and
appraisal process, which is
monitored throughout the
year as per the goals set.

Officer
responsible
for Action

Through effectively managing
our contracts and supplier
performance, we are able to
challenge their ability to cope
with change and respond to
our growing business and
customer needs.

ALL

The Fund undertakes an
annual assurance and testing
programme of all its IT
systems and suppliers,
ensuring all are capable of
identifying and responding to
potential external threats.

HOPs
HGRA

The Fund has dedicated
member and employer
services teams with an active
engagement programme that
not only seeks to support
customers, but also provides
opportunities for customers
to engage the Fund on
issues relevant to them,
enabling effective review and
build out of services to
ensure all processes are built
out as efficiently as possible.

ALL

The Fund continues to review
its customer offering ensuring
it is adaptable to changing
demands.

ADP




Officer
responsible
for Action

Post Control Risk
Risk Outcome
Assessment post

Pre-control
Risk
Assessment

Risk Theme Risk Title Current Drivers Corporate Priority Actions/Mitigations

7€ obed

Funding and
Economic
Environment

Market volatility

Global markets reacting to
geopolitical issues and short-term
volatility impacting longer term
outlook.

Investment
implementation

Operational Resilience

Stewardship

Implementation of the
Fund’s Revised
Investment Strategy

The focus and scale of change in
implementing the new strategy.

control

The Fund is a long-term
investor taking a strategic
approach to asset allocation
and building resilience across
the investment portfolio in
order to help manage the
impact of short-term market
volatility.

The Fund actively monitors
its asset positioning and
broader markets and has
undertaken a fundamental
review of its investment
strategy in conjunction with
the triennial actuarial
valuation with updates being
reflected in the Investment
Strategy Statement.

Investment
implementation

Employer Risk

Employer funding in the current
environment, leading to risk of
termination/exit/restructures
(including scheme wide merger)
which have the potential to
impact cashflows

The Fund continues to work
with investment advisors to
ensure the new strategy is
delivered

ADI

People and Customers

Compliance and risk

The Fund is sensitive to the
issues facing employers and
has undertaken a broad
engagement programme as
part of the 2022 actuarial
valuation. The key risk being
potential employer default on
liabilities through non-
payment of contributions
and/or heightened
cessations. The Fund is in
the process of reviewing our
employer exit strategy for
consultation later in the year.
The Fund continues to review
employer covenant,
maintaining and monitoring a
‘watchlist’ of the employers
representing the greatest
risk, with associated
engagement with employers.

ADP




Gg abed

Officers Responsible for Action

EDOP Executive Director of Pensions

ADI Assistant Director Investments

ADIMS Assistant Director Investment
Management and Stewardship

ADP Assistant Director Pensions

HOPs Head of Operations

HGRA Head of Governance, Risk and
Assurance

HOF Head of Finance

HoPCS Head of People and Corporate

Services




This page is intentionally left blank



West Midlands Pensi

West Midlands Pension Fund - Key Performance Indicators (KPls)

Operations - Benefit Operations Processes

KPI Summary KPI Description Frequency  KPITarget 21/22 22/23
i e Notify member of Refund within 10 days of receiving required Monthly oy o e
= a
IRefund Payment L enyat Monthly 90% 98% 98%
5 [Retirement Quate within 15 days of Monthly. 30% 99% 99%
s Notification of the within 5 days of receiving member
g [Retirement Notification form (Retirement Notlfication) Monthly 0% 83% 91%
5 | lump sum and within 5 days of
£ ! Ireceung etecionform (Retcement) S| % | 9%
Issue quote letter 30 days of the members eligible payment date
g Deferred Retirement Quote et ek b Monthly 90% 78% 92%
B |peferred Retirement Notification ik s of 1 stk It Wit S e of vecelulog iniinbae Manthly a0% 96% 95%
g e B R e ik el Mot i1 o
lump sum and within § days of
E Deterred Retirement Payment g locti i oclbred ot : Monthly 0% 94% 88%
& = Transfer in quotations processed within 10 days of recefving all the Miorshiy = . -
&
- Transfer in 1o be notified to the
E» Jrranster in Payment e i i Monthly 0% 93% 97%
% [rranster ouquote i ST Monthly 0% 99% 100%
3 o N
= e Transfer out payments processed within 20 days of receiving required Monthly ok p— p—
Deaths Acknowledgement death s receiving the notification |  Monthly 30% 94% 92%
Deaths Notification of Benefits Payable e 1o ol 3 Manthly a0% 95% 96%
[Deaths Payment wil 0 8gs of rocetes ot o)) Monthly 90% 99% 97%
Pension Services - Service Calls
KPi Summary KPI Description Frequency  KPITarget
customer Services Calls
[Emplayer Services Calls Monthly 85% 95% 96%

Pension Services - Customer Satisfactian
KPI Deseription KPl Target

Customer satisfaction - feedback from events and interaction with
members

Sum of Differance
KP1 Summary KPI Description Frequency  KPI Target
B0
Hcteati 10817 10975
year.

Operations - Pension Partal Avallability

Quarterly

Customer Engagement and Communication

KPi Description Frequency KPI Target

KPI Description KPl Target

c
2
E | All IDRP cases completed within 2 months Monthly. 81%
5
N Pecsion services - Complaints Monitoring
S
S
R 7 s KP1 Description a2 || 223
& IMember Complaints kg Wi e chays of Manthly 100% 92% 86%
£ receipt
wploy within

5, Employer Complaints :_ o Maonthly 1008 100% 100%
&
L8 o cicr Services - Complaints Manitoring
E KP Summary KP1 Description Frequency Pl Target 21/22 | 2223
% |Member complaintsless than 1% N tobe less than 1% Monthly an v v
3

Employer Complaints less than 1% iy bor A b Ras K sl pky s Manthly <an v v

Governance - Effective Decision Making
KPI Summary KPI Description Frequency KPl Target
o [ and Board Biannually | 22 hours pp ‘ 100% 100%

Governance - Effective Decision Making

x
£ KPI Description Frequency  KPlTarget 21/22
E |Total attendance rate of Pensions Committee and Board
g
E Governance - Statutory Respanse Timeliness
g K1 Summary KPI Description Frequency
9 |combined statutory Timeliness Fu 2 . Monthly 1008 93% 90%
Governance - Data Breaches Recorded
KPI Summary KPI Dascription Frequency  KPITarget
Decrease in data breaches recorded A
Reduction
Governance - Data Quality
B KPI Description KPI Target
5
Monthiy 98% 98%
@
&
; Operations - Data Improvement
@
[ kPt summary KPI Description Frequency  KPITarget 21/22 22/23
2 Jaes ABS produced for 100% of active member records Annually 100% 93% 91%
a
pss for 100% of records ‘ Annually | 100% 99% 100%

KPI Description Frequency  KPITarget 21/22 22/23

P ————r—

* Contributions reconciled and allocated at time of reporting.



This page is intentionally left blank



This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda Item No: 9

CITY or
WOLVERHAMPTON
COUNCIL

Pensions Board
04 July 2023

Report title

Originating service

Accountable employee

Report to be/has been
considered by

Internal Audit Annual Report 2022 — 2023

Pensions Services

Amanda MacDonald Client Lead Auditor
Email Amanda.macdonald@wolverhampton.qgov.uk

Rachel Brothwood Executive Director of Pensions
Email Rachel.brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk

Recommendations for action:

The Pensions Board is asked to note:

1. The internal audit annual report for 2022 — 2023

Page 39



mailto:Amanda.macdonald@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:Rachel.brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk

1.0

1.1

2.0

2.1

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

4.0

41

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Purpose

To provide the Board with the outcome of the work programme for internal audit for 2022
—2023.

Background

The role of internal audit is to provide the Executive Director of Pensions, Section 151
Officer, the Pensions Committee and the Local Pensions Board with an independent and
objective opinion on the Fund’s risk management, internal controls and governance and
its effectiveness in achieving the Fund’s agreed objectives. To provide this opinion, we
are required to review the risk management and governance process.

Internal Audit Annual Report 2022 — 2023.

A copy of the outcome report is attached at Appendix A.

The report confirms that no significant audit issues have arisen throughout the year and
most importantly, where weaknesses / improvements have been identified during the
course of audit work, management have agreed recommendations.

In presenting the report at high level, the Fund notes that the commentary is a snapshot
of the work undertaken by the teams throughout the year in building controls and
compliance which support key service delivery. Since the time of writing the report,
actions undertaken by service areas have seen the maijority of recommendations
implemented with others ongoing in light of wider fund priorities.

Financial Implications

Internal audit is a key part of the Fund’s governance and financial control framework, and
seeks to provide assurance that the Fund’s systems, processes and controls are
operating effectively and in support of the Fund’s overall aims and objectives.

Legal Implications

This report contains no direct legal implications.

Equalities Implications

This report contains no equalities implications.

Environmental Implications

This report contains no environmental implications.

Page 40



This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

8.0 All Other Implications

8.1  This report contains no other implications to consider.
9.0 Schedule of Background Papers

9.1  None.

10.0 Schedule of Appendices

10.1 Appendix A — Annual Audit Report 2022-23

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



This report is PUBLIC Internal Audit Annual

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] Appendix A Report 2022-23

West Midlands Pension Fund
Internal Audit Annual Report
2022-2023

o
CITY oF i

COUNCIL



This report is PUBLIC Internal Audit Annual

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] Report 2022-23

Our internal audit work for the period from 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023 was carried out in
accordance with the approved Internal Audit Plan. The plan was constructed in such a way
as to allow us to make a statement on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Fund’s
governance, risk management and control processes. In this way our annual report provides
one element of evidence that helps to confirm the control environment of the Fund and
supports, amongst others, the Annual Governance Statement for the City of Wolverhampton
Council which it is required to make to accompany its annual financial statements. This is
only one aspect of the assurances available to the Fund as to the adequacy of governance,
risk management and control processes. Other sources of assurance on which the Fund may
rely, could include:

The work of the External Auditors (Grant Thornton)

The result of any quality accreditation

The outcome of any visits by His Majesty’s Revenues and Customs (HMRC)

Other pieces of consultancy or third- party work designed to alert the Fund to areas of
improvement

e Other external review agencies

As stated above, the framework of assurance comprises a variety of sources and not only the
internal audit service. However, Internal Audit holds a unique role as the only independent
source of assurance on all internal controls. Internal Audit is therefore central to this
framework of assurance and is required to acquire an understanding not only of the Fund’s
risks and its overall whole control environment but also all sources of assurance where
appropriate.

In this way, Internal Audit will be able to indicate whether key controls are adequately
designed and effectively operated, regardless of the sources of that assurance.

The definition of internal audit, as described in the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards,
is “Internal Auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity
designed to add value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an organisation
accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and
improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and governance processes.”

Internal audit activity is organisationally independent and further details behind the
framework within which internal audit operates, can be found in the internal audit charter.

Executive Summary

As the providers of internal audit to West Midlands Pension Fund, we are required to provide
the Executive Director, Pensions Committee and Pensions Board with an opinion on the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Fund’s governance, risk management and control
processes. In giving our opinion it should be noted that assurance can never be absolute.
The most that internal audit can provide is reasonable assurance that there are no major
weaknesses in governance, risk management and control processes. We have considered:

¢ All audits undertaken for the year ended 31 March 2023.
e Any follow-up action taken in respect of audits from previous periods.
e Any key recommendations not accepted by management and the consequent risks.

Page 44 wolverhampton.gov.uk



This report is PUBLIC Internal Audit Annual

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] Report 2022-23

e Any limitations which may have been placed on the scope of internal audit.
e The Fund’s Risk Register.

Internal Audit Opinion
We have conducted our audits in accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.
Within the context of the parameters set out above, our opinion is as follows:

Based on the work undertaken during the year, the implementation by management of the
recommendations made, and the assurance made available to the Fund by other providers
as well as directly by Internal Audit, Internal Audit can provide reasonable assurance that
the Fund has adequate and effective governance, risk management and internal control
processes.

In reaching our opinion, the following factors were taken into particular consideration:

e We have had unfettered access to all records and employees during 2022-2023.

e The need for management to plan appropriate and timely action to implement our
and other assurance providers’ recommendations.

e Key areas of significance identified as a result of our audit work performed in the
year.

Compliance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards

The internal audit service follows the Public Sector

St Internal Audit Standards, and the Code of Ethics that form
ublic Sector Internal

Audit Standards part of the standards,

Appiying the 1A Intermatianal Standards to
the UK Public Sector

Summary of work completed

A detailed written report and action plan is prepared and issued for every review where
appropriate. The responsible employee is asked to respond to the report by completing and
returning an action plan. This response shows what actions have been taken or are planned
in relation to each recommendation.

Further, an audit opinion is provided for each report issued, this sets out our overall opinion
regarding the control environment for the area audited. The opinion provided will be one of
the following options:

Immediate action is required to  Significant gaps, weaknesses or  There is a generally sound A sound system of

address fundamental gaps, non-compliance were identified. system of governance, risk governance, risk management
weaknesses or non- Improvement is required to the management and control in and control exists, with
compliance identified. The system of governance, risk place. Some issues, non- internal controls operating
system of governance, risk management and control to compliance or scope for effectively and being
management and control is effectively manage risks to the improvement were identified consistently applied to support
inadequate to effectively achievement of objectives inthe  which may put at risk the the achievement of objectives
manage risks to the area audited. achievement of objectives in the  in the area audited.
achievement of objectives in area audited

the area audited.

Page 45 wolverhampton.gov.uk



yn'AoB uojdweyanjom

©

Aoueynsuo) - /N - - - - - Juswysijge}se Jajsibal syoenuod M

Alojoejsies / / P ¢ - |0JjUOD JUNODDE Yueqg mu
Aioyoejsines S S ¥ L - Burioyuow J01Bp 92INISS JSed
Aioyoejsines 8 8 8 - - suonebajap -Apoq Buluianog
|enueysqng L L L - - PNOIDOIA - Juswabeuew eje(q

enuelsqng 3 - = Juswabebus Johojdwg

2 2
pajdsaoe [elo] | u®al9 Jaquiy
aoueinsse Jo [aAe | 19QWINN eale a|qelpny

SUOIBPUSLILWIOISY

"Jeak |eloueuly £202-220Z @y} bulnp pajs|dwod alem smainal Jipne Buimo|jo) ay
pajojdwoo smainal jipne jo Alewuwins

€¢-220z Hoday LA3IMIVIN ATIAILOTLOHd LONI

[enuuy JIpny [eusau| 2I1gnd s! Hodai siyL




This report is PUBLIC Internal Audit Annual

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] Report 2022-23

Key findings and recommendations

Employer engagement

An audit of employer engagement was undertaken which focused on whether the Fund was
delivering its employer engagement strategy and how the engagement of employers is
monitored. The Fund’'s employer engagement strategy was examined against other LGPS funds
where appropriate. One minor enhancement was made, to clarify the inter-relationships between
documents relating to employer engagement.

Examples of good practice were noted, including:

e The Fund’'s Communication Policy included all LGPS regulatory requirements.

o With regard to the Communication Policy, Customer Engagement Strategy, Customer
Engagement Plan and Employer Engagement Roadmap:

o The documents were approved by Pensions Committee.

o Employers were informed about them through email and an employer briefing
note.

o They were published on the Fund’s website.

e An action log had been established to monitor feedback from employers.

e An annual survey of employers had been undertaken, with feedback shared with
employers.

« Fund responsibilities stated in the Pensions Administration Strategy with regard to
employer engagement were monitored — through monitoring the Customer Engagement
Plan, and through KPI reports presented to senior managers. Testing of a sample of
five scheduled events confirmed that in four cases that they had taken place. Where
the event did not take place, it was appropriately recorded on monitoring records that it
had been postponed.

» Regular reports on employer engagement were presented to Pensions Committee and
Board. Testing confirmed that updates had been presented to all Pensions Committee
and Board meetings held over the last twelve months. A similar level of transparent
reporting was not identified with two other comparable LGPS funds.

e Senior managers received reports through KPI reporting, monitoring of the compliments
and complaints registers, which include employer engagement activities.

e A benchmarking exercise had been undertaken by CEM, an independent specialist and
pension administration benchmarking and research organisation, noted the Fund’s
good work regarding employer engagement. It highlighted that the Fund used more
service targets and held a higher number of meetings with employers than its peer

group.

Data management - McCloud

A review of the arrangements for the data management project regarding the McCloud judgement, to
date, was completed. The McCloud judgement identified that there was age discrimination for some
members as a result of public service pensions services reforms in 2014 and 2015. This judgement
applied to LGPS schemes. The audit reviewed the approach that the Fund has undertaken in
addressing the data collection exercise, with reference to the Scheme Advisory Board (SAB)
publication “McCloud data collection exercise — guidance for administrators” as appropriate. The
Fund estimates that approximately 75,000 members are in scope for review, but it is anticipated that
the review will result in an increased pension for only a small percentage of these members.

Page 47 wolverhampton.gov.uk



This report is PUBLIC Internal Audit Annual

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] Report 2022-23

At the time that the audit was undertaken, no significant issues were identified regarding the internal
management arrangements of the McCloud project. However, this does not necessarily guarantee
the successful delivery of the McCloud project, as the Fund awaits relevant regulations to be issued.
This will be dependent on the continued deployment of good practices and controls currently in place;
together with the impact of other external factors that the Fund has limited control over but is keeping
under review through the risk register.

During our review we identified examples of good practice relating to:

e Documentation which presented three delivery options for the McCloud project to the
Programme Board was observed, and a preferred option was approved.

e Project governance was established through the Programme Board, Project Team and
supporting workstream groups.

e A project risk status and a risk register were established and have been reviewed regularly.

e The Fund adhered to the advice issued by the Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) for the data
collection exercise. It was also noted that a member of the Fund’s Senior Management Team
was part of the SAB team which issued the guidance.

e The Fund was involved in establishing standard templates for data collection with the SAB and
has used these in practice.

o Key workstreams were established, including communication, to ensure employers were
informed and supported during the data collection exercise.

e Monthly highlight reports were produced which provide regular detailed statistics on employer
submission, files in process, and completions.

e An approach on how to deal with non-responsive employers had been established.

e Reporting / updates to all key parties - Programme Board, trustees, employers and members -
had been undertaken.

Governing body - delegations

An audit of governing body delegations was undertaken. The review examined the responsibilities
and operational arrangements for the delegations to the Fund’s governing bodies (Pensions
Committee and Pensions Board), with reference to the Pensions Regulator (tPR), the Scheme
Advisory Board (SAB), CIPFA and other comparable LGPS pension funds, as appropriate.

No significant issues were identified. However, we did identify a number of minor issues mainly
relating to the completion of work to demonstrate compliance with tPR, SAB and CIPFA’s
requirements. It Is acknowledged that the Fund’s work in this area had been affected by the delay in
the publication of finalised requirements.

During our review we identified the following examples of good practice:

e Responsibility for those acting as the ‘scheme manager’ had been formally defined, with the

Pensions Committee been allocated this responsibility in its terms of reference.

A Pensions Board had been established.

Both governing bodies had established quorums.

The Fund had established a representation policy.

Gap analysis had been undertaken by the Fund for tPR singular code of practice, SAB good

governance review and CIPFA’s LGPS knowledge and skills framework.

e Detailed records on individual committee/board members and records of what training, linked to
CIPFA requirements, were maintained.

e Transparent reporting process through the Pensions Committee and Board, and also through the
minimal use of presenting reports with restricted access.

Page 48 wolverhampton.gov.uk



This report is PUBLIC Internal Audit Annual

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] Report 2022-23

Past service deficit monitoring

An audit review of past service deficit monitoring was undertaken. In accordance with LGPS
Regulations 2013 (62), the Fund collects a secondary contribution rate (past service deficit) from
employers, in accordance with the rates and adjustments certificate issued by the valuer every three
years. The audit examined what controls the Fund had to ensure the amount collected is accurate
and paid in a timely manner, and what escalation procedures were in place in the event of non-
payment. The value of past service deficits (PSD) detailed in the valuation report for the years
2020/21 to 2022/23 was £354.5M.

We noted one amber recommendation which related to the over-reliance on spreadsheets to monitor
PSD, with limited controls to prevent/identify errors. Some minor issues were raised, including the
clarification of employer responsibilities, and additional reconciliation work.

Examples of good practice identified were as follows:

e Support to understand the results of the valuation process, which includes a statement of
amounts due as PSD was provided to employers through workshops, individual meetings and
answers to frequently asked questions.

¢ From a sample of ten employers, it was confirmed that:

o Payments were made and allocated on a timely basis. It was noted in particular that
the allocation of payments since September 2022 had been undertaken in a shorter
timescale.

o Payments were accurate. Where an early payment had been made, the discount had
been accurately calculated and employers had paid the balance due before the relevant
30 April (three employers). For two district authorities who had made a prepayment,
there was a minor discrepancy resulting from roundings, but this was less than 0.07%
of the PSD value due and is not considered material. Where the employers had not
made prepayment, all five employers had either made regular monthly payments (four
employers) or paid an invoice raised (for one non-active employer) which either resulted
in part or full payment of the amount due.

e The Finance team added notes to payments awaiting allocation within Business World.

e Regular monitoring of the current PSD due was undertaken and the Fund had a clear view of
total balances outstanding and which employers these relate to.

Bank account control

An audit of the control of operational bank accounts was undertaken. The audit reviewed the
operational NatWest and HSBC bank accounts used by the Fund and examined the management of
the accounts. The review also considered the cashflow forecasting processes used at the Fund.
Reference was made to the Fund’s Treasury Management Policy where appropriate.

Three amber issues were identified, arising from the following:

e Some key parameters in treasury management policy were not detailed, with the monitoring of
compliance on other parameters needing to be formalised.

e The liquidity cash balance of £50M for operational accounts was exceeded by investment
activity on occasions.

e Whilst in year reconciliations of the ICON system and HSBC are complete there are
outstanding historic differences to resolve.

Page 49 wolverhampton.gov.uk



This report is PUBLIC Internal Audit Annual

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] Report 2022-23

While we highlighted the above, we were able to provide a satisfactory opinion rating as the Fund
was already aware of these issues and was in the process of addressing them. A number of minor
issues, including suggestions to amend the format of the cashflow spreadsheet and improvements to
monitoring records, were also made.

Examples of good practice were noted, including:

e The Fund was undertaking a review of all its bank accounts to assess their need, determine
their purpose, and update signatory arrangements where required. It was also in the process
of assigning responsibilities for duties across Finance, Fund accounting and Investments.

e Cash needs were monitored by Finance and communicated to the Investment team.

e Access controls in both banking partners required dual authorisation of payments.

e Access to the banks was removed as employees leave or change roles. At the time of audit,
testing confirmed that all employees with access to the banks were current employees with
appropriate access.

e Smart devices to access the bank were retained by the Fund in a safe and were checked
annually, plus when devices were returned/issued to employees.

e Regular reconciliations of bank accounts were undertaken on a monthly basis.

On-going assurance work

As part of ongoing support to the Fund, we completed 30 credit checks using CreditSafe to review
individual organisations financial stability when seeking admission to the Fund.

We continue to act as the Fund'’s key contact for the National Fraud initiative along with providing
details of initiatives put in place, in order to both raise awareness of, and tackle fraud.

Further, we are members of the LGPSC internal audit working group. In conjunction with our partner
fund’s internal auditors, we contribute to the internal audit programme of work.

Follow up of previous recommendations

We also continue to monitor the implementation of previous key recommendations. An annual review
of agreed key actions from reviews was undertaken and reported. No areas of concern were raised
as a result of the follow up programme.

Page 50 wolverhampton.gov.uk



This report is PUBLIC

Agenda Item No: 10

CITY oF

worvernameron Pensions Board
cOUNCit 104 July 2023

Report title Statement of Accounts 2022/23

Originating service Pension Services
Accountable employee Christopher Manning Head of Finance
Email christopher.manning@wolverhampton.gov.uk
Report to be/has been Rachel Brothwood Executive Director of Pensions
considered by Email rachel.brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk

Recommendation for action:
The Pensions Board are asked to note:

1. The process for preparing the Fund’s 2023 Statement of Accounts and Annual Report
together with the process for approval and external audit.

Page 51


mailto:christopher.manning@wolverhampton.gov.uk

1.0

1.1

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

3.0
3.1

3.2

This report is PUBLIC

Purpose

The purpose of this report is to update the Board on the preparation and approval of the
draft Statement of Accounts for the year ending 31 March 2023.

Background

LGPS funds are required by law to produce an Annual Statement of Accounts. These
form part of the wider Administering Local Authority’s accounts and are subject to Local
Government Accounts and Audit regulations and publication deadlines. They are also
included in the LGPS Fund’s own Annual Report and Accounts for audit and publication
by 1 December each year.

In preparing their accounts, Funds must have regard to proper practice and to any
guidance which has the effective standing of ‘statutory guidance’. These are for the
Statement of Accounts, “The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom 2022/23’ (Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy (CIPFA))
(‘the Code’).

In line with the above, as well as being published in the Fund’s own Annual Report, the
West Midlands Pension Fund accounts are included in the Statement of Accounts of the
the City of Wolverhampton Council. In line with the Local Government Pension Scheme
(Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009, the transactions and
balances of the Fund are completely separate and not combined with those of the
Administering Authority. Monies held by the Fund are for the purposes of the pension
fund only.

The Board will receive a further report in the Autumn presenting the final version of the
Statement of Accounts, along with the draft Annual Report and the findings of the
external auditor’'s work including their audit opinion. Under the City of Wolverhampton
Council’s constitution, formal approval of the audited Statement of Accounts rests with its
Audit Committee; this does not apply to the other parts of the Annual Report, which will
be presented to Pensions Committee for approval.

Draft Statement of Accounts 2022/23

The purpose of the Statement of Accounts is to report the Fund’s financial performance
for the year and its balances and reserves at the year-end. There are two primary
statements: the Fund Account, which is concerned with transactions during the year and
the Net Assets Statement, which reports balances at the year-end. These are
supplemented by a series of notes to the accounts which expand on items in the primary
statements or provide further information about the Fund.

The draft Statement of Accounts show the estimated value of the Fund decreased by
£0.6bn over the year due to changes in the value of investment assets (£0.3bn) and by
benefits paid and expenditure in excess of contribution income (£0.3bn) during the
financial year.

Page 52



3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

4.0

41

4.2

This report is PUBLIC

Overall, during 2022/23, volatility in investment markets resulted in them falling overall
despite gains in the later part of the year, and contribution receipts were in line with the
previous year as a result of advance payments received from employers during 2020/21.
Cash receipts for advance contribution payments were fully recognised in the 2020/21
Statement of Accounts.

Net assets of the Fund at 31 March 2023 stood at £19.7bn, down from £20.3bn at 31
March 2022. This comprises investment assets of £19.4bn, an insurance contract valued
at £160m and working balances of £72m.

The Fund has taken the option under the Code to disclose the present value of all Fund
employer pension liabilities in a note to the accounts. This value, calculated on an
International Accounting Standard Nineteen (IAS 19) basis, stood at £19.8bn at 31 March
2023. This is a decrease on the 31 March 2022 figure of £27.5bn due to adjustments to
the actuarial assumptions.

The draft Statement of Accounts for the West Midlands Pension Fund is attached at
Appendix A and has now been passed across to the external auditors.

Investment Management Expenses 2022/23

CIPFA guidance, introduced in 2014, requires the disclosure of all investment
management costs including fees, which are deducted at source by external investment
managers. Total investment management expenses reported in the draft accounts for
2022/23 are £96 million, compared to £107 million reported for 2021/22.

The Fund continues to take a transparent approach with investment management costs
using industry-wide cost capture templates to obtain even higher levels of cost
transparency from the investment managers, most notably in the recording of
performance fees and transaction costs associated with turnover within individual
portfolios. The following table summarises the breakdown of the total investment
management expenses noted above:

Actual Actual
2021/22 2022/23
£m £m

External Investment Management Costs — Invoiced 14.5 13.1
External Investment Management Costs — Deducted at 876 773
Source
External Investment Management Costs — LGPS Central 4.4 5.1
Total External Investment Management Costs 106.5 95.5
Custody Fees 0.2 0.1
Total Investment Management Expenses 106.7 95.6

Page 53



4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

6.2

7.0

7.1

This report is PUBLIC

Based on cost collection and analysis to mid-June, the investment management costs
deducted at source can be broken down further, and included within Note 13 to the draft
accounts is the split between management fees, performance fees and transaction costs.

The challenges of cost data collection and comparison have been previously highlighted
by the Fund and in research by the Cost Transparency Initiative (CTI) published by the
Pensions and Lifetimes Savings Association (PLSA) in May 2021. The Fund has once
again used an external company to support on the collection of this data and whilst not all
managers have returned cost reporting templates in time for review ahead of publication
of the draft Statement of Accounts an increase in returns has been seen for the 2022/23
year end. Information returned to date represents 92.3% of the net asset value of the
Fund’s investments and 72.5% by number (52.8% at the same point last year). The
balance of fees are calculated based on information available from the fund and
invement managers.

It should be noted that actual investment management costs are linked to asset values
and are therefore influenced by market movements and investment performance, and are
therefore expected to fluctuate during the year and between years. Portfolio changes
during the year and asset allocation or strategic changes will also impact the
development of costs over time. It is therefore likely that costs will increase in 2023/24 as
the Fund implements the new Investment Strategy.

The analysis of the benchmarking of investment management fees for 2021/22 are
detailed within agenda item 11.

Financial Implications

The financial implications are discussed in the body of the report.

Legal Implications

The Statement of Accounts of the Administering Authority (of which the Fund’s accounts
form part) must be prepared in accordance with the statutory framework established by
the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 (together with any subsequent Amendments).
The audit of the financial statements will be undertaken in accordance with the statutory
framework established by sections 3 and 20 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014.

Under LGPS Regulations, Administering Authorities are required to produce and publish
a pension fund annual report, including information about the management and financial
performance of the Fund by 1 December each year.

Equalities Implications

This report has no direct equalities implications.

Page 54



This report is PUBLIC

8.0 All Other Implications

8.1  This report has no other direct implications.

9.0 Schedule of Background Papers

9.1 This report has no schedule of background papers.
10.0 Schedule of Appendices

10.1  Appendix A — West Midlands Pension Fund Statement of Accounts for the year ending
31 March 2023

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



Fund Account

2021/22
£m

420.1
19.1
13.2
452.4

(673.4)
(34.8)
(0.3)
(708.5)

(256.1)

(117.8)

84.4
1,719.6
(11.0)

1,793.0
1,419.1

18,915.2

20,334.4

Appendix A

Contributions & Benefits
Contributions Receivable
Transfers In

Other Income

Total contributions and other income

Benefits Payable
Payments to and on account of leavers
Other Payments

Total benefits and other expenditure

Net additions/(withdrawals) from dealings with members

Management Expenses

Returns on Investments

Investment Income

Changes in Value of Investments

Revaluation of bulk annuity insurance buy-in contract
Net return on investments

Net Increase/(decrease) in the Fund during the year

Net Assets of the Fund at the beginning of the year

Net Assets of the Fund at the end of the year

Page 57

Note

P8
P9
P10

P11
P12

P13

P14
P16
P17

2022/23
£m

459.3
19.7
13.0
492.0

(722.7)
(40.9)
(0.1)
(763.7)

(271.7)

(110.3)

80.2
(357.5)

(277.3)
(659.3)

20,334.3

19,675.0



Appendix A

Net Assets Statement

31 March 2022 Note 31 March 2023

£m £m
Investment Assets (at Market Value) P15

563.6 Bonds 215.3

57.2 UK Equities 43.0

2,539.7 Overseas Equities 2,446.0

15,049.1 Pooled Investment Vehicles 15,122.0

1,142.8 Property 1,007.9

12.3 Derivatives - Futures -
2.6 Derivatives - Swaps -

617.0 Foreign Currency Holdings 114.0
136.4 Cash Deposits 491.8
16.6 Other Investment Assets -
6.4 Outstanding Dividend Entitlement and Recoverable 58

" With-Holding Tax '
20,143.8 Investment Assets 19,445.6

Investment Liabilities (at Market Value) P15

(7.4) Derivatives - Forward Foreign Exchange -
- Derivatives - Swaps (2.4)
(7.4) Investment Liabilities (2.4)
20,136.4 Net Investment Assets 19,443.2
174.0 Bulk annuity insurance buy-in contract P17 159.5
11.4 Long-Term Debtors P19 12.4
45.0 Current Assets P20 83.3
(32.5) Current Liabilities P21 (23.4)
20,334.4 Net Assets of the Fund at the end of the year 19,675.0

The accounts summarise the transactions of the Fund and deal with the net assets at its disposal. They do
not take account of obligations to pay pensions and benefits which fall due after the end of the financial
year. The actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits is disclosed at note 6.

The notes form part of these financial statements.

Page 58



Appendix A
Notes to the Pension Fund Statements

Note P1 - General

The description in this note is a high-level summary of the Fund's activities and more detail is available in
the Fund's Annual Report which can be found on its website.

West Midlands Pension Fund is part of the Local Government Pension Scheme and is administered by the
City of Wolverhampton Council on behalf of all local authorities in the West Midlands and other employers
who have members in the Fund. Membership of the Fund is available to all local government employees
including non-teaching staff of schools and further and higher education corporations in the West Midlands
region together with employees of scheduled and admitted bodies. At 31 March 2023, the Fund had 804
actively participating employers and 340,602 members as set out in the following table. A full list of
participating employers can be found in the Fund's Annual Report.

31 March 2022 31 March 2023
No. No.
112,431 | Active Members 113,854
114,897 | Pensioner Members 115,725
111,263 | Deferred Members 115,662
338,591 | Total 345,241

The responsibility for administering the Fund is delegated to the Council's Pensions Committee. It meets at
approximately quarterly intervals and has members from each of the seven metropolitan district councils in
the West Midlands. A Pensions Board was also in operation during 2022/23. Membership of the Committee
and Board can be found on the City of Wolverhampton Council website:
https://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1

The scheme is governed by the Public Services Pensions Act 2013. The Fund is administered in
accordance with the following secondary legislation:

(i) The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (as amended)

(i) (i) The Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions, Saving and Amendments)
Regulations 2014 (as amended)

(iii) (i) The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds)
Regulations 2016

The scheme is a contributory defined benefit pension scheme. Benefits are funded by contributions and
investment earnings. Contributions are made by active members of the Fund in accordance with the Local
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Regulations 2013 and range from 5.5% to 12.5% of pensionable pay
for the financial year ending 31 March 2023. In addition to employee contributions, employers' contributions
are paid as set based on triennial actuarial funding valuations. The triennial actuarial valuation applicable to
contributions payable in relation to contribution rates payable for 2021/22 and 2022/23 was conducted at 31
March 2019. Employer contribution rates during 2022/23 ranged from 15.5% to 38.6% of pensionable pay.

Scheme-wide benefit changes were made with effect from April 2014, with the most material change
moving from an accrual of pensions based on final salaries to career-average revalued earnings (CARE)
with an accrual rate of 1/49th and pensions uprated annually in line with the Consumer Price Index.
Pension entitlements accrued prior to this date continue to be based on final salary.

Further to direction from the government, local authority investment pools have been created to bring
together the investment assets of LGPS pension funds into eight Investment Pools. LGPS Central Limited
(LGPSC), the company established to manage investments on behalf of eight LGPS funds including West
Midlands Pension Fund (WMPF), received authorisation from the Financial Conduct Authority in 2018 and
the LGPS Central regional investment asset pool has been in operation since 1 April 2018.

Page 59


https://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1

Appendix A
As at 31 March 2023, WMPF had assets of £9,563m managed in LGPSC sub-funds comprising £8,794m
managed through Authorised Contractual Scheme (ACS) sub-funds and a further £769m managed through
vehicles.

Additions and changes to LGPS Central Limited sub-funds continue to be made in collaboration with LGPS
Central investment asset pool Partner Funds. WMPF continues to engage in the development and review
of sub-funds, taking decisions to transition assets on a case-by-case basis dependent on sub-funds
meeting the strategic asset allocation and risk and return requirements of WMPF. The transition of the
Fund’s remaining assets into products offered by LGPS Central Limited is expected to take several years.

WMPF has several advisory arrangements in place with LGPSC to support with monitoring and oversight of
investments outside of LGPSC sub-funds which may also facilitate execution on the underlying assets of
legacy portfolios managed directly by the Fund. The advisory mandates are regularly reviewed and are
expected to reduce but remain in place for some time due to the illiquid nature of the underlying
investments and the cost effectiveness of transition.

Note P2 - Basis of Preparation

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Fund's transactions for the 2022/23 financial year and its
financial position as at 31 March 2023. The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2022/23 (the Code) which is based upon
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as amended for the UK public sector.

The accounts summarise the transactions of the Fund and report on the net assets available to pay
pension benefits. The accounts do not take account of obligations to pay pensions and benefits which fall
due after the end of the financial year. The actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits, valued
on an International Accounting Standard (IAS) 19 basis, is disclosed at Note P6 of these accounts.

The accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Note P3 - Statement of Accounting Policies
A. Fund account

In the Fund Account, income and expenditure are accounted for in the year in which they accrue by the
creation of payables and receivables at the year-end where necessary.

B. Contribution income

Normal contributions, both from the members and from the employers, are accounted for on an accruals
basis. Member contributions are made in accordance with the LGPS (Amendment) Regulations 2018 using
common percentage rates for all schemes which rise according to pensionable pay. Employer contributions
are set at the percentage rate recommended by the Actuary, in the payroll period to which they relate.
Additional contributions (including past service deficit contributions and excluding additional voluntary
contributions) as notified by employers for the period have also been included. Past service deficit
contributions are accounted for in the year in which they are payable under the schedule of contributions
set by the scheme actuary.

Employers' augmentation contributions and pensions strain contributions are accounted for in the period in
which the liability arises. Any amount due in year but unpaid is classed as a current financial asset with
amounts due after the following year classed as long-term financial assets.

Where employing organisations have not submitted all of the certified returns of contributions payable by
the due date for preparation of these accounts, an estimate has been made based on the monthly
remittance advice received from these bodies.

Page 60



Appendix A

C. Transfers to and from other schemes

Transfer values represent the amounts received and paid during the year for members who had either
transferred benefits in or out of the scheme as at 31 March 2023, calculated in accordance with the Local
Government Pension Scheme Regulations (see notes to the accounts). Transfers in respect of individuals
are accounted for when received or paid which is normally when the member liability is accepted or
discharged. Bulk transfers in and out, where the receiving scheme has agreed to accept the liability prior to
receipt and the necessary employee consents have been obtained, are accounted for in accordance with
the bulk transfer terms signed by qualified actuaries appointed by the two pension schemes involved in the
bulk transfer.

Transfers in from members wishing to use the proceeds of their additional voluntary contributions to
purchase scheme benefits are accounted for on a receipts basis and are reported within transfers in.

D. Investment Income
i) Interest Income

Interest income is recognised in the Fund Account as it accrues using the effective interest rate of the
financial instrument as at the date of acquisition or origination.

ii) Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognised on the date the shares are quoted ex-dividend. Any amount not received by
the end of the reporting period is disclosed in the Net Assets Statement as a current financial asset.

iii) Distributions from Pooled Funds
Distributions (income) from pooled funds are recognised at the date of issue.

Investment income arising from the underlying investments of pooled investment vehicles is distributed
back into the pooled investment vehicles throughout the year.

iv) Property-Related Income

Property-related income (consisting primarily of rental income from operating leases) is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Any lease incentives granted are recognised as an integral
part of the total rental income, over the term of the lease. Contingent rents based on the future amount of a
factor that changes other than with the passage of time, such as turnover rents, are only recognised when
contractually due.

v) Changes in the Value of Investments

Changes in the net market value of investments (including investment properties) are recognised as
income and comprise all realised and unrealised profits/losses during the year.

vi) Stock lending income
Stock lending income is accounted for on a cash basis.
E. Taxation

The Fund is a registered public service scheme under section 1(1) of Schedule 36 of the Finance Act 2004
and as such is exempt from UK income tax on interest received and from capital gains tax on the proceeds
of investments sold. Income from overseas investments suffers withholding tax in the country of origin
unless exemption is permitted. Irrecoverable tax is accounted for as an expense as it arises.

Page 61



Appendix A

F. Benefits payable

Pensions and lump sum benefits payable include all amounts known to be due as at 31 March 2023. Any
amounts due but unpaid are disclosed in the Net Assets Statement as current liabilities.

G. Financial assets

Financial assets are included in the Net Assets Statement on a fair value basis as at the reporting date. A
financial asset is recognised in the Net Assets Statement on the date the Fund becomes party to the
contractual acquisition of the asset. From this date, any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of the asset are recognised in the Fund Account.

The fair value is established in accordance with IFRS 13 for each category of investment by obtaining
sufficient data as follows:

I.  Market-quoted investments are valued on the basis of the bid price (or, if unavailable, most recent
transaction) on the relevant stock market. Fixed interest securities are recorded at net market value
based on their current yields;

II.  Unquoted securities are valued by the fund managers at the year-end in accordance with generally
accepted guidelines. Unquoted private equities are valued by the investment managers in
accordance with International Private Equity and Venture Capital Valuation Guidelines (2012) using
guidelines of the British Venture Capital Association. This includes the use of discounted cash flow
models which are independently valued; and

lll.  Pooled investment vehicles are valued at the closing price under single pricing system, or bid price
under dual pricing system, as advised by the respective fund manager.

Investment assets are allocated and disclosed within the fair value hierarchy, being within Levels 1, 2 or 3.

The LGPS Central pool trading company, LGPS Central Limited, became licensed to trade on 1 April 2018.
The Pension Fund's view is that as at 31 March 2023, cost remains an appropriate estimate of the fair
value of shares held in this company.

H. Freehold and leasehold properties

Properties including farmlands and commercial properties are valued annually by independent valuers on a
fair value basis in accordance with Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) valuation standards.

I. Foreign currencies

Assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are expressed in sterling at the rates of exchange ruling at the
year-end. Foreign currency transactions are translated into sterling at the spot exchange rate at the date of
the transaction. Gains and losses arising on conversion or translation are accounted for as part of the
change in market value.

J. Derivatives

The Fund uses derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to specific risks arising from its
investment activities. The Fund does not hold derivatives for speculative purposes.

Purchases and sales of derivatives are recognised as follows: Futures — on close out or expiry the variation
margins are recognised as cash receipts or payments depending on whether there is a gain or loss.
Forward currency contracts settlements are reported as gross receipts and payments.

K. Movement in the net market value of investments

Any gains or losses arising on translation of investments into sterling are accounted for as a change in the
market value of investments.

Page 62



Appendix A

L. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash in hand and demand deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and that are subject to minimal risk of
changes in value.

M. Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are included in the Fund Account at fair value if they exist at the reporting date. A
financial liability is recognised in the Net Assets Statement on the date the Fund becomes party to the
liability. From this date, any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the liability are
recognised by the Fund.

N. Management expenses

The Fund discloses its management expenses in accordance with the CIPFA guidance Accounting for
Local Government Pension Scheme Management Expenses 2016.

All administrative expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis. The costs of Fund officers are
recharged to the Fund along with all other costs incurred directly on Fund activities for corporate support
services provided by the administering authority.

All investment management expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis. External investment
management and custodian fees are agreed in management or custody agreements governing the
administration of the individual mandates. Fees are generally based on the valuation of the underlying
investments either being managed or in safe custody. In addition, performance-related fees are negotiated
with a number of managers and the amounts of such fees are provided in a note to the accounts.

O. Actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits

The actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits is assessed on a triennial basis by the scheme
actuary in accordance with the requirements of IAS 19 and relevant actuarial standards. As permitted under
the Code, the Fund has opted to disclose the actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits by
way of a note to the Net Assets Statement (see note P5).

P. Additional voluntary contributions

The Fund provides an additional voluntary contributions (AVC) scheme for its members the assets of which
are invested separately from those of the Fund. The Fund has appointed Prudential Assurance Company
Limited and Utmost Life and Pensions as its AVC providers. AVCs are paid to the provider by employers
and are specifically for providing additional benefits for individual contributors. Each contributor receives an
annual statement showing the amount held in their account and the movements in the year. AVCs are not
included in the accounts in accordance with section 4(1)(b) of the Local Government Pension Scheme
(Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016 but are disclosed as a nhote only (see note P22).

Note P4 - Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

It has not been necessary to make any material critical judgements in applying the accounting policies in
2022-23.

Note P5 - Assumptions made about the future and other major sources of estimation uncertainty
Actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits

Uncertainties

Page 63



Appendix A
Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex judgements relating to the
discount rate applied to future benefit payments due, the rate at which salaries and pensions are projected
to increase, changes in retirement ages, mortality rates and expected returns on pension fund assets.
Hymans Robertson LLP, the Fund's appointed Actuary, is engaged to provide expert advice about the
assumptions to be applied.

Effect if actual results differ from assumptions

The effects on the net pension liability of changes in individual assumptions can be measured. For
instance, an increase in the discount rate assumption would result in a decrease in the pension liability;
however, an increase in assumed earnings inflation or assumed life expectancy would significantly increase
the pension liability as detailed by the Fund's Actuary below:

Change in assumptions - year ended 31 March 2023 = Approx. % increase Approx. monetary

in liabilities
0.1% p.a. decrease in discount rate 2% 350.0
1 year increase in member life expectancy 4% 791.0
0 . . . 0% 39.0
0.1% p.a. increase in salary increase rate
0.1% p.a. increase in CPI inflation 2% 316.0

Fair value of investments
Uncertainties

Certain types of investments are not publicly listed and, as such, there is a degree of estimation involved in
their valuation.

Effect if actual results differ from assumptions

The use of estimates for investment values is greatest for those assets classified at Level 3 which means
there is a risk that these investments may be over/under stated in the accounts. The total value of Level 3
investments is £4,372.0m at 31 March 2023 (£3,920.7m at 31 March 2022). The assets classified as Level
3 and the sensitivity of the valuation methods employed is described in note 17.

Note P6 - Actuarial valuation of the Fund

The contribution rates applicable to the period 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2023 were determined by the
Fund's previous Actuary, G Muir of Barnett Waddingham LLP, as part of the triennial actuarial valuation of
the Fund made as at 31 March 2019. The triennial actuarial valuation of the Fund as at 31 March 2022,
undertaken by the Fund’s current Actuary, C McFadyen of Hyman Robertson LLP, has determined the
contributions rates applicable for the period 1 April 2023 to 31 March 2026 and funding position at 31
March 2022.

On the basis of the assumptions adopted, the 2019 valuation revealed that the value of the Fund’s assets
of £15,634 million represented 94% of the funding target of £16,648 million at the valuation date. The
valuation also showed that a primary rate of contribution of 20.4% of pensionable pay per annum was
required from employers. The common rate is calculated as being sufficient, together with contributions
paid by members, to meet all liabilities arising in respect of service after the valuation date.

In general, the Fund applies a maximum deficit recovery period of 17 years. The aim is to achieve 100%
solvency over the period and to provide stability in employer contribution rates.

Page 64



Appendix A
In practice, each individual employer’s position is assessed separately and the contributions required are
set out in the report dated 31 March 2020. In addition to the certified contribution rates, payments to cover
additional liabilities arising from early retirements (other than ill-health retirements) will be made to the Fund
by the employers.

The funding plan adopted in assessing the contributions for each individual employer is in accordance with
the Funding Strategy Statement (FSS). Different approaches adopted in implementing contribution

increases and deficit recovery periods are as determined through the FSS consultation process.

As a result of the valuation, a revised Rates and Adjustments certificate was prepared for the three years
commencing 1 April 2020. For comparison purposes, the figures for the two preceding years are also
shown. The minimum payable by the seven councils was certified as follows:

Future Service Rate (% of pay) plus lump sum (£)

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

Birmingham City Council 16.8% plus | 18.3% plus | 21.3% plus | 21.3% plus | 21.3% plus
£61.8m £61.5m £48.2m £49.9m £51.8m
(E124.0m) | (£124.2m) (E124.2m) (E123m) (E121.9m)
Coventry City Council 16.8% plus | 16.8% plus | 20.4% plus | 20.4% plus | 20.4% plus
£12m £12m £3.6m £3.7m £3.9m
(E31.1m) (E31.1m) (£32.9m) (£32.6m) (£32.3m)
Dudley MBC 17.0% plus | 18.6% plus | 20.7% plus | 20.7% plus | 20.7% plus
£9.7m £9.6m £3.0m £3.1m £3.2m
(E31.3m) (£32.3m) (E31.5m) (£30.6m) (£29.9m)
Sandwell MBC 16.2% plus | 17.7% plus | 20.5% plus | 20.5% plus | 20.5% plus
£17m £16.9m £10.5m £10.9m £11.3m
(E17.0m) (£16.9m) (£10.3m) (£10.2m) (£10.1m)
Solihull MBC 16.5% plus | 18.4% plus | 20.7% plus | 20.7% plus | 20.7% plus
£5.1m £5.1m £2.9m £3.0m £3.1m
(£16.6m) (£17.4m) (£19.9m) (£19.4m) (£19.0m)
Walsall MBC 16.9% plus | 18.3% plus | 20.3% plus | 20.3% plus | 20.3% plus
£14.8m £15m £9.8m £10.1m £10.5m
(£30.2m) (E31.5m) (£30.2m) (£30.0m) (£29.7m)
City of Wolverhampton Council 16.8% plus | 18.1% plus | 20.0% plus | 20.0% plus | 20.0% plus
£14m £14.6m £6.8m £7.1m £7.3m
(£28.8m)

The amounts shown in brackets are due in the year where the Council has opted to make a cash payment
in advance. These amounts were received by the Fund in April 2020. The valuation was carried out using
the projected unit actuarial method and the main actuarial assumptions used for assessing the Funding
Target and the common contribution rate were as follows:

Rate of return on investments:

2022

4.3% per annum

4.6% per annum

2019

Rate of pay increases:

3.9% per annum

3.6% per annum

Guaranteed Minimum Pension):

Rate of increases in pensions in payment (in excess of

2.9% per annum

2.6% per annum

The assets were assessed at market value.

The 31 March 2019 Actuarial Valuation report can be found on the Fund's website.

Page 65




Appendix A
The 31 March 2022 Actuarial Valuation report can also be found on the Fund’s website with the results of
this report implemented from 1 April 2023.

Actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits for the purposes of IAS 26

IAS 26 requires the present value of the Fund’s promised retirement benefits to be disclosed and for this
purpose, the actuarial assumptions and methodology used should be based on IAS 19 rather than the
assumptions and methodology used for funding purposes.

To assess the value of the benefits on this basis, the following financial assumptions have been used:

31 March 2022 31 March 2023

Rate of return on investments (discount rate) 2.70% per annum | 4.75% per annum

Rate of pay increases 4.20% per annum | 4.00% per annum
Rate of increases in pensions in payment (in excess of
Guaranteed Minimum Pension)

3.20% per annum | 3.00% per annum

The total value of the Fund's promised retirement benefits for the purposes of IAS 26 as at 31 March 2022
was estimated as £27,503 million. The impact of the changes in actuarial financial assumptions between 31
March 2022 and 31 March 2023 as described above is to decrease the liabilities by £10,040 million. The
impact of the change in demographic assumptions between 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2023 is to
decrease the actuarial present value by £172 million.

The net effect of all the above is that the estimated total value of the Fund's promised retirement benefits as
at 31 March 2023 is therefore £19,771 million.

Note P7 — Taxation

1. Value added tax (VAT)

The Fund (as part of the City of Wolverhampton Council) pays VAT collected on income in excess
of VAT payable on expenditure to HMRC. The accounts are shown exclusive of VAT.

2. Taxation of overseas investment income

The Fund receives interest on its overseas bonds gross but a variety of arrangements apply for the
taxation of dividends on overseas equities in the various markets.

In some markets, a lower-than-standard tax rate is available, either as a result of a double tax treaty
in place between the UK and the investment country (e.g., Poland, Canada, Italy, Sweden) or based
on favourable domestic legislation (e.g., Australia, Czech Republic, Singapore). Where this is the
case, relief may be granted at source based on documentation already on file (e.g., USA, Belgium,
Australia, Finland, France and Norway), or ex post via reclaim forms submitted to the local tax
authorities (e.g., Austria, Denmark, Germany, Netherlands, Switzerland and Spain).

There are also markets where relief is not possible - either no double taxation agreement exists
(e.g., Brazil, Colombia, Lebanon), or a 'subject to tax' clause prevents UK pension funds from
benefiting from treaty rates (e.g., Israel, Malaysia, Portugal). In such cases, the full amount of tax is
withheld and is final.

Page 66



Appendix A
Note P8 - Contributions receivable

Contributions receivable by type

2021/22 | 2022/23
£m \ £m

From employers

228.1 | Contributions 257.4

43.3 | Past service deficit 45.9

15.8 | Additional cost of early retirement 12.3

287.2 315.6

From members

132.3 | Basic contributions 143.0

0.6 | Additional contributions 0.7

132.9 143.7

420.1 | Total contributions 459.3

Following the actuarial valuation as at 31 March 2019, some employers chose to pay their full three-year
future service and past service deficit contributions in advance as a lump sum in 2020/21. The lump sums
paid by the seven councils have been accounted for fully in 2020/21 and are listed in the table in note 6.
The additional contributions above represent the purchase of added membership or additional benefits
under the pension scheme.

Contributions receivable by type of employer

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
32.3 | Administering authority 36.0
344.4 | Other scheduled employers 377.7
43.4 | Admitted employers 45.6
420.1 | Total 459.3

Note P9 - Transfers in

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
19.1 | Individual transfers 19.7
19.1 | Total 19.7

Note P10 - Other income

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
Benefits recharged to employers
6.9 | Compensatory added years 6.6
6.3 | Pensions increases 6.4
13.2 | Total 13.0

Page 67



Appendix A

Note P11 - Benefits payable

Benefits payable by type

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
Pensions

510.3 | Retirement pensions 538.6

34.8 | Widows’ pensions 36.3

1.1 | Children’s’ pensions 1.2

7.2 | Widowers’ pensions 8.0

0.2 | Ex-spouses' pensions 0.3

0.2 | Equivalent pension benefits 0.2

0.4 | Co-habiting partners' pensions 0.5

0.1 | Civil Partnership 0.2

0.1 | Amounts due to Estate -

554.4 | Total pensions 585.4
Lump sum benefits

102.9 | Retiring allowances 117.9

16.1 | Death grants 19.4

119.0 | Total lump sum benefits 137.3

673.4 | Total benefits payable 722.7

Benefits payable by type of employer

2021/22

£m

2022/23
£m

52.4 | Administering authority 54.9
564.4 | Other scheduled employers 606.3
56.6 | Admitted employers 61.5
673.4 | Total 722.7

Note P12 - Payments to and on account of leavers

2021/22 2022/23
32 7 " Individual transfers ] 38 7
Refunds of contributions
34.8 Total 40.9

Note P13 - Management expenses

2021/22 | 2022/23
£m | £m
7.3 | Administrative costs 10.4
106.7 | Investment management expenses 95.6
3.8 | Oversight and governance costs 4.3
117.8 | Total 110.3

Included in administrative costs of £10.4m above are anticipated external audit fees of £85,000 (2021/22:
£73,000). External audit for the Fund are appointed by the City of Wolverhampton Council through the
PSAA (Public Sector Audit Appointments) framework

Page 68



Appendix A
The guidance requires that external investment management fees that are deducted from asset values
(rather than invoiced and paid directly) are shown gross. Wherever possible, the figures are based on
actual costs disclosed by the manager; where actual costs were not available, best estimates have been
made using other available information.

Note P13 i) - Investment management expenses

Performance Transaction

2022/23 related fees
Equities 13.5 10.5 - 3.1
Fixed interest - - - -
Pooled investments 28.1 114 - 16.7
Pooled property investments - - - -
Private equity 30.4 13.6 16.7 -
Property 6.4 4.2 0.3 1.9
Infrastructure 12.1 6.2 5.9 -
Absolute return 3.9 1.1 2.8 0.0
Derivatives 0.9 0.2 - 0.7
Cash, cash equivalents & fx contracts 0.2 0.2 - (0.0
95.5 47.3 25.7 22.4
Custody fees 0.1
Total 95.6

2021/22 Performance Transaction

related fees

Equities 25.3 16.9 - 8.4

Fixed interest 0.4 0.4 - -

Pooled investments 24.5 14.7 - 9.8

Pooled property

investments - - - -

Private equity 40.5 14.3 26.0 0.2

Property 5.7 4.7 0.3 0.7

Infrastructure 9.5 7.2 2.3 -

Absolute return 0.1 0.1 -

Derivatives 0.4 0.2 - 0.2

Cash, cash equivalents &

fx contracts 0.1 0.1 - -
106.5 58.6 28.6 19.3

Custody fees 0.2

Total 106.7

Page 69



Appendix A

Note P14 - Investment Income

2021/22 2022/23
£m
Dividends and Interest
Bonds
9.2 | UK private sector — quoted 10.7
Equities
0.6 | UK private sector — quoted -
20.8 | Overseas 25.3
Pooled Investment Vehicles
0.7 | UK private sector — quoted 0.3
6.3 | Overseas equities 6.7
- | Interest on cash deposits 4.6
0.7 | Stock lending 0.8
- | Other investment income -
38.3 | Total dividends and interest 48.4
60.2 | Property management income 45.2
(14.1) | Property management expenses (13.4)
46.1 | Total property management 31.8
84.4 | Total investment income 80.2

Stock lending

As at 31 March 2023, £291.7 million of stock was on loan to an agreed list of approved borrowers through
the Fund’s custodian in its capacity as agent lender (31 March 2022: £583.1 million). The loans were
covered by non-cash collateral in the form of equities, gilts, Delivery by Values DBVs and G10 sovereign
debt totalling £308.2 million and giving a margin of 6.0% (31 March 2022, £631.5 million, margin of 8.0%).

Collateral is marked to market, adjusted daily and held by a third-party agent on behalf of the Fund. Net
income from stock lending amounted to £0.8 million during the year (2021/22: £0.7 million). The Fund
retains its economic interest in stocks on loan and their value is included in the Fund valuation. There is,
however, an obligation to return collateral to the borrowers and its value is therefore excluded from the
Fund valuation. The securities lending programme is indemnified to give the Fund further protection against
losses.

There are no liabilities associated with the loaned assets.

Other investment income

Other investment income includes the following: Class action income, liquidation proceeds and tax refunds.

Page 70



Appendix A

Note P15 - Net investment assets

31 March 2022 31 March 2023
£m £m
Bonds
235.4 | UK companies — segregated (external) 215.3
328.2 | Overseas sovereign - index linked -
563.6 215.3
UK equities
55.2 | Quoted 41.0
2.0 | Unquoted 20
57.2 43.0
Overseas equities
155.4 | Quoted 115.0
2,384.3 | Quoted — segregated (external) 2331.0
2,539.7 2446.0
Pooled investment vehicles
Managed funds
668.9 | UK fixed interest 947.0
2,167.3 | Other fixed interest 2,139.7
1,011.2 | UK quoted, index linked 741.3
1,349.4 | UK quoted equities (pooled assets) 1,325.7
6,801.8 | Overseas quoted equities (pooled assets) 6,847.0
830.3 | Infrastructure 1,036.2
1,439.2 | Private equity 1,396.9
257.7 | UK absolute returns 190.6
82.6 | Overseas absolute returns 101.1
- | Multi asset credit -
208.4 | UK property 196.4
117.2 | Overseas property 104.7
Unit trusts
115.1 | UK property 95.5
15,049.1 15,122.0
Property
1,096.5 | UK freehold 969.9
46.3 | UK leasehold* 38.0
1,142.8 1,007.9
Derivative contracts
12.3 | Futures -
2.6 | Swaps -
15.0 -
Foreign currency holdings
0.5 | Australian dollars 05
0.6 | Canadian Dollars 0.6
1.5 | Czech Koruna 2.2
0.6 | Danish Kroner Dana 71 0.6
1 (AHU [ =




Appendix A

133.8 | Euro 44.7
33.8 | Hong Kong Dollars 0.0
0.7 | Hungarian Forints 0.8
4.9 | Japanese Yen 4.8
2.6 | Mexican Peso 3.6
0.5 | New Zealand Dollars 05
0.5 | Norwegian Kroner 0.4
0.5 | Polish Zloty 05
1.5 | Singapore Dollars 1.6
2.9 | Swedish Kroner 2.7
5.2 | Swiss Francs 5.6
0.4 | Turkish Lira 0.3
426.5 | United States Dollars 44.6
617.0 114.0
Cash deposits

128.8 | UK 107.6
7.6 | US 384.2
136.3 491.8

Other investments
16.6 | Broker balances -
Outstanding dividend entitlement and recoverable with-holding

6.4 | tax 5.8
23.0 5.8
20,143.7 | Total investment assets 19,445.6

Investment liabilities -

Derivative contracts
(7.4) | Forward currency contracts (2.4)

- | Swaps -
(7.4) (2.4)

(7.4) | Total investment liabilities -

20,136.4 | Net investment assets 19,443.2
* All leasehold properties are held on long leases

Segregated accounts are held separately from the main account by the global custodian and contain assets
managed by some of the Fund's external managers.

Page 72



Appendix A
The following investments represent more than 5% of the net assets of the Fund. All of these pooled funds
are registered in the UK.

31 March 2022

31 March 2023
% of total

Market value % of total Market value
market value market value
£m | £m

Security
LGPS Central Global Ex UK

2,754.3 13.7 | Passive Equity Fund 2,152.4 11.1
LGPS Central All World Equity

2,140.4 10.6 | Climate Multi Factor Fund 2,801.9 144
LGPS Central UK Passive

1,210.7 6.0 | Equity Fund 1,246.1 6.4
LGPS Central Global Equity

1,195.6 5.9 | Active Multi-Manager Fund 1,211.9 6.2
Legal & General - All Stocks

1,011.2 5.0 | Index-Linked Gilts Fund 741.3 3.8

The proportion of the market value of investment assets managed in the regional asset pool at the year-end
is set out below.
31 March 2023

% of total
NEE

31 March 2022

% of total

Market Market

value market value
value value

£m

Investments managed by LGPS Central Limited regional asset pool:

£m

Authorised Contractual Schemes (ACS) - global

6,712.4 33.9 | equities 6,793.1 34.9
Authorised Contractual Schemes (ACS) - UK
1,210.7 6.1 | equities 1,246.1 6.4
Authorised Contractual Schemes (ACS) - Fixed
811.4 4.1 | interest 754.7 3.9
283.2 1.4 | Non ACS Private Markets 768.7 4.0
9,017.7 45.5 9,562.5 49.2
Investments managed outside of LGPS Central Limited regional asset
pool:
10.7 | In-house: property, cash, quoted and unquoted
2,120.7 equities 1,768.4 9.1
117.7 0.6 | Managers: UK quoted 99.9 0.5
1,448.3 7.3 | Managers: emerging markets 1,306.4 6.7
1,021.1 5.1 | Managers: global equities 1,078.5 5.5
3,422.0 17.3 | Managers: fixed interest 2,954.5 15.2
310.3 1.6 | Managers: indirect property 301.1 1.5
819.7 4.1 | Managers: infrastructure funds 936.2 4.8
410.7 2.1 | Managers: absolute return 313.3 1.6
1,116.6 5.6 | Managers: private equity 1,115.8 5.7
10,787.1 54.4 9,874.2 50.8
Outstanding dividend entitlement and recoverable
23.0 withholding tax —n 6.5

Fage 7o




Appendix A

19,827.8 Net investment assets 19,443.3

ANALYSIS OF DERIVATIVES
Objectives and policies for holding derivatives

The Fund utilises derivative instruments in line with investment policy and investment management
agreements in place with third party investment managers.

a) Futures

In 2018/19, the Fund made a decision to transition assets out of an internal global equity portfolio and into a
new sustainable global equities mandate. Recognising that there would be some lead time in implementing
this strategy, as and when the existing portfolio was realised, proceeds were invested in global equity
futures pending transition to the sustainables mandate. During 2022/23, the Fund completed this transition
and has ended its exposure to futures accordingly.

b) Forward foreign currency

To reduce the volatility associated with fluctuating currency rates, the Fund previously had a passive
currency programme in place. The Fund commenced its currency hedging programme in 2017/18 following
approval by Committee to amend the Strategic Investment Allocation Benchmark to reflect the passive
currency management programme. The Fund's hedging programme aimed to protect returns in sterling
terms and reduce currency risk. The concluded this programme in 2022/23.

¢) Open forward currency contracts

Settlement Currency | Local Currency | Local Asset  Liability
Bought value Sold value value value

One to six months GBP - | EUR

One to six months EUR - | GBP

Open forward currency contracts at 31 March 2023 - -
Net forward currency contracts at 31 March 2023 - -

Prior year comparative:
Open forward currency contracts at 31 March 2022 (7.4)
Net forward currency contracts at 31 March 2022 (7.4)

Page 74



Appendix A

d) Open exchange traded futures contracts

Expires Economic \ Market value Economic Market value

exposure ‘ 31 March 2022 exposure 31 March 2023
£m £m ~  Em £m

Assets

UK equity Under one year 55.5 3.6 - -

Overseas

equity Under one year 141.4 10.0 - -

UK bond Under one year 148.3 (1.3) - -

Total assets (12.3) - -

Note P16 - Investment market value movements analysis

Sales Investment
Value as Purchases Value as
at 31 at cost and proceeds | Management Change at 31
March derivative :_:md_ Fees o March
2022 payments derlvatlve Deducted at | Market 2023
receipts Source Value
£m £m £m £m \ £m £m
Bonds 563.6 213.9 (464.5) - (97.8) 215.2
UK equities 57.2 - - -1 (14.2) 43.0
Overseas equities 2,539.7 0.1 (0.1) - | (93.7) 2,446.0
Pooled investment vehicles | 15,049.1 711.4 (593.0) 01| (45.6)| 15,122.1
Property 1,142.8 97.9 (56.7) (176.1) 1,007.9
19,352.5 1,023.3 | (1,114.3) 0.1 | (427.5)| 18,834.2
Derivative contracts
Swaps 2.6 (5.1) (2.5)
Futures 12.3 (12.3) -
Forward foreign exchange (7.4) 7.4 -
19,360.0 1,023.3 | (1,114.3) 0.1| (437.4) 18,831.7
Broker balances 16.6 6.5
Outstanding dividend
entitlement and recoverable
withholding tax 6.4 (0.8)
Foreign currency holdings 617.0 114.0
Cash deposits 136.4 491.8
Total Investments 20,136.4 19,443.3

The change in market value of investments comprises both increases and decreases in the market value of
investments held at any time during the year and profits and losses realised on the sales of investments

during the year.

Purchases also include transfers in of investments, take-over of shares etc. and invested income. Sales
proceeds include all receipts from sales of investments, transfers out of investments, take-over proceeds
etc. and reductions in cash deposits including profits or losses realised on the sale.

Transaction costs are included in the cost of purchases and sale proceeds. Transaction costs include costs

charged directly to the Fund such as fees, commissions, stamp duty and other fees. Transaction costs

during the year amounted to £22.4 million (2021/%?): £19.3fgllion). In addition to the transaction costs
age




Appendix A

disclosed below, indirect costs are incurred through the bid-offer spread of investments within pooled

investment vehicles. The amount of indirect costs is not separately provided to the Fund.

The volatility of investment markets is an ever-present and longstanding feature of pension fund
management and valuations may vary, either up or down, throughout each day when exchanges are open.

The change in the value of investments during 2022/23 is set out below:

Sales Investment

Transfer

Purchases Change | Value as
of assets proceeds management .
at cost and in at 31
from derivative :_:md_ fees market March
WMITA derivative  deducted at
fund payments receipts source value 2023
Value as at 31 March 2022
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Bonds 508.4 124.1 (88.6) 19.8 563.7
UK equities 27.0 (32.2) 62.4 57.2
Overseas equities 2,567.5 (27.8) | 2,539.7
Pooled investment vehicles 13,640.8 643.3 (614.8) (87.6) | 1,467.4| 15,049.1
Property 1,014.0 (62.3) 191.1| 1,142.8
17,757.7 767.4 (797.9) (87.6)| 1,712.9| 19,3525
Derivative contracts
Swaps 2.6 2.6
Futures (2.3) 14.6 12.3
Forward foreign exchange 3.1 (10.5) (7.4)
17,758.5 767.4 (797.9) (87.6) | 1,719.6 | 19,360.0
Broker balances 19.2 16.6
Outstanding dividend
entitlement and recoverable
withholding tax 7.5 6.4
Foreign currency holdings 399.6 617.0
Cash deposits 498.2 136.4
Total Investments 18,683.0 20,136.4

16 i) Property Holdings

The Fund's investment property portfolio comprises a number of directly owned properties which are leased

commercially to various tenants. Details of these directly owned properties are as follows:

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
1,014.0 | Opening balance 1,142.8
- | Additions 95.1
(62.3) | Disposals (18.7)
191.1 | Net change in market value (211.4)
1,142.8 | Closing balance 1,007.8

There are no restrictions on the realisability of the property or the remittance of income or proceeds on
disposal and the Fund is not under any contractual obligation to purchase, construct or develop any of
these properties nor does it have any responsibility for any repairs, maintenance or enhancements.

The future minimum lease payments receivable by the Fund are as follows:

Page 76



31 March 2022

Appendix A

31 March 2023

£000 £000
40,028 | Within one year 37,539
140,018 | Between one and five years 130,352
182,744 | Later than five years 152,479
362,790 | Total future lease payments due under existing contracts 320,369

The receivables above have been reduced by a credit loss allowance of 1% per annum reflecting the
Fund's expected loss from late or non-recovery of rents from tenants. This deduction is based on advice
from the Fund's property letting agents.

Note P17 - Fair value - basis of valuation

The basis of the valuation of each class of investment assets is detailed below. There has not been any
change in the valuation techniques used during the year. All assets have been valued using fair value
techniques which represent the highest and best price available at the reporting date.

Observable and

Valluatlon Basis of valuation unobservable K_e_y_
evel , sensitivity
Asset type Inputs
Market quoted investments 1 Eﬁ?gizﬁg gbgjnrgirll\(/le;r ch
2023. n/a n/a
Quoted bonds
1 Market bid price based
on current yields. n/a n/a
Futures 1 Published exchange
prices at 31 March 2023. n/a n/a
Unquoted bonds
2 Evaluated price
Average of broker prices. feeds. n/a
PIV are stated at the bid | Net asset value
Pooled Investment vehicles- price quoted or the (NAV) based pricing
unit trusts and property 2 closing single market set on a forward
funds prices. pricing basis.
n/a
Market forward Exchange rate risk.
Forward foreign exchange ) exchange rates at 31
derivatives March 2023.
n/a
Valued at fair value at Existing lease terms | Significant
the year-end using the and rentals, changes in
investment valuation independent market | rental
reports of appointed research, tenant growth,
independent valuers. covenant strength, vacancy
Ereehold and leasehold . One third_of the estimated vacancy Ie_vels or
properties comm_er(?lal property levels, estimated discount
portfolio is valued fully in | rental growth, rate could
March each year, with discount rate. affect
the remaining two thirds valuations
being a 'desktop’
valuation.
Page 77/




Appendix A

Agricultural properties
are valued by specialist
independent valuers at
the year end.

Bulk annuity insurance buy-
in 3

within one of the
Admitted Body Separate
Funds and most recently
valued as part of the
Fund’s triennial actuarial
valuation as at 31 March
2022 allowing for
estimated level pensions
paid and the change in
the discount rate used to
value the buy-in.

life expectancy.
Discount rate has
been set at 1.68%
with reference to the
11 year point of the
Bank of England
nominal gilt yield
curve, consistent
with the 2022
valuation of the
Admitted Body
Separate Fund.

Value is based on the Earnings before Could be
latest investor reports interest, tax, affected by
and financial statements | depreciation and material
provided by the fund amortisation events
managers of the (EBITDA) multiple, occurring
underlying funds, revenue multiple, between the
adjusted for transactions | discount for lack of | date of the
arising after the date of marketability. financial
such reports. statements
Unquoted equity (includes provided
Private Equity, and the
Infrastructure and Absolute 3 Fund's own
Return/Diversified Growth reporting
Funds) date, by
changes to
expected
cashflows,
and by any
differences
between
audited and
unaudited
accounts.
Provided by the Fund's Key underlying Adjustments
Actuary based on aroll- | inputs for the to discount
forward of the value valuation are the rate and life
placed on the buy-in held | discount rate and expectancy.

Sensitivity of assets valued at level 3

The table below details the Fund's review of financial information as provided by appointed independent
investment consultants. The valuation methods detailed above are likely to be accurate to within the ranges
and, as set out below, the consequent potential impact on the closing value of investments at 31 March

2023 and 31 March 2022.

Page 78




Level 3 assets

Valuation

Freehold and Leasehold Property

Appendix A

range

% (+/-)

Valuation at 31
March 2023

Valuation
Increase

Valuation
Decrease

Private Equity

Infrastructure

Absolute Return/Diversified Growth

Unit Trusts - UK Property

Fixed Interest

Total

* At the time of publishing this Statement of Accounts in June 2023, the Fund was awaiting confirmation of
values as at 31 March 2023 from its investment advisors. The table above will therefore be updated upon

receipt of these values.

Level 3 assets

Valuation

March 2022

Valuation at 31

Valuation
Increase

Valuation
Decrease

Freehold and Leasehold Property 11.8 1,142.8 1,277.7 1,008.0
Private Equity 31.2 1,439.2 1,888.3 990.0
Infrastructure 13.3 734.4 831.7 637.0
Absolute Return/Diversified Growth 14 414.0 471.9 356.1
Unit Trusts - UK Property 11.8 145.3 162.5 128.2
Fixed Interest 12.1 206.5 231.5 181.5
Total 4,082.2 4,863.6 3,300.8

The key underlying inputs for the annuity insurance buy-in level 3 valuation are the discount rate and life

expectancy. The impact of changes as calculated by the Fund's Actuary is shown below:

Change in assumptions - year ended 31 March

2022

Adjustment to discount rate

Adjustment

(-/+) 1%

Valuation at 31 Valuation Valuation
March 2023

£m

Increase

£m

Decrease

£m

Adjustment to life expectancy assumptions

(+/-) 1 year

* At the time of publishing this Statement of Accounts in June 2023, the Fund was awaiting confirmation of
values as at 31 March 2023 from its investment advisors. The table above will therefore be updated upon

receipt of these values.

Change in assumptions - year ended 31 March

2021

Adjustment to discount rate

Adjustment

(-1+) 0.5%

Valuation at 31
March 2022

£m

174.0

Increase

£m
181.0

Valuation | Valuation
Decrease

£m
167.0

Adjustment to life expectancy assumptions

(+/-) 1 year

174.0

197.0

151.0

Page 79




Appendix A
17 i) Fair value hierarchy

The valuation of financial instruments has been classified into three levels according to the quality and
reliability of information used to determine fair values. Criteria utilised in the instrument classifications are
detailed below:

Level 1

Financial instruments at Level 1 are those where the fair values are derived from unadjusted quoted prices
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Products classified as level 1 comprise quoted equities,
guoted fixed interest securities, quoted index linked securities and unit trusts. Listed investments are shown
at bid prices. The bid value of the investment is based on the bid market quotation of the relevant stock
exchange.

Level 2

Financial instruments at Level 2 are those where quoted market prices are not available; for example,
where an instrument is traded in a market that is not considered to be active, or where valuation techniques
are used to determine fair value and where these techniques use inputs that are based significantly on
observable market data.

Level 3

Financial instruments at Level 3 are those where at least one input that could have a significant effect on
the instrument's valuation is not based on observable market data. Such instruments would include
unquoted equity investments and hedge fund of funds, which are valued using various valuation techniques
that require significant judgement in the determining appropriate assumptions.

The values of the investments in private equity, infrastructure and absolute return/diversified growth funds
are based on the latest investor reports and financial statements provided by the fund managers of the
underlying funds. Valuations are undertaken quarterly, and an adjustment is made to roll forward the latest
available valuation to 31 March as appropriate.

The values of the investments in hedge funds are based on the net asset value provided by the fund
manager. Fund valuations are obtained through external experts with assurance provided via the audit
opinion. The following table provides an analysis of the financial assets and liabilities of the pension fund
grouped into levels 1 to 3, based on the level at which fair value is observable.

Page 80



Appendix A

With
significant
unobservable
inputs
Level 3

Value at 31 March 2023 Quoted

market

Using
observable
inputs
Level 2

Total

price
Level 1

Financial assets

£m

£m

£m

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

loss

Non- financial assets at fair value through profit and

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss

profit and loss

Bulk annuity insurance buy-in at fair value through

Net financial assets

* At the time of publishing this Statement of Accounts in June 2023, the Fund was awaiting confirmation of
values as at 31 March 2023 from its investment advisors. The table above will therefore be updated upon

receipt of these values.

Value at 31 March 2022

Quoted
market

price
Level 1
£m

Using

With

significant

observable unobservable

inputs
Level 2
£m

inputs
Level 3
£m

Financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 10,589.6 4,695.6 2,939.4 | 18,224.6

Non- financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 1,142.8 1,142.8

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss (7.4) (7.4)
10,589.6 4,688.2 4,082.2 | 19,360.0

Bulk annuity insurance buy-in at fair value through profit

and loss 174.0 174.0

Net financial assets 10,589.6 4,688.2 4,256.2 | 19,534.0

Note 17 ii) - Reconciliation of fair value measurements within level 3

Market
value 31
March
2022

£m

Purchases
during the

year

£m

SEES
during
the
year

£m

Unrealised
gains /
losses

£m

Realised

gains/losses

£m

Market
value 31
March
2023

£m

Freehold and Leasehold

Property 1,143

Private Equity 1,439

Infrastructure 734

Absolute Return/Diversified

Growth 414

Unit Trusts - UK Property 145 page 81




Appendix A

Bonds 206

Total 4,082

* At the time of publishing this Statement of Accounts in June 2023, the Fund was awaiting confirmation of
values as at 31 March 2023 from its investment advisors. The table above will therefore be updated upon
receipt of these values.

Bulk annuity insurance buy-in contract

The transfer of assets from the former WMITA Fund to Admitted Body Separate Funds (ABSFs) within
WMPF included a bulk annuity insurance buy-in contract with Prudential Retirement Income Limited. The
insurance cover provides that the insurer underwrites the risk for meeting the liabilities of a specified group
of pensioners on the former West Midlands Travel Limited pensions payroll as at 11 August 2011. The
insurance provider will pay the cost of the monthly pension payments for this group whilst they or their
dependants are entitled to a pension.

Benefits recharged to Prudential during the year have been credited to the Fund account (and relevant
ABSF) and the value of the buy-in recalculated at year end by the Fund Actuary and recognised in the Net
Assets Statement as follows:

31 March 2022 31 March 2023

200.0 | Bulk annuity insurance buy-in contract value at start of year 174.0

Actuarial revaluation of insurance contract;

2.0 | Interest on buy-in

(2.0) | Change in demographic assumptions

- | Actuarial experience

(11.0)
(15.0) | Level pensions paid by insurer (14.5)
174.0 | Bulk annuity insurance buy-in contract value at end of year 159.5

* At the time of publishing this Statement of Accounts in June 2023, the Fund was awaiting confirmation of
valuation as at 31 March 2023 from the actuary. The table above will therefore be updated upon receipt of
these values.

Note P18 - Investment capital commitments

Investment commitments at the end of the financial year in respect of future payments were:

31 March 2022 31 March 2023
£m £m
1,469.6 Non-publicly quoted equities and infrastructure 2,042.3
55.4 Property 44.6
1,525.0 Total 2,086.9

Page 82



Appendix A
These amounts relate to outstanding commitments due on funds held in the private equity, fixed interest,
absolute return and alternative investment portfolios.

Note P19 - Long term debtors

31 March 2022 31 March 2023

£m £m
6.4 | Early retirement costs 6.4
5.0 | Reimbursement of lifetime tax allowances 6.0
11.4 | Total 12.4

The Fund has agreed for certain employers to defer payment of amounts due to meet early retirement
costs and £nil is due after the following financial year (2021/22: £6.4m). The instalments due in 2022/23 are
reported in Current Assets.

Note P20 - Current Assets

31 March 2022 31 March 2023 |

£m £m

Receivables and prepayments
Contributions Receivable

20.7 | - Employers' future service 27.8
3.7 | - Employers' past service deficit 3.7
12.5 | - Members 12.1
8.1 | Other Receivables 8.7
45.0 | Total Receivables and Prepayments 52.3
- | Cash at bank 31.0
45.0 | Total Current Assets 83.3

Note P21 - Current liabilities

31 March 2022

£m

31 March 2023
£m

Payables and receipts in advance
(3.5) | Pensions and lump sum benefits (2.0)
(0.7) | Receipts in advance (0.1)
(23.9) | Other payables (21.3)
(4.4) | Cash at bank -
(32.5) | Total (23.4)

Note P22 - Additional voluntary contributions

As well as joining the Fund, scheme members can pay into an additional voluntary contribution (AVC)
scheme run by two AVC providers. Contributions are paid directly from scheme members to the AVC

providers.

The contributions are not included within the Fund accounts, in line with regulation 4 (2) (b) of the Pension
Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009. The table below shows the activity for
each AVC provider in the year.

Page 83



Appendix A

31 March 2022

31 March 2023

Utmost Life Prudential Utmost Life | Prudential *
£m £m £m

1.7 37.2 | Opening value of the fund 1.5 36.6

0.1 6.0 | Income 0.1 5.4

(0.3) (6.1) | Expenditure (0.3) (7.4)

- (0.5) | Change in market value - 3.9

1.5 36.6 | Closing value of the fund 1.3 38.5

* Prudential Assurance Company provided details from the Statement of Accounts (unaudited) at a specific
point in time. Audited values are due September 2023.

Note P23 Financial instruments

Net gains and losses on financial instruments

31 March 2022

£m £m

31 March 2023

Financial assets
1,731.3 | Fair value through profit and loss (364.9)
Financial liabilities
(10.5) | Fair value through profit and loss 74
1,720.8 | Total (357.5)

Classification of financial instruments

The following table analyses the carrying amounts of financial instruments by category. No financial
instruments were reclassified during the accounting period.

31 March 2022

Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost £m

31 March 2023
Fair value Financial
Assets at liabilities
through )
) amortised at
profit and .
cost £m amortised
loss £m
cost £m

Fair value Assets at

amortised
cost £m

through
profit and
loss £m

Financial assets
563.6 Bonds 215.2
57.2 UK equities 43.0
Overseas equities
2,539.7 2,446.0
Pooled investment
vehicles
15,049.1 15,122.1
Derivative contracts
15.0
Bulk annuity
174.0 Insurance buy-in 159.5
753.3 Cash 605.8
Other investment
23.0 balances 5.8
45.8 Debtors 83.3
18,398.6 822.1 17,985.8 694.9
Financial liabilities
(7.4) DEiggjiee 8dhtracts (2.5) |




Appendix A

Other investment
- balances -
(31.0) | Creditors (23.4)
18,391.2 822.1 (31.0) 17,983.3 694.9 (23.4)
19,182.3 18,654.8

Note P24 — The nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments

Risk management

The main investment objective of the Fund is to optimise return whilst managing market risk exposure
within an acceptable tolerance. This is achieved by investing assets across a diversified portfolio. The Fund
also manages its liquidity risk to ensure there is sufficient liquidity to meet forecasted cash flows.

The Fund’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including:
e Investment risk — the possibility that the Fund will not receive the expected returns.

e Counterparty and credit risk — the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to
the Fund.

e Liquidity risk — the possibility that the Fund might not have funds available to meet its
commitments to make payments as they fall due.

e Valuation risk — the possibility that the value of an illiquid asset, when realised upon sale, differs
from the valuation placed on it based on a valuer’s opinion.

o Market risk — the possibility that financial loss might arise as a result of market movements. This is
split into the following subsections:

o0 Currency risk —the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

0 Interest Rate risk — the risk that future cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates.

o Other Price risk — the risk that the value of a financial asset will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk),
whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument
or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

Investment risk

To achieve its statutory obligations to pay pensions, the Fund invests its assets, including employer and
employee contributions, in a way that allows it to meet its liabilities as they fall due for payment. It does this
by investing with regard to its liabilities assessed through the triennial actuarial valuation followed by an
appropriate asset allocation, which is monitored on an ongoing basis to ensure it remains appropriate.

Counterparty risk

In deciding to effect any transaction for the Fund, steps are taken to ensure that the respective counterparty
is suitable and reliable, that the transaction is in line with the Fund’s strategy and that the terms and
circumstances of the transaction are the best available in the relevant market at the time. Comprehensive
due diligence processes are in place to ensure that any potential counterparty is authorised and regulated,
competent to deal in investments of the type and size contemplated and has appropriate administration

Page 85



Appendix A
arrangements with regard to independent auditors, robust administration and accounting, relevant legal
structure and experienced staff.

Credit risk

The Fund’s credit risk is largely associated with its Fixed Income investments. This risk stems from third
parties potentially failing to meet interest payments or failing to return the Fund’s principal at the end of the
investment period. There is also credit/counterparty risk associated with derivative instruments within the
Fund’s illiquid investments and those used to hedge certain risks, such as foreign currency exposures as
well as with rental income earned within the Fund'’s property portfolios.

The Fund’s surplus cash may be placed with an approved financial institution on a short-term basis and in
accordance with the cash management policy and restrictions set out in the Treasury Policy. The policy
specifies the cash deposit limit with each approved counterparty, as determined by a review undertaken by
Fund officers using rating and market research data, which is reviewed on a regular basis. Due diligence is
conducted on potential money market funds with criteria such as credit rating, same-day access and
minimum assets under management being prerequisite.

The tables below outline the Fund’'s money market and bank deposit holdings, by long-term Fitch rating, as
at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2023:

Credit rating sensitivity analysis
Value at 31 Value at 31

Fund/Account Long term March 2022 March 2023
Fitch rating £m £m

Money market funds

HSBC GBP Liquidity Fund Class H 5.8 13.3
HSBC USD Liquidity Fund Class H 7.6 384.2
LGIM GBP Liquidity Fund 4.0 13.3
Insight GBP Liquidity Fund 8.0 13.4
Invesco GBP Liquidity Fund 2.4 13.8

Custody and deposit accounts
CBRE Client Account West

Midlands Met Authority 21.2 17.2
HSBC GBP Cash 87.3 36.7
HSBC Non-GBP Cash* 617.0 114.0
Total 753.3 605.8

* At the time of publishing this Statement of Accounts in June 2023, the Fund was awaiting confirmation of
rating values from its investment advisors. The table above will therefore be updated upon receipt of these
values.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk that the Fund will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall
due, especially pension payments to its members. The Fund therefore takes steps to ensure that it has
adequate cash resources to meet its commitments. The appropriate strategic level of cash balances to be
held forms part of the Fund’s investment strategy and the Fund carries out cash flow planning in respect of
contributions, benefit payments, investment income and capital calls/distributions on an ongoing basis.

The risk that the Fund will be unable to raise cash to meet its liabilities is considered low. Due to having
cashflow management procedures in place, the Fund is able to invest in illiquid asset classes and take
advantage of the illiquidity premium that can bepagq;irgtﬁese investments where appropriate.



Appendix A

Valuation risk

Valuation risk represents the risk that the value of an illiquid asset, when realised upon sale, differs from
the valuation placed on it based on a valuer’s opinion. The valuation of assets, and thus the management
of valuation risk, is delegated to the Fund’s appointed investment managers.

IFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement, seeks to increase consistency and comparability in fair value
measurements through a ‘fair value hierarchy’, which categorises the inputs used in valuation techniques
into three levels. Level 1 assets are those for which fair value can be measured via quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets (such as those traded on stock exchanges). Level 2 assets require inputs other
than quoted market prices falling under level 1 for fair value assessment (such as prices quoted in inactive
markets, interest rates or credit spreads, for example). Level 3 assets require unobservable (non-public)
inputs for fair value assessment and in practical terms, are those considered to be the most illiquid and
difficult to value.

The majority of the Fund’s underlying investments are in liquid quoted assets, representing minimal
valuation risk (falling under level 1 and 2 of IFRS 13's fair value hierarchy). The Fund has investments in
Property, Infrastructure and certain other illiquid assets that are classified as level 3 assets with a fair value
of £4,372.0m as at 31 March 2023 (2022: £4,082.2m), which represents 22% of total assets (2022: 21%).
The guidance of IFRS 13 includes additional disclosures for level 3 measurements that include the
reconciliation of opening and closing balances and quantitative information about unobservable inputs and
assumptions used. Valuation of the Fund’s investments falling under the scope of this guidance is
conducted by their respective appointed investment managers.

Market risk - currency risk

Currency risk represents the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Fund is exposed to currency risk on any
financial instruments not denominated in GBP sterling, the functional currency of the Fund. The Fund holds
both monetary and non-monetary assets denominated in currencies other than GBP. The table below
indicates a measure of the sensitivity of the investment assets and cash balances within each asset class
to currency market movements, based on the expected 1-year standard deviations of each of the
underlying foreign currency exposures within the respective asset classes.

The calculations behind these potential market movements account for the diversification effects between
currencies within each holding. However, the calculations do not account for the Fund'’s use of foreign
currency forwards and exchange traded futures contracts, which are held to hedge certain currency
exposures for the purpose of risk reduction. The extent of this hedging activity is subject to change over
time.

Page 87



Appendix A

Currency risk sensitivity analysis

Asset value as at = Potential market | Value on Value on

Asset Type 31 March 2023 movement Increase Decrease
Equities®
Property

Fixed Interest*
Private Equity
Alternatives®
Liquid Assets
Total®

* At the time of publishing this Statement of Accounts in June 2023, the Fund was awaiting confirmation of
values as at 31 March 2023 from its investment advisors. The table above will therefore be updated upon
receipt of these values.

Asset value as at  Potential market Value on Value on

Asset Type 31 March 2022 movement Increase @ Decrease
£m £m £m £m

Equities* 10,679.2 715.9 11,395.1 9,963.3
Property 1,520.8 10.8 1,531.6 1,510.0
Fixed Interest** 4,469.0 100.2 4,569.2 4,368.8
Private Equity 1,439.2 76.8 1,516.0 1,362.4
Alternatives*** 1,244.3 38.4 1,282.7 1,205.9
Liguid Assets 776.2 52.7 828.9 723.5
Total**** 20,128.7 994.8 21,123.5 19,133.9

* Currency exposures of the overseas equity holdings have been calculated using generic indices.

** Includes exposure to fixed interest gilts, index-linked gilts, overseas government bonds, US TIPS, corporate bonds, emerging market debt, multi-asset credit

and private credit.

***Includes exposure to absolute return and infrastructure investments.
****Excludes exposure to futures and forwards.

Market risk - interest rate risk

The Fund recognises that movements in interest rates can affect both income to the Fund and the value of
the Fund’s assets, both of which affect the value of the assets available to pay benefits. The tables below
estimate the impact of a 100 basis points (bps) interest rate movement on the value of the Fund’s Fixed
Income assets, using the duration of the underlying positions in each asset class which have been obtained
from the fund managers, to approximate the sensitivity to interest rate movements. This analysis assumes
that all other variables (such as exchange rate movements) are constant, assessing only the impact of

interest rate movements in isolation.

Page 88



Interest rate risk - sensitivity analysis

Asset Type

Index-linked Gilts

Appendix A

Carrying amount as
at 31 March 2023

£m

Change in year in the net
assets available to pay
benefits
+100BPS -100BPS

Gilts

Gilt Future

Overseas Government Bonds

US TIPS

Corporate Bonds

Emerging Market Debt

Mulit-Asset Credit

Private Credit

Swaps

Total

* At the time of publishing this Statement of Accounts in June 2023, the Fund was awaiting confirmation of
values as at 31 March 2023 from its investment advisors. The table above will therefore be updated upon

receipt of these values.

Carrying amount as at
31 March 2022

Change in year in the net
assets available to pay

Asset Type benefits
+100BPS -100BPS
£m £m
Index-linked Gilts 1,034.5 (210.1) 210.1
Gilts* 206.2 (28.5) 28.5
Gilt Future (1.3) (11.7) 11.7
Overseas Government Bonds 99.6 (7.6) 7.6
US TIPS 328.2 (36.9) 36.9
Corporate Bonds 1,129.1 (70.8) 70.8
Emerging Market Debt 717.2 (43.4) 43.4
Mulit-Asset Credit 683.3 (24.2) 24.2
Private Credit** 206.5 (0.2) 0.2
Swaps 2.6 - -
Total 4,405.9 (433.3) 433.3

* The impact of a 100bps increase/decrease has been calculated using the exposure provided by the

Future (£140.9m).

** Excludes legacy and immaterial positions (total: £6.4m).

Note: Durations are as at 31 March 2022.

Page 89




Appendix A
Market risk - other price risk

The Fund is exposed to other market risks, such as share and derivative price risks, which arises from
investments held by the Fund of which the future price is uncertain. The Fund aims to reduce the exposure
to this price risk by ensuring appropriate levels of diversification in its asset allocation. The asset allocation
is monitored on an ongoing basis to ensure it remains in line with the limits specified in the Fund’s
investment strategy.

The tables below indicate a measure of sensitivity of the returns of each major asset class in which the
Fund is invested, based on the 1-year standard deviation of returns within the respective asset classes,
excluding the effects of interest rate risk and currency risk which are disclosed separately above. The
tables also show an estimate of the impact of this potential volatility on asset values.

Other price risk - sensitivity analysis

Assumed 1
Value as at 31  Year Volatility Value on Value on
Asset Type March 2023 of Asset Class | increase  decrease
£m £m £m
UK equities
Global equities (ex UK)
Property

Fixed interest
Private equity
Alternatives
Total Fund

* At the time of publishing this Statement of Accounts in June 2023, the Fund was awaiting confirmation of
values as at 31 March 2023 from its investment advisors. The table above will therefore be updated upon
receipt of these values.

Value as at Assumed 1
31 March Year Volatility Value on Value on
Asset Type of Asset Class increase decrease
£m

UK equities 1,337.6 19.0% 1,591.9 1,083.4
Global equities (ex UK) 9,341.5 16.2% 10,851.7 7,831.3
Property 1,520.8 11.8% 1,700.3 1,341.3
Fixed interest* 4,469.0 5.1% 4,696.9 4,241.1
Private equity 1,439.2 31.2% 1,888.3 990.0
Alternatives** 1,244.3 12.8% 1,403.7 1,084.9
Total Fund *** (See note below) 19,352.5 21,752.2 16,952.8

*includes exposure to fixed interest gilts, index-linked gilts, overseas government bonds, US TIPS, corporate bonds, emerging market debt, multi-
asset credit and private credit.

**includes exposure to absolute return and infrastructure investments.

***excludes futures, forwards, cash deposits, foreign currency holdings, broker balances and the outstanding dividend entitlement.

The total Fund volatility taking into account the expected interactions between the different asset classes
shown, based on the underlying volatilities and correlations of the assets, in line with mean variance
portfolio theory is 12.4%. On this basis, the total value on increase is £21,752.2 million and the total value
on decrease is £16,952.8 million. Due to the approach taken to determine the total Fund volatility (in which
the beneficial impact of diversification is recognised), the monetary impact on the total Fund assets is
determined using the total Fund volatility, which is lower than the sum of the monetary impact for each

asset class.
Page 90



Appendix A

Reputational risk

The Fund’s prudent approach to the collective risks listed above and compliance with best practice in

corporate governance ensures that reputational risk is kept to a minimum.

Note P25 - Impairment for bad and doubtful debts

The following additions and write offs of pension payments were reported in this financial year, in line with

the Fund’s policy:

Additions analysis 2022/23

Individual Value Number Total £

Less than £100 6 181
£100 - £500 - -
Over £500 -
TOTAL 6 3,985

Write off analysis 2022/23

Individual Value Number Total £

Less than £100 408 18,289
£100 - £500 11 2,306
Over £500 3 48,125
TOTAL 422 68,720

Page 91




Appendix A
Note P26 - Related parties

Pensions administration and certain investment functions are performed by the City of Wolverhampton
Council and the costs shown in Note P13 above are recharged to the Fund. Contributions of £24.7 million
were receivable from the City of Wolverhampton Council for 2022/23 (2021/22: £31.8 million) - City of
Wolverhampton Council had paid its 2022/23 future service contributions in advance as part of a lump sum
payment of £57.3m on 30 April 2018. Balances owed by and to the Council at the year-end are included
within Notes P19, P20 and P21.

Pensions Committee

Nine members of the Pensions Committee are also members of the Fund as set out below:

Pensioner: Councillors: M Jaspal, P Page, P Davis, and T Singh.
Trade Union Representatives: M Clift and M Cantello

Deferred: None to report

Active: Trade Union Representative: J Wadrup

Each member of the Pensions Committee is required to declare any interests relevant to the matters being
discussed at each meeting.

There are five employing bodies of the Fund in which a member of the Committee has declared an interest
for 2022/23. Contributions from each of these employers are set out below:

Contributions receivable Contributions receivable
2021/22 2022/23
s 0[0]0) £000
- | Birmingham City Council 26,299
- | Goldthorne Park Primary School 140
27 | Kingswood Trust 29
4,624 | Sandwell Children's Trust 4,856
2,239 | West Midlands Combined Authority 4,356
4,953 | Wolverhampton Homes -

LGPS Central Limited

LGPS Central Limited has been established to manage investment assets on behalf of nine Local
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) funds across the Midlands. It is jointly owned in equal shares by the
eight administering authorities participating in the LGPS Central Pool, of which City of Wolverhampton
Council, as the administering authority for West Midlands Pension Fund, is one of the shareholders. Each
authority has one Class A voting share in LGPS Central Limited.

City of Wolverhampton Council (via the Pension Fund) has invested £1.315m in LGPS Central Limited
class B shares and £0.685m in class C shares in 2017/18 and these are both carried as balances in net
investment assets at this yearend.

The Fund has agreed a number of advisory agreements covering a range of asset classes for which LGPS
Central has provided services to the Fund. The charges in respect of these services totalled £2.150m in
2022/23 (2021/22: £2.085m). The amount outstanding in respect of these services at 31 March 2023 was
£0.552m (31 March 2022: £0.985m).

As part of the Pool Cost Sharing Arrangement, the Pension Fund was invoiced £2.873m in respect of
Governance, Operator Running and Product DS/glapemgrﬁ costs by LGPS Central Limited for 2022/23



Appendix A
(2021/22: £2.017m). The amount outstanding in respect of these services at 31 March 2023 was £0.742m
(31 March 2022: £0.633m).

LGPS Central Limited previously let office space from City of Wolverhampton Council from 1 April 2018 to 1
April 2022 on a sub leasing arrangement. The rental income and rates receivable by City of
Wolverhampton Council from LGPS Central Limited in 2022/23 totalled £nil (2021/22: £68,549) and the
reimbursement of associated utilities and maintenance charges for 2022/23 totalled £nil (2021/22:
£13,455).

LGPS Central Limited is an admitted body and employs staff that are active members of the West Midlands
Pension Fund. Normal contributions receivable from LGPS Central Limited for the year to 31 March 2023
were £613,900 (2021/22: £519,800).

Key management personnel

The Fund has identified the Executive Director of Pensions, West Midlands Pension Fund and the Chief
Executive, City of Wolverhampton Council as key management personnel with the authority and
responsibility to control or exercise significant influence over the financial and reporting decisions of the
Fund. The combined compensation for these officers attributable to West Midlands Pension Fund is shown
in the table below:

2021/22 2022/23 |
£000 £000 |
142 | Short-term benefits 146
37 | Post-employment benefits 38
179 184

Note P27 - Events after the reporting date

No post balance sheet events have occurred which impact upon the balances and transactions reported for
the year.

The “McCloud” Court Judgement will have significant impact for all public sector pension schemes. When
reforms were introduced in 2014 and 2015, protections were put in place for older scheme members. In
December 2018, the Court of Appeal ruled that younger members of the Judges and Firefighters Pension
schemes were discriminated against because the protections did not apply to them also. The Government
has undertaken a number of consultations from 2020, with the most recent being received in May 2023,
and due to close in June 2023. The remedy will be implemented in two phases; Phase one involves moving
all remaining active members of legacy schemes (members with protection) into the new schemes on 1
April 2022 so that, going forward, all accruals will be in the new schemes (and so all active members will be
treated equally). Phase two is implementation of the deferred choice underpin. That is, giving eligible
members a choice between legacy scheme and new scheme benefits for service between 1 April 2015 and
31 March 2022. The final regulations are expected in the late summer of 2023, with the regulations being
live from October 2023.

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank



This report is PUBLIC

Agenda Item No: 11

woviriameron | Pensions Board

COUNCIL
4 July 2023
Report title Investment Governance
Originating service Pension Services
Accountable employee Paul Nevin Assistant Director, Investment Strategy
Email Paul.nevin@wolverhampton.gov.uk
Report to be/has been Rachel Brothwood Executive Director of Pensions
considered by Email Rachel.brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk

Recommendations for action:

The Pensions Board is asked to note:

1. The update on investment governance matters including those in relation to responsible
investment and investment pooling.

2. The publication of the Fund’s Annual Stewardship Report 2023 outlining the Fund'’s
stewardship activities during 2022 aligned with the 2020 Stewardship code: Annual
Stewardship Report 2023

Page 95


https://www.wmpfonline.com/investments/responsible-investment
https://www.wmpfonline.com/investments/responsible-investment
mailto:Paul.nevin@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:Rachel.brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk

1.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

2.0

2.1

2.2

This report is PUBLIC

Purpose and Background

This report provides an update on investment related matters and an update on responsible
investment activities, together with the ongoing development of Local Government Pension
Scheme (LGPS) Central Investment Pool.

The Fund has a longstanding policy of supporting good corporate governance in the
companies in which it invests. The Fund will also challenge companies who do not meet
either the standards set by their peers or reasonable expectations as measured by best
practice. The Fund’s approach is part of its overall investment management arrangements
and its active Responsible Investment Framework. There are three main pillars to the
framework: selection (of assets), stewardship (of assets), and transparency &
disclosure. The Fund’'s Responsible Investment Framework incorporates four targeted
engagement themes including Climate Change, for which the Fund has developed a policy
framework and risk management strategy.

LGPS Central Ltd (“the Company”) is a jointly owned investment management company
established by West Midlands Pension Fund and seven Partner Funds to deliver
investment pooling for the LGPS Central pool in accordance with the criteria laid down by
the Secretary of State. The pool plays a role in enabling and supporting the implementation
of the Partner Fund Investment Strategies.

Investment products and services to Partner Funds are developed, supported, and
overseen by the governance structures established within the Company and across the
wider investment pool. The Shareholder Forum and Joint Committee each meet at least
twice annually with the Shareholder Forum considering shareholder related matters such as
the Company’s strategic business plan, annual budget and annual report and accounts. The
Joint Committee is focused on the client deliverables of investment pooling, together with
governance and oversight of pooling arrangements.

Investment Strategy and Implementation

The Fund’s Investment Advisory Panel (IAP) plays a key role in supporting
discussion and decision making of the Fund’s officer’s in undertaking their
delegation from the Pensions Committee to implement the Fund’s investment
strategy. The IAP includes two external advisers, alongside the Executive Director of
Pensions, Assistant Director of Investment Strategy and Assistant Director of
Investment Management and Stewardship. The Panel provides challenge to the
Internal Investment committee (I1IC) on asset allocation and investment strategy as
well as bringing a market view on investment implementation. The Pensions
Committee received an annual report from the IAP, including a review from the external
members, at their meeting on 21 June.

The Pensions Committee approved a revised Investment Strategy Statement (ISS) at
their March meeting. The IIC, with advice from their Investment Consultant and with
input from the IAP, have developed a three-step plan to implement the revised ISS in
the period up to March 2025.

Page 96



3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

4.0

4.1

4.2

This report is PUBLIC

Responsible Investment

The Fund continues to engage with its investee companies and other key stakeholders
through partnerships and on its own. The Fund aims to protect and increase shareholder
value by engaging on a range of financially material economic, social and governance
(ESG) investment factors. A significant part of the Fund’s engagement programme is
implemented through partnerships including the Local Authority Pension Fund Forum
(LAPFF), EOS at Federated Hermes (‘EOS’ - via a contract held by LGPS Central Ltd, the
Fund'’s investment pool operator), the Institutional Investors Group on Climate Change
(IIGCC), Climate Action 100+ (CA 100+), the Transition Pathway Initiative (TPI), and the
Principles for Responsible Investment (PRI).

The Fund’s engagement activity is monitored and reported to the Pensions Committee on a
quarterly basis. Engagement activity includes a number of direct company engagements,
on a range of themes, voting activity and working in partnership with other institutional
investors to consider shareholder resolutions. Activity and progress are included in
published reports from LGPS Central Limited, LAPFF and EOS at Federated Hermes.

The Fund submitted the third iteration of its Annual Stewardship Report (ASR) to the
Financial Reporting Council (FRC) on 31st May 2023. The report outlines the Fund’s
alignment to the UK Stewardship Code 2020, which sets high stewardship standards for
those investing money on behalf of UK savers and pensioners, and those that support
them. The ASR outlines the Fund’s continued focus on stewardship activities both as a
responsible asset owner and employer. The report comprises the Fund’s key stewardship
achievements and responsible investment, engagement, and voting activity for the 2022
calendar year.

During the year the Fund enhanced its reporting in relation to climate-related risks which
includes new climate scenario modelling. Key focus areas for the Fund over the next few
years will be developing its internal reporting, oversight, and data framework across its
investment portfolio to enable more meaningful analysis and reporting across all the Fund’s
assets and improving the quality of decision-making as well as meeting the expected
increase in climate related disclosure requirements. The Fund will continue to work with its
investment partners, including LGPS Central Limited, to enhance the quality and coverage
of data across our portfolio so that we can monitor progress of our climate strategy and net
zero ambitions. The Fund believes that having a flexible approach is of great importance in
the current environment and we expect our approach to evolve as the landscape and
industry develops. The Fund expects to receive confirmation of retention of its 2020
Stewardship Code signatory status along with feedback on the report from the FRC in
September 2023

LGPS Central Investment Pool Governance

As previously reported to the Board, the governance arrangements for the LGPS Central
pool include a Shareholder Forum (as the group of “owner” representatives) and the Joint
Committee (focused on investment matters and client-side).

At the Shareholder forum and Company meeting in February 2023, Shareholders welcomed
two incoming Non-Executive Directors (appointed to replace those reaching end of term)
and received an update on the implemeYagjierbf the Board's succession plan. In line with



4.3

4.4

4.5

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

This report is PUBLIC

the plan, approved by Shareholders in February 2022, recruitment of an additional Non-
Executive Director concluded in June 2023 and subject to Shareholder approval, the new
hire will join the Board at the end of this month, bringing additional customer and
commercial experience to the Board.

Following the departure of the CEO in June, the Company continues to progress and
deliver the business plan approved by Shareholders in February 2023. Partner Funds have
received assurances on the day-to-day operation of the Company, with the Deputy Chief
Executive stepping into the Chief Executive Officer role interim, subject to FCA approval.
The Executive Director of Pensions is currently Chair of the Shareholder Forum and will
continue to monitor developments and consult Partner Funds and the Chair of Pensions
Committee, as recruitment progresses and the Board continues to support the Company’s
ongoing development and Executive Committee.

The Chair of the Pensions Committee is appointed West Midlands’ representative to the
Pool’s Joint Committee, with invite and attendance at the Committee extended to Malcolm
Cantello. The next meeting of the Joint Committee is due to take place in July 2023
following Local Government Elections.

Board members will continue to receive invites to pool-wide events including stakeholder
days and the Responsible Investment summit, as these are arranged during the year.

Financial Implications

The cost for setting up and running the jointly owned company is shared equally between
the Partner Funds. There are significant transition costs involved in unwinding and
transferring as investment mandates into new collective investment vehicles. Transition
costs are shared between the Partner Funds on a fair and equitable basis and are incurred
when assets are transitioned.

West Midlands Pension Fund’s share of all costs (including the regulatory capital provided
to LGPS Central Ltd) are met from the Fund, and there is therefore no direct impact on the
administering authority’s revenue or capital budgets and no impact on member benefits.
All cost sharing principles together with financial modelling of the operational costs and
fee models are monitored by Partner Funds.

Legal Implications

The requirement to pool Fund investments is a requirement of law, failure to work
collaboratively and meet the Government’s criteria for delivery may result in Government
intervention.

Equalities Implications

There are no direct equalities implications arising as a result of this report.

Page 98



This report is PUBLIC

8.0 All Other Implications
8.1  There are no other implications arising as a result of this report.
9.0 Schedule of Background Papers

9.1 WMPF Annual Stewardship Report 2023: Annual Stewardship Report 2023

10.0 Schedule of Appendices

10.1 None.

Page 99


https://www.wmpfonline.com/investments/responsible-investment

This page is intentionally left blank



This report is PUBLIC

CITY or
WOLVERHAMPTON
COUNCIL

Agenda ltem No: 12

Pensions Board
04 July 2023

Report Title
Originating service

Accountable employee

Report to be/has been
considered by

Pensions Administration to 31 March 2023

Pension Services

Amy Regler Head of Operations
Email Amy.Reqgler@wolverhampton.gov.uk

Rachel Brothwood  Executive Director of Pensions
Email Rachel.Brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk

Recommendations for action:

The Pensions Board is asked to note:

1. Development of the Fund’'s membership and participating employers.

2. Performance and workloads of the key pension administration functions.

3. The 5 applications for admission from employers into the Fund as detailed in Section 9 and
Appendix E of this report, approved by Pension Committee.

o s

The review of the Fund’s Administering Authority Policy Statement 2023.
Progress of the transition to the new pension administration system.

Page 101



mailto:Amy.Regler@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:Rachel.Brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk

This report is PUBLIC

1.0 Purpose

1.1 Toinform the Pensions Board of the routine operational work undertaken by the Pensions
Administration Service areas during the period 1 January 2023 — 31 March 2023.

2.0 Background

2.1 The Fund provides a pension administration service covering employer, customer and
member services, data processing, benefit operations, payroll and systems/technical
support. A report is provided to Pensions Board on a quarterly basis to assist monitoring of
the activity and performance of these functions during that period.

3.0 Scheme Activity

3.1  Membership Movement — Main Fund

3.1.1 The total number of scheme member records in the Fund at 31 March 2023 stands at

345,241 with an overall increase since December 2022. The long-term trend over a 12 year
period in membership continues to illustrate a move towards a more mature profile
whereby, in general, pensioners and deferred memberships continue to rise.

Membership as at | Net Movements Membership as at
31 December 2022 | during the period 31 March 2023
Active Members 111,980 1,874 113,854
Deferred Members 116,188 -526 115,662
Pensioner Members 114,780 945 115,725
Total Members 342,948 2,293 345,241
— 323,795 333,934 335,101 338,591 339,238 340,528 342,948 345,211
f 287,874 302,070 2=
300,000 270,317 2775 X ool onof wesd s 12ak 3k 1arld 1578
250000 . 82 85,558 o '
200,000
a 10
150,000 8 9 9
100,000
sooo0 9 10828 10798 1 '
0
S NG & N N o
S & & & & &
,,;f&\ ,,;,‘} *5’”‘&\ "’;"!\ 4?‘1\ .,,»‘}

B Active Members

B Deferred Members

Page 102

Pensioner Members




3.2

3.2.1

3.2.2

3.2.3

3.2.4

4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

5.0

5.1

5.2

This report is PUBLIC

Workflow Statistics

The process analysis statistics in Appendix A show details of overall workflow within the
Pensions Administration Service during the period 1 January 2023 to 31 March 2023.
During the period covered by this report, 41,677 administrative processes were
commenced, and 42,925 processes were completed.

As we continue to see an increase in member movements, the workload volumes will also
naturally remain high. On 31 March 2023 there were 40,631 items of work outstanding. This
represents a decrease of 927 items outstanding compared to 31 December 2022 (41,558).
This decrease is mainly due to the focused work being undertaken to continue to target the
clearance of work in preparation for the change in pension administration software system.

Of the 40,631 items of work outstanding, 4,164 items are pending as a result of information
awaited from a third party e.g. scheme members, employers or transferring authorities and
36,467 processes are now either proceeding to the next stage of the process or through to
final completion.

Appendix B provides a summary of the key processes completed by volume across benefit
operational functions e.g. calculating benefits for retirements, pensioner member data
changes as well as the maintenance of updating membership details. The Fund continues
to monitor the level of members opting out of the scheme which remain at a low level, and
is currently c40% lower than for the previous year to date. Overall, we have seen another
year on year increase in processing across a number of key areas.

Key Performance Indicators (KPlIs)

The Fund uses a number of KPIs to measure performance when processing items such as
Transfers In and Out, Retirements and Deferred Retirements.

For 2022/23, one KPI did not cumulatively achieve the target:

e Deferred Retirements — payment of lump sum and creation of payroll record
(October and December)
o The KPI fell short of the 90% target, achieving 88%, due to restricted
timescales for payroll closedown and delayed re-opening. However, on
average, casework was completed within 4 days against the target of 5
over the period.

Further information on achievement of target KPIs by process by month over the reporting
period and Scheme year is included in Appendix C.

Customer Services

An overview of our front-line customer contact activity is shown in Appendix D. This outlines
the variety and volume of support provided by the Fund to address members’ pension
queries. An indication of the statistics for the previous year is included within the charts as a
comparative measure.

The most popular queries to our contact centre remain as follows:

Page 103



5.3

6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

This report is PUBLIC

Customers following up on an existing Fund process
Requests for Pensions Portal support

Enquiries about accessing pension benefits
Request for support with a Fund letter/form
Members updating their personal details

Contact volumes have been higher than usual over the January - March period when
increased member communications were issued, which included data cleanse email
address letters, pensioner annual and quarterly payslips/P60s and pensioner newsletter.
Overall for the 2022/23 year, the Fund saw a slight increase in call volumes of c1%
compared to 2021/22. The team have continued to work closely with Member Services to
stagger mailings sent to members, which smooths the impact on the contact centre and
reduces call queues/written response times, allowing us to better serve our customers and
reduce the number of chaser requests received.

Complaints

The Fund has a complaint monitoring framework, which enables regular monitoring and
review of trends impacting performance. Where a complaint highlights an improvement
area, this is investigated and monitored to help shape future services and improve overall
customer satisfaction going forward. This mirrors the process undertaken for general
customer feedback as outlined within the Customer Engagement Update.

Complaint numbers were higher than the last quarter, however the average remains low
compared to previous years and overall the number of complaints received by the Fund is
proportionally low compared to the number of scheme members, with 52 complaints
received for the last quarter. Of those complaints, 1 in 4 were upheld and lessons learned
were incorporated in training and process development. The percentage of upheld
complaints have largely remained stable over the last two years, allowing for variation
relating to specific events outside of the control of the Fund.

For the 2022/23 year, the Fund has seen a 50% decrease in received complaints compared
to the previous year. Of the total complaints received 1 in 3 were upheld.

Internal Dispute Resolution Procedure (IDRP) Casework

For 2022/2023, four cases have been referred to Stage One (two partially upheld, one not
upheld and one under investigation). Nine cases have been referred to Stage Two of the
procedure on appeal against the Fund, seven of which have not been upheld and two are
currently under investigation.

Employer Membership

During the period, the Fund has seen an increase in employer numbers, with the overall
number of employers registered with the Fund standing at 804 at 31 March 2023. Overall,
there has been an 82% increase since March 2014 as shown in the graph below, however,
for 2022/23 the rate of increase has slowed relative to previous years, and it is anticipated
that a more moderate increase will continue to be observed going forward.

Page 104



This report is PUBLIC

900

800
70
60
50
40 - . [/ i / P P P
b12 D
30 g
h1g 73
20
10

o O O O O o o o

VRN~ TN T N - S A T ) 2~ g Ly P
ORI R I IR R I P A G

e T \°
\\‘0‘(\‘(\\\‘(\‘(\\\‘(\'2/,%9@
O O O T Y Y (R O ) 2
RIS R R S .

M No. of employers

8.2  The employer base at 31 March 2023 is categorised into the following employer types:

600
500
400
300
200

Scheduled body (inc. Admitted bodies Academy
district councils,
parish councils,

Universities, colleges)

*The increase in Scheduled employers is due to to an new subsidiary created for an existing Scheduled
employer

8.3  The level of on-going work being processed at the end of the period is as follows:

. 52 admission agreements
. 28 academies
. 89 employer terminations

9.0 Application for Admission Body Status

9.1 Organisations must satisfy one or more of the admission criteria before they can be
admitted to the Fund following approval of applications. Where applications need to be
progressed outside of the Committee meeting cycle, Pensions Committee has delegated

Page 105



9.2

10.0

10.1

10.2

11.0

11.1

11.2

This report is PUBLIC

responsibility for approving such applications to the Executive Director of Pensions in
consultation with the Chair or Vice Chair of Pensions Committee.

There were 5 admissions to the West Midlands Pension Fund approved by Committee ,
these are detailed in Appendix E.

Pensions in Payment
The gross annual value of pensions in payment to March 2023 was £585.3m, £16.4m of
which (£9.4m for pensions increase and £7.0m for added year’s compensation) was

recovered from employing authorities and other bodies as the expenditure was incurred.

Monthly payroll details were:

Month Number Value (£)
January 2023 93,295 42,994,384
February 2023 93,540 43,074,067
March 2023 110,892 44,704,481

The March figure includes pensioners paid on a quarterly basis.
Transfer Out — All Casework
In total 255 individual transfer payments were made during the period 1 January 2023 to 31

March 2023, resulting in a total amount transferred of £14.6 million. This is broken down
into the following categories:

Type of transfer Number of transfer | Value of Transfer
payments Payments (£000s)

Non Local Government 34 £2,712

Pension Scheme (LGPS)

Interfund (LGPS Fund) 219 £11,851

Additional Voluntary 2 £6

Contributions

Non LGPS Transfers

11.2.1 During the period 1 January 2023 to 31 March 2023, 315 transfer value quotations were

issued to members considering transferring their benefits out of the scheme (in the prior
year 1 January 2022 to 31 March 2022, 371 transfer value quotations were issued to
members). The Fund continues to monitor any trends and increases in demands, as part of
its programme of work to protect members from potential pension scams.

11.2.2 In total 36 transfer payments were made during the period 1 January 2023 to 31 March

2023 (21 of these were to non public sector schemes) resulting in a total amount transferred
of £2.7 million (in the prior year 1 January 2022 to 31 March 2022 a total of 53 transfer
payments were made totalling £2.1 million). The payments by value and value break down
are as follows:

Page 106



This report is PUBLIC

Value of Transfer
Payments

Number of Transfer
Payments to Public

Number of
Transfer

Sector Schemes Payments to

Other Schemes

—
—

0 to £30,000

£30,001 to £100,000
£100,001 to £200,000
£200,001 to £300,000
£300,001 to £400,000
£400,001 to £500,000
Above £500,001
Total

O |O|O0O|=|=|O0O|W
= ala|lo|o|2]Jwlo;

Y
N

11.2.3 The Fund has seen a gradual increase in the number of requests from members for transfer
out quotes, however the number of members electing to progress with the transfer of their
benefits out of the Fund remains fairly low and stable (c11% of the quotations requested
year to date). The peak in volumes for this reporting period is in line with the same period
the previous year (14.29%). This is shown in the graph below:

Transfer Out - Quotes vs Payments

16.00%

14.58%
. 10.63%

14.00%
l 11.55%
I 7.89%
N H - I - [

0 0.00%
Jan - March Ap- June July - Sept Oct - Dec Jan - March
2022 2022 2022 2022 2023
Emm Quotes EEEEE Payments % Paid vs Quoted

600

500

0
14.29% 12.00%

400 10.00%

300 8.00%

0,
200 6.00%

4.00%

100
2.00%

11.2.4 Analysis has been undertaken of the Transfer out payments to non-public sector or
occupational schemes over the period of January to March 2023 to review the volume and
trends. During the period, of the 36 completed, a total of 21 non-public sector or
occupational scheme transfer out payments have been processed, to a total of 11 different
receiving schemes. There were 15 transfers under £30,000 in value, meaning members
were able to transfer these payments without a requirement to take financial advice. The
average age of members transferring out was 51 years with the main reasons for members
transferring out was either to consolidate their benefits into one provider or release
cash/flexible draw down (members over 55).

Page 107



12.0

121

12.2

12.3

12.4

13.0

13.1

13.2

13.3

This report is PUBLIC
Administering Authority Policy Statement 2023

Under the LGPS Regulations, the Fund is required to formally publish its policy on its
‘discretions’. Administering authorities have certain powers which enable them to choose
how they will apply the scheme in respect of certain provisions. These are called
discretions. Discretions is taken to include where the administering authority is required to
carry out a task, but an element of choice is seen to exist as to how the task is completed.

The Fund are obliged to consider how to exercise their discretion and, in respect of some
(but not all) of these discretionary provisions, to have a written policy on how they will apply
their discretion, these are also to be published and kept under review. Within the policy
there are circa 50 areas covered, and these include; admission of admission bodies,
commutation of small pensions, management of funding strains, for example on members
taking unreduced benefits on early retirement.

The Fund has undertaken a review of the policy and as there have not been any major
scheme changes since the statement was approved in 2021, no changes to the discretion
statements have been made. The Fund will continue to review the document on a triennial
basis or as and when significant circumstances change.

The policy statement was approved by Committee and is, applicable from June 2023, a
copy is attached at Appendix F.

Transition to the New Pension Administration System

The Fund’s pension administration system manages all of the Fund’s membership data and
is used to process and calculate all member benefits in line with the scheme regulations. It
provides a fully integrated document management solution, managing all incoming and
outgoing documentation to members. In addition, it supports the administration and
engagement with employers. Under this contract the Fund also procures the online services
for the Fund’s members and employers, which enable self-service and enhanced electronic
working for exchanging data and customer support.

The Fund is in the final stages of its transition to a new supplier Equniti, and system
Compendia, with the planned go live date summer 2023. The Fund is working closely with
the supplier to undertake thorough testing of the new system and associated functionality in
advance of the change over. As part of the transition the Fund is mapping the data held in
the current system to the new system, which will require a short period of downtime for core
processing prior to the go live with the new system, as the data is extracted and mapped
across. The Fund are working to minimise the impact on the members and employers and
will continue to offer support to members during this period.

During the summer the Fund will write to all members about the change in system and
provide them with details of how to register on their new online portal and to enable them to
self serve and manage their pension account. A suite of supporting materials will also be
available to members, including videos and frequently asked questions, with face to face
support available in the Autumn at the Fund’s roadshow events.

Page 108



This report is PUBLIC
14.0 Financial Implications
14.1 The report contains financial information which should be noted.

14.2 Employees of organisations who become members of the LGPS will contribute the
percentage of their pensionable pay as specified in the Regulations.

15.0 Legal Implications

15.1 The Fund, on behalf of the City of Wolverhampton Council will enter into a legally binding
contract with organisations applying to join the LGPS under an admission agreement.

16.0 Equalities Implications

16.1 There are no direct equalities implications.
17.0 All Other Implications

17.1  There are no other potential implications.
18.0 Schedule of Background Papers

18.1 None.

19.0 Schedule of Appendices

19.1  Appendix A: Workflow Summary

19.2 Appendix B: Detailed Process Analysis
19.3 Appendix C: Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)
19.4 Appendix D: Customer Service Statistics
19.5 Appendix E: Admitted Body Applications

19.6 Appendix F: Administering Authority Policy Statement 2023

Page 109



This page is intentionally left blank



po13|dWo) S3SSII0Id W PIMLIS S3SSIV04J W

[4derd [4derd [44rd
€¢0¢ €¢0¢ €¢0¢C Joquiedsg  J3qWISAON [4drd Jaquiandas [aderd [4drd
YJew e Adenigeige  Adenuer g 1€ (013 199010 T€ 0€ 1sn3ny 1€ 20T AINFTE ZeOzaunrog zeoz AN TE  |MdV OE

pa13|dwo) $3s5320.4d SA PalJe)S SISSAI0.J |BIO0L

000¢

000t

0009

0008

0000T

000cT

000ovT

00097

0008T

vV Xipuaddy

Page 111



This page is intentionally left blank



OvL'€9LL]|LE6'VL) 0vS'c6 G62'c6 €PEvOL ¥€0°€6 1GG'C6 6¥2'col S¥0°'26 |¥9.°16 |L02°20L |€2Z'l6 |2S6°06 |P08°0.8 |681°LEQ |VCLT6L pled Jaquinu [eEnjoY
l104Aed
L¥9¢€ 421 e 0cs 981 Sle €lLe (344 6€C 6L €0¢€ Sie cle lok‘’e  |svlc |s80C sJauolsuad jo syjeaq
gLie 124 291 08l 191 €eC 19l 08l feie]) €91 ocl 961 €6l €8.c |i1eS‘c |Lle6C ueg jo sebueyn
0612 (444 991 3°74 1745 8l 681 174 60¢C 0S¢ yxa4 444 18¢ lel'c |189'c |ozve ssaIppy 4o sebueyn
992 €8¢ (34’ 8G1 ¥89 Lee x4’ cLL €8l 6EL Sl 881 SlL Gog‘L |08l |oLE‘l sIaquInN [N ‘spiomssed Ba ereq
-:$90UBISWNI Ul sabuey)

adA} ssasoady’)

1

slaquiaw ._m:o_m:mn_l

()

(@)

©

yr6eL oLl 9L (314" 3%°] [4JA" 0LLL 096 vL6 0961 6811 S06 1€9 suoneweBewiL
vEL 16 69 0S se 8¢ 6. 45 19 8. efe] 18 1S sino 1o
19€9 6.9 89% €eL y9¢ 0€9 18G 6€S €Ls 119 28§ Ly 144 punjay
Sly 9€ 14 Ly [44 1€ (¥4 129 44 8¢ L€ 4] o€ 182 29¢ Gg62 slaquisw jo syjesqg
L1GS 6G€ 144 €61 0Ly 128 089 iy 6.y 5144 (X474 98y %14 LL6'C |06'C |cege Sjuswiall}ey pansieqg
0¢se €8¢ 00¢ S8l 8G1 102 18l 92¢ 2se VA74 €Ll 1€2 102 G/¥'z |ose'e |lLE€ (syuswainal sohojdwz) sjusWBINEY SANOY
8/.1¢L 120l 161 256 JASYA 1431 L1101 196 [4%5] oLl SGlLL 810l 96 LwL'S  |818°L |6€6°S sjuswisieQd
G891 €6Y 80t [4:14 €.2 €ee (Y24 VA44 yXa4 99t 0cy 99¢ 662 Gee'zl [eoe'sl eS8l sinoy ur 8bueyo Ba seouejswnalId Ul sebueyd
L¥861 061 ¥81 L¥9¢ 106 PATAN v.81 G881 8G¢l cLLl 8911 (174} €L11 8cLLL [e0p'9 |€9L'8 (MIng) sssuiofey pue siaulor
adA} ssasolud
slaquidll paLdjeq B oAndY

alA yoep Krenigag Kinuep | soquiedaq | sequenoN | 12qoyQ | sequeydasg | ysnbny | Anp aunp Kep mdy | evzioz | zinioz | Liotoz
sisAjeuy ssadoud pajieiaq
d X_UCQQQ< Joday [ed13sie)s sapiuio) uoisuad



This page is intentionally left blank



€Z-leN B €7-09{W €C-UE[M 77090 M TZAONE CZ-POm 7z-desm 7z-Snym zznfm Zz-unfm gz-Aewm  gz-idym

(o
&)
2% 3°
> ( N
& & & &
20 QO P~ 2 &
& 25 < Y @
2 > S \ 3° &
NS S > N N
P ,% % & > 2 P
EN @ > O N S N
QO , N 2 R 2 R L
¥ 4@0 P & o~ > S N
5 N N N N » N N
S 2 ¥ & Q ) o o >
P N N N > & > ) >
K ¥ o x> 2 S N S o N B 3
O 3 Y <) © 2 > N X 50 o
% D) & N o & & S ¥ & S & R & ¢
X 5 -+ d .
%4@ S s&o;,, mo% oo% )@/@ 00& o%w xo,v ,n% N m«\% <© <& &
NG \S R N o @ Y o & & N o N §° N
S @ R § 5 ® § S < g o $ S &
9 N > N A N ¥ R I N e o > 2 N
& o5 N oF & o ol & & o © \@® ® oF o>
S By @0% /Jm\\u /v@&/ OO vio &&/ O&Dv QOWV @J,O o™ &Jmu QIVJ @:VJ
O@// @0v RS @ XS O«/%\ < Aw/v 3 & J.m.u/ J«m/v ‘0\.&/ OOJ OA/x
2N N -5 & P -~ & > & ? ? ? R R
0
(0)8
0¢
0¢
(017
0s
09
0L
08
06
0ot
Id)

J Xlpuaddy

Page 115



2021/22 vs 2022/23

. .& S
N >
bé
'bQ
&

100.00

90.00

80.00

70.00

60.00

50.00

40.00

30.00

20.00
10.00
0.00

Page 116

W 2021/22 m2022/23



%Ll |%8LC |%V9S- |%66°L %0LEL-1%SL 0L [%Lv Ll |%l6L- |%€96 [%ly'9- |%6S6- |%20°0C |%60'L

%EL 18 %G 'GL %80 VL |%SL 6L |%S0°E6 |%EL 'S8 (%S E8 (Y%l L8 |%0F 98 |%60°E8 [%SC 18 [%E9 L8 [%9E 09

60118 /208 €6¢.L ¥60.L 140144 6009 Ggee9 8961 €909 €199 14274 6629 vl8

1099 €619 8605 909 ¥6¢C€ GE9s 9€29 ¥1¥9 €v.S 9916 6l1S 1219 896¥

6,28 2028 2889 199/ 0¥S€ 6199 S9v. 8€E. L¥99 /L129 ceV9 0962 1€28

€¢/eeoe Je|y qo4 uer 297 AON {0 dag bny inf unp Kepy idy
TT/TT PRI3HO S8 1984e] %G8 ==

MN\NN paJamsuy s|jed)

JEN Q94 uef 290 AON PO dds S8ny nr

___-u. N o-

S||eD Suiwoduy

€2/TT Pa43440 S|[eD) .

unr  Aey

ady

0007
000¢
000€
000t
000S
0009
000£
0008
0006

S21)S1Je}S S99IAIaS Jawolsnd :q Xipuaddy

asealoul obejusolod

(%G8 1961e]) Bjey Jemsuy
22/1Z patayO slled
€¢/C¢ palamsuy sjled
€¢/¢¢ P3IdYO s|led

Page 117



%C8'€-  |%VSLL |%VCL %80°€E Y%V, LC- |%96°'SC  |%08°LE- [%9E6E- |%0L6L- [%8IL- |%cCvCl- |%C6'EL  |%8Y'S-
Z6.Ll€ ¥5.¢C lelC 16G¢ ¢cle 00¥¢ LEVC 086¢ 662¢ ¢0S¢ €v0g 90v¢ Lc6¢
¥0t0€ JANAS G9/.¢ 9Gve 1961 £20¢ 2991 1081 0981 09v¢ G99¢ \v.lC 19/¢
€z/220z  J1el qoed uer 298  AON 10 des  bny Inf unr  Aep 1dy
22/T7 PaNIR2aYy Ssaany €2/77 PAAI923Y S21USND)
JelAl 094 uef 29Q AON PO dds 3ny nr unf  Aeyy  ady

0
0§
0007
00ST
000¢
| - - a 00s¢

sallnbuj uaIMn

o

000¢
00s¢e
000

S21)S1Je}S S9IIAIAS Jawolsnd :q Xipuaddy

20uUaldljIp wmmu_._z_wo.hwn_
22/1 2 PBAIRdaY salanpd
€2/22C PBAIBIBY saland

Page 118



LlLE 9G1 8G¢ €9¢ eve GLe 62 18¢ [AST4 892 €0¢€ 0S¢ 88¢C
ozel Ly /01 o¢l o¢l 06 €al ovl 16 124" 8¢l 76 0s
€2/2202 Jey ged uep 29Q AON 100 deg  bny Ine unp Kepy 1dy
0Z/6T Ul SIOUSIA €¢/TT ul si0yis|\ .
JeN Q94 AON das 8ny Aep

uer 29Q

S21)S1Je}S S9IIAIaS Jawolsnd :q Xipuaddy

Inr

SJ101ISIA uondalay

o O
LN

0T
0ST
00¢
0S¢
00¢
(013

02/61 Ul SIOUSIA
€2/2C Ul SIOYSIA

Page 119



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix E

Application for admission body status

Employer name Guarantee Status No. of employees Status
(Agreement) (Scheme members) (Approved/pending
Agreement type approval)
ABM Catering Ltd Birmingham City 2 Pending approval
(Yardleys School) Council )
Closed
Easy Clean Contractors Arthur Terry 4 Pending approval
Limited Learning (4)
Partnership Closed
Accuro FM Ltd (Shaw Shaw Education 2 Pending approval
Education Trust) Trust 2)
Closed
Idverde UK Ltd (Solihull) Solihull MBC 4 Pending approval
4)
Open
Miquill Catering Ltd Knowle SAT 4 Pending approval
(Knowle C of E Primary) (4)
Closed

Page 121



This page is intentionally left blank



ADMINISTERING AUTHORITY
POLICY STATEMENT

West Midlands Pension Fund
([ ]




2 ADMINISTERING AUTHORITY POLICY STATEMENT - JUNE 2023

Under the LGPS Regulations, West Midlands Pension Fund (City of Wolverhampton Council) has
a number of discretions it can apply, this Statement sets out the practice and policy regarding
key discretions that fall to West Midlands Pension Fund (City of Wolverhampton Council) as an
Administering Authority or where an employer has become defunct.

The Fund is required to formally publish its policy on “discretions”. Discretions is taken to
include where the administering authority is required to carry out a task, but an element of
choice is seen to exist as to how the task is completed. Unless stated otherwise the references
to regulations are set out below with the following prefixes used throughout the draft.

- The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 [prefix R]

- The Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions, Savings and Amendment)
Regulations 2014 [prefix TP]

- The Local Government Pension Scheme (Administration) Regulations 2008 [prefix A]

- The Local Government Pension Scheme (Benefits, Membership and Contributions)
Regulations 2007 as amended) [prefix B]

- The Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions) Regulations 2008
[prefix T]

- The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 1997 (as amended) [prefix L]

This document was last reviewed and approved by Pension Committee in June 2023.
All pension discretions will be reviewed at least on a triennial basis, or as and when significant
circumstances change.

ADMISSION OF ADMISSION BODIES [REGULATION R4, R3(5) RSch2]

The administering authority may make an admission agreement with any admission body.
The administering authority can also make admission agreements with a Care Trust, NHS
Scheme employing authority or Care Quality Commission. An admission agreement may take
effect on a date before the date on which it is executed.

The Council will usually agree to an admission agreement with an admission body that is
regarded as having a community of interest, provided it is satisfied about the long-term
financial security of the body or it has a public sector guarantee. The administering authority
will enter into an admission agreement with other admission bodies provided that any
requirements it has set down are met. The Council may agree that the admission agreement
may take effect on a date before the date on which it is executed.

RIGHT TO TERMINATE ADMISSION AGREEMENT [RSch2]

The administering authority has the right to terminate an admission agreement in prescribed
circumstances. The Council shall retain the right to terminate an admission agreement in the
event of:

a) The insolvency, winding up or liquidation of the admission body,

b) A material breach by the admission body of any of its obligations under the admission
agreement or these Regulations which has not been remedied within a reasonable time, or

¢) Afailure by the admission agreement to pay any sums due to the fund within a reasonable
period after receipt of a notice from the administering authority requiring it to do so.

Page 124



ADMINISTERING AUTHORITY POLICY STATEMENT « JUNE 2023 3

EXIT PAYMENT [R64]

The administering authority may suspend (by way of issuing a suspension notice) for up to three
years, an employer’s obligation to pay an exit payment where the employer is again likely to
have active members within the specified period of suspension.

Where an intention to allow new members to join the scheme is identified, the Council may allow
the employer up to six months to admit such members.

ADDITIONAL PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS [R16]

The administering authority may turn down a request to pay an additional pension contribution
(APC) or shared-cost additional pension contribution (SCAPC) over a period of time where it
would be impractical to allow such a request. The member would still be able to pay via a single
lump-sum payment.

Due to the administration costs involved requests to pay additional pension contributions or
shared-cost additional pension contributions over a period of time in order to address an
absence from work of less than ten working days will be refused unless there are exceptional
circumstances.

MEDICAL EXAMINATION REQUIRED FOR PURCHASE OF APC/SCAPC [R16]

The administering authority may require the member to undergo a medical at their own expense
and may refuse an application if the authority is not satisfied that the member is in reasonably
good health.

The Council will require that a member provides satisfactory medical evidence to ensure they
can be reasonably expected to complete the contract undertaken and will not retire due to a
pre-existing medical condition on health grounds. No medical shall be required if the member is
paying for the additional pension by means of a lump-sum payment.

PAYMENT OF ADDITIONAL VOLUNTARY CONTRIBUTIONS ON THE DEATH

OF A MEMBER [R17]

The administering authority shall decide to whom to pay any AVC monies, including life
assurance monies are to be paid to on death of a member.

The Council will decide based on the individual circumstances of the case, who should receive
payment of the monies having regard to that it should be paid to or for the benefit of the
member’s nominee, personal representative or any person appearing to the authority to have
been a relative or dependent of the member.

PROVISION OF ESTIMATES IN RELATION TO TRANSFERS OF AVCS/FSAVCS [TP15 AND
A28]

The administering authority may charge a member for providing an estimate of additional
pension that would result from a transfer of in house AVC/SCAVC contributions.

Members may request a quote free of charge. In the exceptional case an additional request is
made, the Council reserve the right to charge.

Page 125



4 ADMINISTERING AUTHORITY POLICY STATEMENT - JUNE 2023

PENSION ACCOUNTS [R22]

A pension account may be kept in any form that the administering authority considers
appropriate.

The Council will decide the form in which pension accounts are kept based upon any published
information or best practice and in an efficient manner.

CONCURRENT EMPLOYMENT AND THE ABSENCE OF AN ELECTION FORM [TP10]

The administering authority shall decide in the absence of an election form from the member
within 12 months of ceasing a concurrent employment, and where there is more than one
ongoing employment which on going employment the benefits from the concurrent
employment should be aggregated with.

The one with the longest likely lifespan or the ongoing employment that is most similar to the one
that has ceased will be selected.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS [R30]

The administering authority, in cases where the current employer or the former employer
has ceased to be a scheme employer, may consent to waive, in whole or in part the actuarial
reduction where the member voluntarily draws their pension before normal pension age.

The administering authority may also in cases where the current employer or the former
employer has ceased to be a scheme employer may consent to waive, in whole or in part the
actuarial reduction on benefits paid on flexible retirement. Where a request is received, it will be
considered on an individual basis and on its own merit. However, where there is a cost as this
cost will have to be spread across all employers the cost has to be justified.

STRAIN ON THE FUND [R68]

The administering authority may require an employer who allows a member to retire by
reason of flexible retirement, redundancy or business efficiency to pay the additional
charge on the fund. This also includes the cost where the employer has chosen to waive
any reduction on flexible retirement or where the member voluntarily draws benefits
before normal retirement age.

The Council will require an employer to make the appropriate payment to meet the additional
charge where the member has retired early through flexible retirement, redundancy, business
efficiency or where the employer has exercised their discretion to waive any reduction as a
result of flexible retirement or voluntary retirement.

SWITCHING ON THE RULE OF 85 [TP Sch 2]

In cases where the current employer or former employer has ceased to exist, the administering
authority may consent to switch on the 85-year rule where the member is voluntarily drawing
benefits on or after age 55 and before age 60.

Where a request is received it will be considered on an individual basis and on its own merit.
However, where there is a cost, as this cost will have to be spread across all employers the cost
has to be justified.

Page 126



ADMINISTERING AUTHORITY POLICY STATEMENT « JUNE 2023 5

WAIVING THE REDUCTION [TP Sch 2 & B30]

In cases where the current employer or former employer has ceased to exist, the administering
authority may consent to waive any actuarial reduction on the benefits on pre- and/or post-April
2014 benefits.

Where a request is received, it will be considered on an individual basis and on its own merit.
However, where there is a cost as this cost will have to be spread across all employers the cost has
to be justified.

STRAIN ON THE FUND [TP SCH 2]

The administering authority may require an employer to pay any additional costs as a result of
the employer waiving the reduction in cases where the employer has consented to the early pay-
ment of on benefits before age 60 under Benefit Regulation 30.

The Council will normally require the employer to make the additional payment to meet any
additional cost.

EXTENSION OF THE TIME LIMIT TO DRAW BENEFITS [R32]

The administering authority shall decide whether to extend the time limits in which a member
must give notice of their wish to draw their benefits before normal retirement age or upon
flexible retirement.

Where a request is received asking for the time limit to be extended, the individual circumstances
will be considered on whether it is appropriate to extend the time limit.

COMMUTATION OF SMALL PENSIONS [R34, B39, T14, R39]
The administering authority may commute a small pension into a single lump sum.

The administering authority will commute small pensions when a member has made a request.

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED MEDICAL PRACTITIONER — APPROVAL [R36 & A56]

The administering authority shall approve the choice of the medical practitioner used by the
employer for ill-health retirement.

A medical practitioner who is registered with the General Medical Council and who has the
appropriate qualifications specified in the regulations will be approved.

CERTIFICATE PRODUCED BY AN IRMP UNDER THE 2008 SCHEME [TP12]

In cases where the employer or the former employer has ceased to exist to be a scheme
employer, the administering authority can use a certificate produced by an IRMP under the
2008 scheme to make a determination under the 2014 scheme.

The certificate will be allowed except in circumstances of a particular case the certificate is not
compliant with the requirements of the 2014 scheme.

Page 127



6 ADMINISTERING AUTHORITY POLICY STATEMENT « JUNE 2023

EARLY PAYMENT ON ILL-HEALTH GROUNDS - DEFERRED MEMBER [R38]

In cases where the employer or the former employer has ceased to exist to be a scheme
employer, the administering authority shall decide whether the deferred member meets the
criteria of being permanently incapable of carrying out their former job and are unlikely to be
capable of undertaking gainful employment before normal pension age or for at least three
years whichever is sooner.

Where a request is received each case will be considered individually and a decision will be made
based on the medical evidence and opinion provided by the independent registered medical
practitioner.

EARLY PAYMENT ON ILL-HEATH GROUNDS — DEFERRED PENSIONER MEMBER [R38]

In cases where the employer or the former employer has ceased to be a scheme employer,
the administering authority can decide whether a deferred pensioner is unlikely to be
capable of undertaking gainful employment before normal pension age because of ill health.

Where a request is received each case will be considered individually and a decision will be made
based on the medical evidence and opinion provided by the independent registered medical
practitioner.

PAYMENT OF THE DEATH GRANT [R40, R43, R46, TP17 & B23, B32, B35, TSCH & LI55]

The administering authority has absolute discretion in determining the recipients of any death
grant payable from the scheme.

Normally the death grant will be paid to the nominated beneficiary or the death grant could be
paid to the estate of the deceased. Where either or both of these options are seen to be
inappropriate or impossible, the Council shall exercise its absolute discretion in as to who should
receive the death grant.

NO DOUBLE ENTITLEMENT - BENEFITS DUE UNDER TWO OR MORE
REGULATIONS [R49 & B42]

The administering authority may decide in the absence of an election form from a member,
which benefit is to be paid where the member would be entitled to a benefit under two or more
regulations for the same period of scheme membership.

The member would be notified of the payment of the benefit that would provide the highest level
of payment.

ADMISSION AGREEMENT FUNDS [R54]
The administering authority may establish an admission agreement fund.

The Council has chosen not to set up an admission agreement fund.

Page 128



ADMINISTERING AUTHORITY POLICY STATEMENT + JUNE 2023 7

GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE STATEMENT [R55]

The administering authority must prepare a governance policy stating whether the
administering authority delegates its functions or part of its functions in relation to
maintaining a pension fund to a committee, a sub-committee or an officer of the
administering authority, and if they do so delegate, state:

- the terms, structure and operational procedures of the delegation;
« the frequency of any committee or sub-committee meetings; and

- whether representatives of employing authorities or members are included and if so whether
they have voting rights.

The policy must also state:

« the extent to which a delegation, or the absence of a delegation, complies with Secretary of
State guidance and to the extent it does not so comply, state the reasons for not complying; and

- the terms, structure and operational procedures appertaining to the Local Pensions Board.

The Governance Compliance Statement will be prepared, maintained and published. A copy will
be made available on our website www.wmpfonline.com

FUNDING STRATEGY STATEMENT [R58]

The administering authority must after appropriate consultation prepare maintain and publish
a statement setting out its funding strategy. The statement has to be published no later than
31 March 201s.

The Funding Strategy Statement is prepared, maintained and published annually. A copy is
available on our website www.wmpfonline.com

PENSION ADMINISTRATION STRATEGY [R59]

The administering authority may prepare and publish a pension administration policy and the
matters it should include.

The administering authority will publish a Pension Administration Strategy after consultation and
it will be kept under review. A copy is available on our website www.wmpfonline.com

COMMUNICATIONS POLICY [R61]

The administering authority must prepare and publish its communication policy. It must

set out its policy concerning communication with members, representatives of members,
prospective members and scheme employers, as well as the format, frequency and method of
communications, and the promotion of the scheme to prospective members and their
employers.

The administering authority publishes and maintains a communications policy, a copy of which
will be made available on our website www.wimpfonline.com

Page 129



8 ADMINISTERING AUTHORITY POLICY STATEMENT - JUNE 2023

REVISION OF EMPLOYER’S CONTRIBUTION RATE [R64]

The administering authority may obtain from the actuary, a certificate revising the employer
contribution rate, if there are circumstances which make it likely a scheme employer will
become an exiting employer.

A revised additional rate and adjustments certificates regarding employer contributions will be
obtained where it appears to be appropriate.

AGGREGATE SCHEME COSTS — REVISED CERTIFICATES [R65]

The administering authority may obtain a new rates and adjustments certificate if the
Secretary of State amends the regulations as part of the “cost sharing” arrangements.

A new rates and adjustments certificate will be obtained where it appears to be appropriate.

The administering authority shall decide on the dates which contributions are to be paid over to
the Fund.

All contributions (apart from additional voluntary contributions) should be credited to the Fund
without delay by the 19th of the month following the month in which they fall due.
INFORMATION PROVIDED BY EMPLOYERS ABOUT CONTRIBUTIONS —

FREQUENCY AND FORMAT [R69, TP23, 22 & R80]

The administering authority shall decide on the form and frequency of the information to
accompany payments to the Fund.

The administering authority will provide to employers the specified formats that employers are to
use for the submission of their data, which is to be provided monthly, in line with the payment of
contributions. A notification will be issued each year to inform employers of the deadline to
submit this data along with any format changes that will be required. The Fund requires this data
to be submitted to them no later than 30 April.

NOTICE TO RECOVER COSTS DUE TO EMPLOYER’S PERFORMANCE [R70]

The administering authority will decide to issue the employer with a notice to recover
additional costs incurred as a result of the employer’s level of performance.

As detailed in the Pension Administration Strategy, the Council will review from time to time
whether to issue an employer with notice to recover additional costs incurred as a result of the
employer’s level of performance.

EMPLOYER PAYMENTS — INTEREST ON OVERDUE PAYMENTS [R71]
The administering authority may charge interest on payments by employers which are overdue.

The Council reserves the regulatory prescribed right to require interest to be paid when payments
are overdue by more than one month. Interest must be calculated at one per cent above base rate
on a day to day basis from the due date to the date of payment and compounded with three
monthly rests.

Page 130



ADMINISTERING AUTHORITY POLICY STATEMENT « JUNE 2023 9

PROCEDURE TO BE FOLLOWED WHEN EXERCISING STAGE 2 DISPUTE
FUNCTIONS AND THE MANNER IN WHICH THOSE FUNCTIONS ARE TO
BE EXERCISED. [R76, A60, TP23 & R76]

The administering authority will decide how it will exercise its stage two dispute procedure and
the procedure to be followed.

The review would be undertaken by a person not involved in the first stage decision and by a
person appointed to deal with disputes referred to it under stage 2. The Council will ensure
suitable procedures are in place.

APPEAL TO THE SECRETARY OF STATE AGAINST EMPLOYER DECISION

[R79 & A63]

The administering authority may appeal to the Secretary of State against an employer decision or
lack of an employer decision.

The Council will appeal to the Secretary of State if it believes an employer has made (or failed to
make) a decision that is both wrong in law and material and where we have been unable to
persuade the employer to alter its actions or inactions.

EXCHANGE OF INFORMATION [R80, TP22, 23]

The administering authority shall specify the information to be supplied by employers to enable
the administering authority to discharge its function.

The Council will specify the information that is to be supplied by employers having regard to the
regulatory requirements and best practice.

MAKING PAYMENTS IN RESPECT OF DECEASED PERSON WITHOUT PROBATE/LETTERS
OF ADMINISTRATION [R82 & A52]

The administering authority may pay the whole or part of the amount due from the Fund to the
personal representatives or any person appearing to be beneficially entitled to the estate without
the production of probate or letters of administration where the amounts due are less the
amount specified in section 6 of the Administration of Estates (Small Payments) Act 1965.

Payment will normally be made without the production of probate or letters of administration
where the amount is below the specified amount.

PAYMENTS FOR PERSONS INCAPABLE OF MANAGING THEIR AFFAIRS
[R83, A52 & B27]

The administering authority may decide where a person (other than an eligible child) appears
incapable of managing their affairs, to pay the whole or part of that person’s pension benefits to
another person to be applied for the benefit of the member.

Where in the Council’s opinion a member is unable to manage their own affairs, then having
considered the individual circumstances of the particular case they may decide to pay some or
all of the benefits to someone else to be applied for the benefit of the member.

Page 131



10 ADMINISTERING AUTHORITY POLICY STATEMENT - JUNE 2023

DATE TO WHICH BENEFITS SHOWN ON ANNUAL BENEFIT STATEMENT
ARE CALCULATED [R89]

The administering authority will decide the date to which benefits shown on the annual
benefit statement are calculated.

The date will be selected in line with regulatory requirement and best practice.

BULK TRANSFER (TRANSFER OF UNDERTAKINGS) [R98]
The administering authority must agree any bulk transfer payment.

The terms of the bulk transfer will be discussed with the Fund’s actuary, and once all parties are in
agreement payment will be made.

TRANSFERS INTO THE FUND AND EXTENSION OF 12-MONTH TIME LIMIT
[R100]

The administering authority may accept a transfer value of pension rights into the Fund and
may also extend the time limit of 12 months from the date the member first became an active
member in their current employment.

The Council will accept a transfer value where a request is made. The Council will only agree to
extend the time limit where the appropriate employer has agreed to extend the time limit.

FINAL PAY REDUCTIONS [TP3, 4, 8,10, 17 & B10]

The administering authority will decide whether to use an average of three years pay for final pay
purposes where the member has died before making an election.

The pay figure which provides the highest overall level of benefits will be selected.

PERMANENT REDUCTIONS IN PAY - CERTIFICATES OF PROTECTION
[TP3, 4, 8,10, 17, TSch1 & 23]

The administering authority will decide for a member who has a certificate of protection who has
died before making an election which pay figure should be used for final pay purposes.

The pay figure which provides the highest overall level of benefits will be selected.

ELIGIBLE CHILD — IGNORING BREAKS IN EDUCATION OR TRAINING
[RSch1 & TP17]

The administering authority may treat a child as being in continuous educational or
vocational training despite a break.

The Council will accept short breaks and also gap years as being breaks in education and will
restart a suspended child’s pension at the end of such a break or gap.

FINANCIAL DEPENDENCE /INTERDEPENDENCE OF COHABITING PARTNER
[RSch1 & TP17]

The administering authority will decide upon the evidence required to determine the
financial dependence or financial interdependence of the cohabiting partner and the
scheme member.

The Council will provide details of the evidence required taking account of any guidance provided.

Page 132



ADMINISTERING AUTHORITY POLICY STATEMENT « JUNE 2023 1

ABATEMENT OF PRE-1 APRIL 2014 PENSION [TP & A70]

The administering authority shall decide whether and how to abate the pre-1 April 2014
pension element following re-employment of a scheme pensioner by a local government
employer.

In the event of a scheme pensioner obtaining further employment with a scheme employer the
pension will not be abated. The Fund resolved from 1 September 2006 not to abate pension on
re-employment.

EXTENSION OF TIME PERIOD FOR CAPITALISATION OF ADDED YEARS
CONTRACT [TP15, TSch1 & L83(5)]

The administering authority may extend the time allowed to a member who has an added years
contract and who is made redundant to decide whether to pay a capital payment.

The Council will apply the prescribed three month time limit, unless there are individual
circumstances which need to be considered in deciding whether to grant an extension of the
time limit.

RECOVERY OF UNPAID EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS AS DEBT/

FROM BENEFITS [A45]

The administering authority may recover any outstanding employee contributions as a debt or as
a deduction from the benefits.

The Council will, where practical deduct any unpaid employee contributions from the benefits
relating to the membership to which the unpaid contributions relate.

CONSENT FOR EARLY PAYMENT AND WAIVING OF REDUCTION
[B30 & TPSCH]

Where the former employer has ceased to be a scheme employer, the administering authority
may consent to waive the reduction for the payment of deferred benefits on compassionate
grounds.

Where a request is received it will be considered individually and on its own merit. However,
where there is a cost as this cost will have to be spread across all employers the cost has to be
justifiable.

‘SWITCH ON’ THE 85-YEAR RULE FOR A PENSIONER MEMBER WITH
DEFERRED BENEFITS

Where the former employer has ceased to be a scheme employer, the administering authority
may consent to ‘switch on’ the 8s-year rule for a pensioner member with deferred benefits
voluntarily drawing benefits.

The Council would not normally ‘switch on’ the 85-year rule.

Page 133



12 ADMINISTERING AUTHORITY POLICY STATEMENT - JUNE 2023

APPLICATION FOR EARLY PAYMENT OF A SUSPENDED TIER 3 ILL HEALTH
PENSION AND WAIVING REDUCTION [B30]

The administering authority may consent to the request for the early payment of pension
for a member, who left with a tier 3 ill-health pension that is suspended and who now is
aged between 55 and 60 where the former employer has ceased to be a scheme employer.
The administering authority may also waive any reduction.

Where a request is received, it will be considered individually and on its own merit. However,
where there is a cost, as this cost will have to be spread across all employers the cost has to be
justifiable.

REQUEST FOR EARLY PAYMENT OF DEFERRED BENEFITS ON ILL-HEALTH GROUNDS
[B31]

The administering authority may decide to agree to a request from a deferred member for early
payment of benefits on ill-health grounds where the former employer has ceased to exist.

The Council will obtain an opinion from an IRMP as to whether as the member meets the criteria
of permanent ill health and reduced likelihood of gainful employment.

SPOUSES’ PENSIONS ARISING UNDER THE 1995 REGULATIONS PAYABLE FOR LIFE

The administering authority shall decide to pay spouse’s pensions for life for pre-1 April 1998
retirees/pre-1 April 1998 deferreds who die on or after 1 April 1998, rather than ceasing the
pension during any period of marriage or cohabitation.

The Council has deemed that any spouses’ pension that comes into payment is payable for life.
This does not apply to spouses’ pensions that ceased prior to 1 April 1998.

Data Protection

To protect any personal information held on computer, the City of Wolverhampton Council is registered
under the Data Protection Act 2018. This allows members to check that their details held are accurate. The
Fund may, if it chooses, pass certain details to a third party, if the third party is carrying out an administrative
function of the Fund, for example, the Fund’s AVC provider. Members who wish to apply to access their data
on Data Protection Act grounds should contact the Fund’s Data Protection Officer via email at
wmpfdataprotectionofficer@wolverhampton.gov.uk

This authority is under a duty to protect the public funds it administers, and to this end may use information
for the prevention and detection of fraud. It may also share this information with other bodies administering
public funds solely for these purposes.

Information produced by the Fund can be made available in several formats including large sight text, Braille
and several community languages. If you have any special requirements or would like to speak face to face
with a member of staff, please contact us to arrange how we may best meet your needs. Please remember
that special requirements may take a little longer than normal to organise, but you have our assurance that
we will do our best to ensure you receive the information in the most appropriate and efficient manner
possible.

June 2023

Page 134



West Midlands Pension Fund
PO Box 3948
Wolverhampton

WV1 1XP

Customer Services: 0300 111 1665

Email: pensionfundenquiries@wolverhampton.gov.uk
Web: www.wmpfonline.com

Pensions Portal: www.wmpfonline.com/pensionsportal

Lines open during the following times:
8:30am to 5.00pm Monday - Thursday
8:30am to 4.30pm Friday.

Calls may be monitored for training purposes.

Version control:

Version  Responsible Officer  Change Date
Version 2 Head of Operations  Annual Policy Review June 2021
Version 2 Head of Operations ~ Annual Policy Review undertaken May 2022

—no changes made

Version 2 Head of Operations ~ Annual Policy Review June 2023

Page 135



This page is intentionally left blank



This report is PUBLIC

AgendaittemNo:13
CITY or 1
woLvirhameron | Pensions Board
COUNCIL 04 July 2023
Report Title Customer Engagement Update
Originating service Pension Services
Accountable employee Simon Taylor Assistant Director (Pensions)
Email Simon.taylor2@wolverhampton.gov.uk
Report to be/has been Rachel Brothwood Executive Director of Pensions
considered by Email Rachel.brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk

Recommendations for action:

The Pensions Board is asked to note:

1. The engagement activity and informed service development.

2. The outcomes of the Customer Service Excellence re-accreditation.

Page 137



mailto:Simon.taylor2@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:Rachel.brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk

1.0

1.1

2.0

2.1

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

This report is PUBLIC
Purpose

To provide Board with an update of the Fund’s customer engagement activity from 1
January 2023 to 31 March 2023 and to cover future planned customer engagement
activity in the context of the Fund’s Customer Engagement Strategy.

Background

One of the Fund’s key objectives is to engage to improve outcomes for our customers. In
line with this objective, the Fund has published, and keeps under review, a Customer
Engagement Strategy, to review customer satisfaction and help inform improvements to
its pension services.

Member Engagement & Communication

The Member Services team continues to deliver member support via hybrid channels
including member webinars, face to face presentation and followed up with individual
consultations as required. During this reporting period 968 members attended our
presentations, webinars and workshops. These were followed by 358 individual member
consultations. Our events are delivered at various times throughout the day to
accommodate attendance around member and work commitments. This delivery and the
associated feedback are summarised in appendix A.

During this reporting period the Member Services Team targeted district Police stations
and Local Education Authority (LEA) schools and provided 25 satellite support events to
225 hard to reach members. These are members who may not normally be able to
access our services due to the nature of their work and location, which might include
access to web-based delivery (i.e., computer facilities), working hours or ‘satellite’
locations.

Through the “Be Pension Smart & Take Control of your Benefits” campaign the Fund
continues to encourage members to view and manage their pension record online using
the pensions portal. During this reporting period registrations increased by 2,305 (this is
702 members more than the previous reporting period) bringing the total pension portal
registrations to 129,925 at the end of March 2023.

The Fund continues to promote aspects of our work via the social media platform
LinkedIn. Since the last reporting period a further 9,653 (1,991 more hits since the last
reporting period) people have interacted with our variety of articles from purposeful
pension videos, member engagement events and recruitment.

The Fund roadshow was back out on tour across the region visiting depots, the plan to
support these members spans from February to May. During this reporting period we
have visited 4 locations and seen 146 members. Feedback from these events was 89%
rated excellent and 11% rated very good. A further 3 depot roadshows have been
delivered during May, assisting 115 members.

Page 138


https://portal2.wmpfonline.com/
https://www.linkedin.com/company/west-midlands-pension-fund

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

This report is PUBLIC

“Planning your retirement” workshops are still proving to be popular with members who
are over the age of 55. In this quarter the Member Services Team delivered 10
workshops to active members which helped 263 attendees with their retirement planning.

The Fund continues to target active and deferred members who do not hold a valid
nomination form through our nomination form campaign, over this period we changed our
approach by sending written letters to members instead of emails to encourage a higher
response rate.

During March and April P60s and newsletters were issued to our pensioners. This year
the Fund sent out 115,000 pensioner newsletters which contain useful information such
as pension pay day dates, pensions increase information, explaining members P60s and
signposting to support to help our pensioners with the cost-of-living crisis.

During this reporting period the Fund’s member video suite, providing on-demand
support and guidance to members, has been expanded to include new videos such as
helping our pensioner members understand Pensions Increase for 2023, deferred
benefits statement video 2023 and re-vamping our pensions portal registration video.

Noting the importance of cleansing data, in February 2023 the Fund has written to 2,806
active members, 4,223 deferred members and 2,461 pensioners who we believe may
have changed their email address and to ask them to update it on the pension portal.

Progress is underway to design new communications to market the new pension portal
prior to ‘go live’. New draft user guides and videos have been made.

On the 23 March 2023, the Fund attended the Birmingham Association of School Business
Management group (BASBM) at Villa Park, delivering a new presentation covering the cost
of living and the impact this can have on members’ benefits, how we can support in
ensuring younger employees are engaged with their pension savings, alive to the risks of
pensions scams and supporting employers by enhancing their members’ knowledge and
understanding of their benefits. The audience extended to over 150 individual
schools/academies with the presentation generally well received.

In February the Pension Services Team attended the Sandwell Inspired Partnership
(SIPS) bursar event on invitation to provide valuable updates from both an employer and
member perspective to around 50 schools and academies. Feedback from the day was
positive and this has lead to an increase in requests to support and engage with
individual schools.

Website content continues to be updated and there have been 394,000 web page views
in this quarter.

Customer feedback is key to understanding our customer’s journey, highlighting our
strengths and opportunities to improve the Fund’s approach to continually develop the
services we offer and ensure these remain valued. Following a review of our ‘Post Event’
surveys to scheme members and the creation of a customer feedback dashboard, post-

Page 139



4.0

4.1

411

41.2

4.2

4.21

422

This report is PUBLIC

event surveys are now being issued to members regularly. The overall customer
feedback KPI for this quarter is 91%.

Employer Engagement
Employer Peer Group

The final session of the Fund’s Employer Peer Group cycle for 2022/23 took place in
March, with 13 out of the 18 registered employer representatives present. The content for
the meeting included:

e Employer data reporting — discussion about the importance of data quality and an
opportunity for the group to discuss the related challenges and experience to aid
future developments in this area.

e Process timescales - general discussion on member feedback and comments around
Fund processing times which will be taken to our internal customer engagement
committee for consideration.

e 2023 Employer Health Check — discussion about delivery dates, and proposed
content for the 2023 exercise. General feedback was that timing works well and it is a
useful exercise.

e General communications — feedback obtained from the group on preferred methods
of communications, including thoughts on the quarterly Employer Brief and
comparisons to experience with other pension schemes they have dealings with.

Once again, this session was held virtually to accommodate employer attendance
alongside their own existing priorities. As this was the last meeting of the 2022/23 cycle,
all employers have now been invited to join the new cycle with the first meeting taking
place in June 2023.

Employer Webinars

The Employer Services Team has continued to deliver a programme of employer
education over the quarter with 8 sessions (5 face to face at i9 and 3 webinars) delivered
to 67 attendees from 38 organisations (a mix of both employers and payroll providers).
Combined, these individuals represent over 150 employers within the Fund. The
sessions are free to attend and provide a useful refresher for existing staff or as an
introduction to processes for those who are new to Fund administration.

Sessions delivered over the quarter are set out below and will continue to be rolled out
over the course of the following year. An increased suite of webinars is now available
each month and employers are able to easily sign up via the Fund’s website.

Introduction to the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)
Leavers, Retirements and Notifications

Employer Discretions

Completing and Submitting your Final Statement

o O O O

Page 140



423

424

4.2.5

43

4.3.1

43.2

4.3.3

44

441

442

This report is PUBLIC

Feedback received following the sessions noted that attendees found the sessions useful,
enjoyable and informative. They also enjoyed the interactive nature of the sessions and
found them engaging.

In addition to the now standard education programme, delivery of a full suite of webinars
specific to the roll out of the new pensions administration system and Employer Self
Service (ESS) functionality has now commenced. 180 attendees (from 120 individual
organisations representing over 600 employers in the Fund) were present at 4 ESS
General Navigation sessions during the period. 100% of attendees fed back that they
were very satisfied or satisfied with the training.

These specific ESS sessions will increase in delivery as the new system moves into live
and to support employer transition. In addition, employers will be able to attend drop-in
sessions at i9 for additional support post go-live and have also been invited to register
preferences for time and date specific slots for one-to-one online support when
submitting their first monthly data file.

Employer Engagement and Performance

Utilising the virtual working arrangements currently in place, the Employer Services team
have continued to hold performance meetings with various employers throughout the
period.

During the period the Fund held 22 meetings with 18 organisations and 2 third-party
payroll providers (note some employers were met with on multiple occasions during the
period). Collectively these employers and payroll service providers are responsible for
submitting data and payments for over 100 organisations, servicing over 40,000
members. Meetings were held for a variety of reasons including general performance
feedback, monthly submission support, McCloud support, and Funding and Actuarial
Valuation queries.

Work also continues on the Employer Team to target both the submission of outstanding
leaver paperwork and responses to queries raised as a result of those leaver
submissions ahead of both the system transition and the 2023 Annual Benefit Statement
production run. Aligned to this all employers have been reminded of the importance of
regularly reviewing active member lists ahead of the 2023 Employer Health Check which
was issued during May.

2022 Actuarial Valuation: Employer Support

Following the closure of the consultation period, the Fund’s dedicated valuation team
issued final results to all employers. Payroll providers were also contacted and provided
with a list of rates for all clients to ensure the new contribution rates are implemented
with effect from the April 2023 monthly data file submission and payments.

All employers have now been invited to provide feedback on the overall 2022 Actuarial
Valuation process to enable a review of support and information provided.

Page 141



5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

54

6.0

6.1

6.2

7.0

7.1

7.2

This report is PUBLIC
Future Engagement and Activity Beyond the Reporting Period

During May the Fund produced annual benefits statements for deferred members, this
was followed up with bulk emails and text messages to members where we hold a valid
email address and mobile number to notify members that their statement was available
on the portal. A similar approach will be followed for active members as their statements
are published and published on their portal account in July/August.

From April to June 2023 the hard-to-reach project is providing face to face support
targeting small housing associations, LEA schools and leisure centres across the region.

The Member Service Team is now preparing to deliver 17 roadshows at educational
establishments across the West Midlands region with a summary to be presented in the
September customer engagement update.

The Fund’s “Tea & Teach” sessions were held during May and June, delivering 8 events
with the objective to bring pensioners together face to face for refreshments and give
them the chance to sit down with a Fund officer to talk about any pension concerns which
they may have. We have partnered with local organisations to provide as much support
and literature as possible for our pensioners. Feedback will be provided in the next
customer engagement update.

Whole Fund and Larger Events

The Fund is hosting its Employer Mid Year Review 2023 at i9 on the 4 July.. The event
provides a variety of updates for employers and feedback from the event will feature in
the next Customer Engagement Report.

HR 360, the Coventry Bursars group, asked for a member presentation at their schools
and academies business meeting on the 30 June 2023. HR 360 represent the schools
and academies in the Coventry area and this represented our first face to face support of
the event since the pandemic.

Customer Service Excellence Accreditation

During May the Fund undertook its Customer Service Excellence re-accreditation. A
review document was completed in advance of an onsite assessment detailing evidence
of the Fund’s compliance with the standard. During the assessment days the assessor
then met face to face with representatives from several different service areas to further
investigate and verify the Fund’s compliance.

We are pleased to report that the Fund achieved the required standard, excelling in five

areas and being awarded compliance plus. We await the final report, and a full
breakdown of the assessment will be provided in September’s update.

Page 142



8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

10.0

10.1

11.0

12.0

12.1

13.0

13.1

This report is PUBLIC
Financial Implications
There are no financial implications associated with this report.
Legal implications
There are no legal implications associated with this report.
Equalities implications
The report contains no direct equalities implications.
All Other Implications
The report contains no other direct implications.
Schedule of Background Papers
There are no background papers within this report.
Appendices

Appendix A - Review of feedback from member presentations and member individual
pension consultations.

Page 143



This page is intentionally left blank



Alojoejsieg @ poos) @ 1Us|j9oXJ @ Aiojoejsies ® poos) @ u9||eoX] @

(%€9) 68 —~

(%8¥) 08 —
~—(%be) 12
L (%) z L (%g) ¢
guijey Jajuasald Buney juang

€207 Y248 T€ - £¢0C Aenuer ;T — )oeqpaa] Uonejuasald Wea] 92IAIaS JaqUIdA 1y Xipuaddy

— (%.¥) 62

see
eessscse

Page 145

puN4 UOISUI4 SPUBIPIA 359
L]

eee




payspessig @

(9:65) 96 —

1ESS|P JOU PRYSTIES JAYIIAN @ Paysies @ paysies o) e

— {%4¢) 62

== el
o
(1)1 POl 6

guney 201nIaS

DAYSHESSIP 10U PRYSIES JAUISN @ PUsIeS @ paysies Lo\ @

{959) 29

(%82 LT

Suney Ja1uasalid

SUOI]e}|NSUO) UoISuad

foloejsiiES @ pooH® U|I2IX3 @

(%6kd) 0L —

~— (%K) €T
o
L warz
3uiley uoioelalu|
AOIOBJSIES @ POOD @ JUB|3XT @
(%10} 88 —
—— (30¢) v

(g

guney jusang

€20C Y21BNl . I€ — £C0C AdEenuef 1sT- )oeqpaa ] Wea] adIAIaG JaqUIBIA

Page 146



Agenda Item No: 15

Document is Restricted

Page 147



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 153



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	5 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	7 LPB Annual Governance Paper
	Appendix A - Local Pensions Board Terms of Reference
	Pensions Board - Terms of Reference
	Membership
	Chairing the Board
	Information


	Appendix B - Local Pension Board Member Training hours

	8 Risk and Assurance
	Appendix A - Risk Register
	Appendix B - Key Performance Indicators

	9 Internal Audit Report 2022/23
	Appendix A – Annual Audit Report 2022-23

	10 Statement of Accounts
	Appendix A – West Midlands Pension Fund Statement of Accounts for the year ending 31 March 2023
	Counterparty risk


	11 Investment Governance
	12 Pensions Administration Report to 31 March 2023
	Appendix A - Workflow Summary
	Appendix B - Detailed Process Analysis
	Appendix C - Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)
	Appendix D - Customer Service Statistics
	Appendix E-  Admitted Body Applications
	Appendix F - Administering Authority Policy Statement 2023

	13 Customer Engagement Update
	4.4.2	All employers have now been invited to provide feedback on the overall 2022 Actuarial Valuation process to enable a review of support and information provided.
	Appendix A - Review of feedback from member presentations and member individual pension consultations

	15 CEM Benchmarking
	Appendix A – Overview of 2021/22 CEM Benchmarking of Pension Administration and Investment Management


